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BABIES AND BRIEFCASES: CREATING A
FAMILY-FRIENDLY WORKPLACE FOR FATHERS

TUESDAY, JUNE 11, 1991

Houske oF REPRESENTATIVES,
SeLrer COMMITTEE ON CHILDREN, YOUTH, AND FaMiLIES,
Washington, IX.

The committee met, pursuant to call, at 9:30 am,, in Room 2118,
Rayburn House Office Building, Hon. Patricia Schroeder [chair-
woman of the committee] presiding.

Members present: Representatives Schroeder, Horn, Peterson,
Wolf, Walsh, McEwen, Bilirakis, Klug, Santorum, and Barrett.

Staff present: Karabelle Pizzigati, staff director; Nancy Reder,
professional staff; Danielle Madison, minority staff director; Carol
Statuto, minority deputy staff director; Elizabeth Maier, professional
staff: Kate Bunting, research assistant; and Joan Godley. committee
clerk.

Chairwoman ScHrokper. Okay. I'm going to go ahead and call us
to order this morning. We have many members coming down the
haliway, 10:00 seems to be a more popular time to start, but we
now have a member joining us, so the rules of the committee are,
you have to have two, and we'll be Laving more join us as we get
Joing.

Let me say, I'm very excited about this hearing. The purpose of
it is to look at how the workplace is becoming more “family friend-
ly” for fathers, and what we can do to change some of the corpo-
rate culture that has really inhibited many fathers from taking ad-
vantage of ana supporting different workplace policies

The hearing is going to also examine the impact that fathers
have on their children's development, and why it is very important
for fathers to be part of the parenting process.

When You go back and look at our history, originally it was part
of our language, the Ma and Pa store, the Ma and Pa farm, the Ma
and Pa ranch, Ma and Pa were an economic and a family unit. and
somehow in many areas fathers have really dropped out of the
process. .

In preparing for this hearing, we heard about some very exciting
employer programs. I'm going to put my whole statement in the
record that cites a lot of them, but let me just mention a few of
them publicly. America West Airlines operates out of Phoenix, Ari-
zona, and they have put in a 24-hour a day, seven-day a week net-
work of family and center-based child care to meet the needs of
their employees who often have to be away from home.

th
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Merck, the pharmaceutical company, has provided relocation as-
sistance, maternity and paternity leave, child care referral pro-
» family matters workshops, career search workshops for
amily members, and pre-retirement planning. So, they have a
ve{vy. very comprehensive program.
e've come a long way in 30 years, but the corporate culture
still says that men shouldn’t take leave, that fathers don't leave
work for Is or trips to pediatricians, and so, in many places
things haven't changed at all.

Most of the accommodations that we salute today have been
made by large employers, but the list of options attached to the
fact sheet we've prepared for the hearing shows that not all options
are that costly to implement, and we're hoping that more small
employers Jonk at these options. In other words, part of our packet
is news you can use, and the news you can use is that there’s a lot
of things you can do that are very inexpensive that allow for fami-
lies to do lots of different things.

In a recent radio business program, they had a segment on busi-
ness participation in the public schools. They interviewed a lot of
educators, and asked the educators what businesses could do to
become more involved in public schools. One of the very interesting
things that these educators said is, the best thing business could do
is let employees off & couple hours every now and then so they
could visit their own children’s schools, that that would be the very
best first start, rather than having some fancy program first.

So, I hope we're listening, and 1 hope we take that into account.

I want to welcome all of our guests this morning, and I know we
are going to have a very stimulating hearing. We've got some very
distinguished panel members here.

[Opening statement of Hon. Patricia Schroeder follows:]

OPENING STATEMENT oF HON. PATRICIA SCHROEDER, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
FrOM THE STATE 00 COLORADO AND CHAIRWOMAN. SELECT CoMMITTEE oN (uis.
DPREN, YOUTH. AND FAMILIES

This is the season when we puy tribute to our mothers and fathers and honor
them with their special days. As Futher's Day approaches, we thought it would be
most appropriate for the Select Committee to examine the role fathers play in par-
enting their children and how to create & work environment that encourages them
in their roles as fathers. To that end. we want to take a look this morning at how
the workplace is becoming more “family-friendly” —especially for fathers—and what
needs to be dane to change the “‘corporate culture” that inhibits fathers from taking
advantage of and promoting supportive workplace policies.

We do not examine these workplace issues in 8 vacuum. The mest critical reason
for having “family-friendly” workplaces is to facilitate the well-being of our nation's
children, the majority of whom have working parents So we also will be looking at
what researchers have found in examining the et fathers have on their chik
drfn's development and why it's important for father to play an active parenting
role.

As we prepared for this hearing, we heard some very exciting stories about what
corparations are deing to help their employees whe are parents juggle their work
and fami} mspnnsibiﬁtios. We talked to employers such as America West Airlines.

ed in Phoenix, AZ. which has developed a 24-hour, T-day a week network of
fami:; and centerbased child care to meet the needs of its employees who ure often
out of town overnight. American West recruits and trains farmly day care providers
and currently there are more than 750 children participating in the program.

We also talked to companies such as Du Pont. which would be represented here
today were it not for the fact that all of their top management is meeting in
Geneva. Du Pont just recently surveyed K500 of its employees to find out what their
most pressing work/family conflicts are The survey showed that there is a groving
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consensus among men and women about the need for flexible wark options. Sixty-
four percent of the men interviewed were interested in a sick child leave policy. up
from 40 just Give yenrs ago. And the percentage of men interested in a transition
time o care for newborn children more than doubled over a five-year period, from
155 to 35%. Du Pont has responded to the concerns of its employees by expanding
unpaid leave options and creating more flextime options for its employees. Another
trailblazing corporation is Merck—the giant pharmaceutical company. Merck has
responded to the needs of its predominately male workforce with a range of *{amily-
friendly” programs and policies, among them: relocation assistance, maternity and
paternity leave, support to employee child care centers, child care referral services.
sickness prevention and stress reduction programs, family matters workshops,
career search workshope for family members, o spouse referral career service and
life and pre-retirement financial planning.

One of our witnesses here today—Los Angeles Department of Water and Power--
will share its innovative “family-friendly” programs. We applaud L.A. Water and
Power—and the Mercks and the Du Ponts—cerporations that realize Lt work and
family go hand in hand and that when employees face stress in their personal lives,
they are less productive employees. There is a lot that employers can do to reduce
the stress where work and family responsibilities intersect.

1 am pleased to sit here and say that we've come a long way in the past thirty
yenrs. It wasn't so very long ugo that it was legal to fire women workers just be
cause they were pregnant. As the nature of the workplace has chunged with the
dramatic influx of women into the laborforce—especially women with young chil-
dren—more and more employers are recognizing that they will be better served by
their employees if they, as employers, better serve their employees.

But some things aren't changing. We still have a cultural climate that says men
don't take paternity leave and fathers don't leave work for trips to the pediatrician
or carpools or pickupe at the day care centers iwhich usunlly close at 6:00 PM.1 We
want to know why that hasn't chunged and what we can do to change that corpo-
rate culture. Our concern for chunging the corporate culture is grounded in sound
academic research, which documents the impact of futhers’ parenting or luck there-
of on their children

Most of the accommodations in the workplace have been made by lurge employ-
ers. Tob many medium and small employers still think flexibibity is too costly. The
list of family-oriented policy options that has been prepared in conjunction with this
hearing is a clear indication that not all options are costly to implement. And we
need to figure out how to convey to all employers that they can be cost effective and
“family friendly’’ at the same time.

Just the other dav, a radio business program reported on viewer response to a
segment it had aired on business involvement in the public schools The announcer
indicated that while the program received a number of suggestions for business in-
volvement. the overwhelming response from the education community was that the
best way business could be involved would be to let their emplovees have a few
hours off each m 'nth to come to the schools so that parents could play a more
active part in their children’s education Are you listening out there?

1 want to welcome our invited guests this morning and 1 look forward to a mast
stimulating and informative hearing

b



"BABIES AND BRIEFCASES: CREATING A
FAMILY-FRIENDLY WORKPLACE FOR FATHERS®

A FACT SHEET

WORKING FATHERS STRUGGLE TO BALANCE WORK AND
FAMILY

e In March, 1990, 24.4 million fathers -- 36% of all males in the labor
force -- had children under the age of 18. Two-thirds of them had
wives in the labor force. Twelve million working fathers had
children under the age of 6. Just over 1 million familics were
maintained by single fathers. (Burcau of Labor Statistics [BLS],
1991)

e In 1987, the primary child care provider for 15% of children whose
mothers worked part time and for 6.1% of children whose mothers
worked full time was their father. (Census Burcau, 1990)

e A 1989 Washington Post poll indicated that 4% of fathers polled in
the metropolitan Washingion, DC, area did not work outside of the
home. An additional 48% of fathers indicated that they reduced
their work hours in order to spend more time with their families
and 237 said that they had declined a promotion because it would
have meant spending less time with their families. (The Washington
Post, June, 1989)

e A 1990 survey of 8,500 Du Pont employces found that 56% of the
male employees surveyed favored flexible work options to balance
their work and family responsibilities, compared with 37% in a
similar Du Pont survey in 1985. Sixty-four percent of the men
surveyed were interested in a sick child leave policy and 35%
favored a transition time to care for their newborn children. Male
employees reported as much or more difficulty as female cmployees
in finding s_pport for sick and emergency child care. (Du Pomt,
1991)

e A 1990 poll conducted for The Los Angeles Times revealed that
39% of the fathers surveyed would quit their jobs if they could to
stay home with their children.  An almost cqual percentage of
fathers and mothers (57% versus 55%) said they felt guilty about
spending too little time with their children and 51% of fathers
polied said their work interfered with their parental responsibilitics.
Twenty-eight percent of the fathers felt their parental responsibilities
hurt their careers. (The Los Angeles Times, August 1990)

N
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e A survey of 400 men and women with children under age 12
conducted for Fortune magazine by Bank Street College found that
fathers were almost as likely as mothers to report that their job
interfered with family life (37% versus 41%). Thirty percent of the
fathers surveyed said that they had refused a new job, promotion,
or transfer because it would have meant less time with their
familics. More fathers than mothers (35% versus 31%) thought
companies could do more to help employces manage their
work/family responsibilities. (Chapman, 1987)

FATHERS' INVOLVEMENT IN FAMILY LIFE ENHANCES
CHILDREN'S WELL-BEING

e A study of tecnagers from two-parent families whosc fathers played
a large role in their childrearing indicated that older tecns tended
to have a more flexible outlook toward sex roles in general than
younger teens, All of the teens held less traditional views of their
future employment patterns and their future child carc plans.
(Radin, 1991)

e A study of highly involved fathers indicated that their children had
greater verbal competence. Proficiency in mathematics is also
related to the father's prosence. (Radin, 1981, 1991)

e A 26-ycar longitudinal study that tracked young children into
adulthood found that thc amount of time a father spends with a
child is one of the strongest predictors of empathy in aduithood.
(Koestner, Wceinberger and Franz, 1990)

e Teenagers from two-parent families reported that they expericnced
more cnjoyment and were more satisfied when involved in activities
with fathers than with their mothers. When leisure time was shared
with parents, adolescents spent proportionately more time with their
fathers. (Montemayor and Brownlee, 1987)

EMPLOYER RESPONSE TO FAMILY RESPONSIBILITIES IS MIXED
@ A survey of 188 of the country's largest corporations indicates that
all of them offered some family-friendly policies, including maternity

leave, part-time work options, Employee Assistance Programs, and/or
counseling on work-family issucs. Two-thirds of these companies

10




were considering implementing new family-friendly policies at the
time of the poll. (Families and Work Institute, 1991)

e The BLS Employee Benefits Survey of medium and large private
employers indicates that in 1989: 5% of employees had access to
employer assistance for child carc; 3% had access to elder care
assistance; 11% had access to flextime; 37% had access to unpaid
maternity leave; 3% had access to paid maternity leave; 18% had
access to unpaid paternity leave and 1% had access to paid paternity
leave. (BLS, 1990)

e A survey of Fortune 500 companies indicated that 37% of those
polled provided for an unpaid parenting leave with a job guarantee
to men. Ninecty percent of those companies offering leaves to
fathers called them "personal leave® and made no attempt to inform
employees thai such leave was available to new fathers. (Catalyst,
1986)

e A 1986 poll of Fortune 500 companies of employer attitudes
towards fathers taking leave revealed that 63% of the respondents
felt "no leave® was reasonable. Nearly half of the companies that
offcred Jeave to fathers (41%) considered *no length of time
reasonable.” (Catalyst, 1986)

June 11, 1991

OPTIONS FOR EMPLOYERS
FAMILY-ORIENTED PROGRAMS AND POLICIES

Family-oriented work policies come in all sizes and shapes. The list of
options presented below is meant to provide a sample of options that
some employers have already instituted.

CHANGING THE CORPORATE CULTURE: MAKING THE
WORKPLACE FAMILY-FRIENDLY

1. Establish a work and family commitice or task force

2. Assess employee needs through surveys or focus groups

3. Provide flexibility in work hours and other policies to meet the

individual needs of employees

4. Communicate policies in writing and through staff development
programs

Q I‘




5. Train managers and supervisors to be sensitive to work/family
issues
6. Designate a work and family program manager

WORK TIME/PLACE OPTIONS

Flextime

Compressed work week

Part-tim¢ employment (with pro-rated benefits)
Job sharing

Overtime flexibility

Flexiplace: telecommuting and/or work at home

IR o ol M

COUNSELING PROGRAM OPTIONS

1. Employee assistance programs (alcohol/drug abusc counscling
andjor treatment programs; family counscling)

Stress reduction seminars

Relocation assistance for working spouscs of employees

w

CHILD CARE OPTIONS

On-site child care center

Near-site child care center

Contract for slots in existing child care ccnters

Information and referral assistance for locating child care

Recruitment and training of family day care providers

Funds or other support for cxtended hours at near-site child
care centers for employees who work extended hours or
evening/night shifts
7. Emergency child care scrvices, care for mildly ill children
8. Transportation to after-school recreation/child care programs
9. Help with start-up costs for outsidc child care center
10. Vouchers or direct subsidies to employces
11. Child care handbook to assist employees in locating

child care best suited to their nceds

12. Summer camp program

IR S S e

LEAVE OPTIONS

1. Flexible vacation options
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Use of sick lcave o care for sick immediate family members
Personal leave -~ specific amount (paid)

Personal leave - flexible (unpaid)

Paid paremal leave

Extended unpaid parental leave (job-guarantee; continuing
benefits)

Return from parental leave on pari-time basis

Leave bank (annual and/or sick leave)

Flexible leave for tcacher conferences or other school events
10 Bereavement leave

11. Nursing breaks

b wN

0 e

INFORMATION/SEMINAR OPTIONS

1. Employee oricntation programs that include information on
family-supportive policics and programs, management
training programs, strategic plans and annual reports

Elder care counseling and referral services

Parenting seminars

Parent support groups

Computer bulletin board information exchange

New parent seminars

Parent resource center with books, videos, and magazines on
parenting, child carc and caring for the clderly

N MR WN

TELEPHONE ACCESS OPTIONS

1. Telephone or routinc/cmergency family calls
2. "Short" long distance calls for family emergencics
3. Galling home from business trips

FINANCIAL SUPPORT OPTIONS

Flexible benefit plans (Dependent Care Assistance Plans)
Health insurance for dependents

Reimbursement for adoption expenscs

Tuition assistance

Scholarship programs for cmployees’ children
Reimburscment for extra child care costs for travel or
overtime work

7. Employee financial assistance fund for financial crises

Y E

13




MISCELLANEOUS OPTIONS

VA A e e e —

b
.

Develop children-at-work policies (for snow days; other
emergencies) :
Address family concerns in recruitment interviews

Make uncven career paths acceptable

Curtail anti-nepotism rules

Postpone relocation for family reasons

Support family picnics/holiday events

Provide nursing space

Joinsstart employer network

Encourage developers to include child care it, space where
you rent

CRNPAB W

Adapted from “Family-Oriented Policy and Program Options for
Employers,” prepared by Jean D. Linchan, The Bureau of National
Affairs, Inc.

June 11, 1991
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Chairwoman SCHROEDER. Let me now ‘iyield. Did you have an
opening statement you would like to make’

Mr. BarrerT. Thank you, Madam Chair. I think I would ask the
Madam's consent to insert my statement in the record, and to
thank you for holding this hearing.

Chairwoman Scuroeper. Well, thank you very much.

Mr. BARRETT. In the interest of time, thank you.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. And, I think we can join in saying that
anyone who shows up a little late, and has an opening statement,
we will just put it in the record, so we can then move on.

Let me call the first panel to the table, who we are excited to
see. First of all, we have Gordon Rothman, who is a father and a
field producer at CBS. He's terribly upstaged by this young woman
who has decided to accompany him named Hannah. We have Bev-
erly King, who is the Director of Human Resources for the City of
Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, from Los Angeles,
California. We have James Levine, who is the Director of the Fa-
therhood Project, Families and Work Institute in New York, and
we are very happy to see you again, and we’ll be anxious to hear
what you have to say. And, we have Lynn O’'Rourke Hayes, who is
the co-author of The Best Jobs in America {;or Parents, from Chevy
Chase, Maryland, and we're very glad to have that kind of news
you can use too.

So, let me say to all the panelists, we welcome you this morning,
and, Gordon, I think we're going to start with you. You have a ver
eager person there, and who knows what kind of patience she’s
going to have with this congressi.nal hearing. So, why don’t we
launch with you.

STATEMENT OF GORDON ROTHMAN, FATHER AND FIELD
PRODUCER. CBS, NEW YORK, NY

Mr. Roruman. Okay, I'll keep my fingers crossed. Thanks.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Absolutely.

Mr. RoruMaAN. As you know, 1 was invited here this morning be-
cause I am a father on paternity leave. Normally, I work as a field

roducer for the TV hroadcast “CBS This Morning.” But, for the
ast 11 weeks, and for the next two, I work for her. This is Hannah
Justice Rothman who is five months old. I am her full-time babysit-
ter and bath giver, entertainer and audience, diaper changer and
dance partner, not to mention chief cook, and, yes, bottle washer.

Being home with Hannah has made these the most wonderful
three months of my life, and, yet, when I think about paternity
leave in general I get angry, and I'll explain that in a minute, but
first the good news. Paternity leave has changed my relationship
with my daughter from drab to delightful. In the early months, my
wife Faith was on leave and I was on the job. I'd often come home
after long hours working on our Gulf War coverage to find a baby
just beaming with delight until 1 picked her up, and then she'd
stai. squalling.

Things have changed dramatically during my tenure as “Mister
Mom.” I have picked up the fine arts of baby flying, peek-a-boo and
tickle monster, and as the psychologists like to say, I think we have
bonded. As I prefer to say, we've become buddies.

1o
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I think the experience has given Hannah confidence that both of
her parents are capable of attending to her needs. I may be exag-

erating her intellectual development there just a little, but if she

cesn't have that confidence at least 1 do, and maybe that's even
more important.

Beyond that, the paternity leave 1 think, has helped define, rede-
fine the nature of our family. You know the stereotype of child
care that it's something that's a woman’s duty, unless the man
happens to have time and helps out a bit. For us, it is very much a
shared activity. Hannah will always beour responsibility, and I
think that's a fact which can't help but make our family stronger.

So, it has been a wonderful experience, a very enriching experi-
ence. So why did I say a minute ago that the subject of paternity
leave makes me angry? It's simply use I think it's absurd that
in 1991 it should still be unusual enough to command this kind of
attention, be the subject of a hearing, to be the subject of news re-
ports. After all, a woman who does exactly the same things that 1
do each day, and there are three of them on every block in Amer-
ica, gets no attention at all. That's wrong.

For me, for no other reason than the fact that I am taking pater-
nity leave, I've been in a newspaper article, on a radio show, I'm
here testifying before a congressional hearing, and why is that? Be-
cause dads who take leave, it seems, are about as rare as spotted
owl fan clubs in Oregon.

Perhaps, that's not surprising. The deck is stacked against fa-
thers who want to take more than a few days off. I'm one of those
people who has always wanted to take a paternity leave. I wanted
to be able to share the responsibilities with my wife. I wanted our
child to have as much time as possible with her parents in these
critical first few months, and as we've arranged it, she's spending
the first six months with her parents.

But even for me, the fact that I was actually able to take this
leave, and take this substantial leave, 1 attribute to luck. There are
three elements that need to be in place for it work, and luckily for
me they wore all there.

First, you need the right company policy. and at CBS News
either a father or a mother can take up to six months off from the
birth or adoption of a child.

Second, you need the right attitude in the workplace, one that
doesn't threaten to chop a father’s career off at the knees if he
does take a leave, and in my case my Supervisors and colleagues
have been nothing but supportive, not even a hint that this is
going to come back to haunt me some day.

And, finally, and, perhaps, most important, you need money, be-
cause nearly every paternity leave is unpaid. You've got to have
some savings tucked away, and we've managed to set aside enough
to tide us over during these weeks.

So, policy, attitude and cash, you need all three. Is that a rare
combination? Perhaps, the other witnesses here today can answer
that better than I, but I can tell you that when I'm out at the Cen-
tral Park playground on a weekday, the place is packed, jammed
with sitters, loaded with mothers, and I keep looking for other fa-
thergﬁl (tiaking paternity leave, and 1 haven't found one yet. That’s
too .

16
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My season with Hannah has been a joyous experience, unbeat-
able, it's made us closer. I'm sure it's made me a better father, and
I wish more men could enjoy the same thrill. I think it’s 8 shame
that paternity leave is impossible for so many and unaffordable for
s0 many more, bu. worst of all is that most of those who have the
chance don’t make the choice.

To those employers who can offer paternity leave, I say offer it.
To other employees who can take paternity leave, I say do yourself
a favor, do your child a favor, take it. It's a wonderful experience,
it's a great start.

Thank you.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Thank you, and I know the whole com-
mittee would want to salute CBS for being so forward thinking in
allowing this, and you are right, it shouldn’t even be forward
thinking, it should be normal thinking, but thank goodness there
are a few around.

{Prepared statement of Gordon Rothman follows:}
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF Gornon RoTHMAN, FATHER AND FieLp Propuces, CBS,
New York, NY

My name im Gordon Rothoan, and normally I am a field producer for the
television program "CBS This Morning.” But for the last eleven weeks, and for
the next two, I have a differeat job. I am a full-time father. taking
paternity leave with my jewel of a daughter, Hannah. This makes me the
luckiest man I know.

1 anm Hannah's chief babysitter and bath giver, entertainer and sudience,
dtaper changer and dance partner, not to mention chief cook and, yes. bottle
washer. As the Pesce Corps used to say, it's the toughest job l've ever
loved.

My wife Faith and I both wanted to take time off to spend with the bady,
and both wanted to return to work. But to make a paternity leave possible
required three elements that seem all too rare for America'’s fathers.

First, the right company policy. At CBS News, a omother or father can
take parental leave for up to six months after s child is born or adopted.

Second. the right attitude in the workplace. My supervisors and
colleagues have given me nothing but suppart. . . still no hints that this is
going to come back to haunt me.

And third, cash. The leave 1s unpaid. so it was only possible becsuse
Faith and I had already saved encough money to tide us over.

With poltcy, attitude, wnd casn on our side, | decided to take three
months off: nine weeks of unpatd lesve plus four vacation weeks. [t began
just before amy wife returned to work, so that Hannah is under her parents’

care for her fi{rs*t six months.
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Paternity leaves ~-- when they happen at all -- tend to last just a week
of two. So even Faith figured 1'd give up the iden of taking thirteen, But
as Leave Day approached, T only became more convinced that it was the right
thing to do. It certainly has been, despite a less-than-inspiring start. On
my firat day of leave, Hannah broke out in a full-body rash, She had a crying
jag thaot could crack pottery, And soon after I served her lunch, she suddenly
sent tt all back to the chetf. But we survived daov onre, and 1t 'y been all

uphtll from there.

I can tell you without a grain of doubt that my leave has warmed my
relationship with my Jaught;r. During much of Faith's leave, I worked long
hours on (BS News Gulf War coverage. [ would often come home and pick up a
smiling baby only to have her stiffen and squall. At first, Faith insisted
that it wasn't me -~ I was fust coming home at a bad time. But the hours
changed: the behavior didn't. Fatith soon had to admit, “No, Gordon, it's not

the timing, it's you.” Like a lot of fothers these days, I was plaving just e

cameo role in my child's world, and she barely knew me.

Things changed drumatically soon atter ! began staying home with Hatnah
wnd learned the fine arts of babv fliying, peekaboo, snd tickle monster. AS

the psvchologists like to sav, we have honded.

She knows [ can meet her needs -- 4 qhnck. 4 change, 4 cuddle. or just a
rest,  THAT is what 1 hope will be the lasting value of this experience --
that long after ['ve gone back to work, she'll knew that BOTH of her parents
are there for her, ready, willing und able to support her., And 1f SHE doesn't

know 1t7 Well, I know it.

14
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So it's given me a great feeling of confidence. But ft's also helped
define the nature of our family. Child care is so often seen as & woman's
duty for which & man sometimes helps out. For us, it is something my wife and
I share. Hannsh will always de "our” responsibility — & fact which can't

help but make the family stronger.

Nearly everyone -~ friends, relattves. co~workers —-- has the sape
reaction to oy leave: "Ian‘t tt wonderful!" Except reporters, who say "lsn't
it going to hurt your career?" The snswer to that ts, "I hope and expect that
it won't."” For now, the most important thing is dotng everything I can for

Hannah,

1 have only two regrets about my leave. 1 regret thst my colleagues
have had to work even harder to take up the slack. We've 11 done it before
for mothers on the staff, and I am grateful that they're doing tt for me.

My other regret is simply that what [ am doing 1s st'll so rare.

It s a pity that so few companies offer the opportunity. and o scandal
that -- bacause it's slmost always unpaid -- most men can't afford it.

But worst of all is that most of those who DX have the vhance don't make
the ~hotce. It ts a shame that so Lung aflter so Many career daors started
opening to women, this door remsains virtually closed to men, To those
employees wha UAN take patermaty leave, 1 sayv take it. Ta thase exployers who
can OFFER paternity leave, | sav atfer tt. [t is a4 mirvelous, once-i1a-a-

lifetime experience for the lucky father md, of courwe, the bicky ohild,

&) "
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Chairwoman. SCHROEDER. Beverly, let’s go to you. You have some
very exciting things to tell us about the City of Los Angeles Water
and Power, and we welcome you.

STATEMENT OF BEVERLY KING, DIRECTOR OF HUMAN RE-
SOURCES. CITY OF LOS ANGELES DEPARTMENT OF WATER
AND POWER, LOS ANGELES, CA

Ms. King. Thank you, thank you very much.

When 1 received tge letter inviting me to Babies and Briefcases, |
was struck by the fact that our program really should be called
“Babies and Hard Hats.”

The City of Los Angeles Department of Water and Power is the
largesc government-owned utility in the United States. Over half of
our employees are skilled craft employees, they work in the field 24
hours a day, serving the citizens of Los Angeles with electricity and
water.

They don’t work in offices, by and large, to the same extent that
other le do, so we come to fathering programs a little bit dif-
ferently than the traditional kinds of programs that you probably
have seen where they exist across the United States, which is not
very many places, as you know.

In 1985, we did a survey of our child care needs, and we found
that we had lost over $1 million of productivity time in the preced-
ing year. We began to develop programs, and we were struck by
the fact that so many of the people who had begun to participate in
our programs were fathers, not at all what we expected.

At the present time, we have 11,700 employees, and over 3,000 of
our employees every year participate in our child care programs.
About 1,500 of those are men.

What that means is. men that are employed with us, and 78 per-
cent of our employees are men, have children in our child care cen-
ters, they attend classes, especially they attend fathering kinds of
classes that are aimed directly at them.

Some of them are quite different, and I want to mention those to
vou. Maybe they are different because we are different, or maf'be
they are different because our employees are skilled craft employ-
ees, 50 that the things that you normally see don’t really work, but
these are the ones that work for us.

We noticed that we had a terrible time getting people out in the
field when their partner was about to deliver, so we established a
beeper alert program. We call it “Birth Alert,” it's one of our most
popular Erogmms. We've had about 200 people through that pro-
gram. What we do is, we provide heepers to people whose partners
are about to deliver, or if there is a high-risk pregnancy, or if the
huve a high-risk child, for example, so that we can get them bac
onto utility poles and away from conveniently located telephones.
We guarantee that they can be reached no matter what, no matter
where they are. It works from a prodi.ctivity standpoint for us, and
it works really well for them.

Another program that we have, that probably Hannah is really
interested in, is a program for breast feeding coaching. We have
breast pumps at 16 sites, and we have a separate coaching program
for fathers to help them support breast feeding.

2
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One of the reasons we have that program is because so many of
our men are also—have partners that work for Los Angeles. It
works for us, it encourages increased participation in the work-
place, that means that they have lower absenteeism. Whether the
man is helping to take care of the child, or the child is in a child
care facility, or the mother is at home, whatever the situation, that
is a very highly productive program.

We have an expectant parent program, that program is an eight-
week parent program. Over half of the participants are men, and
that program has been a well established program for us as well.

We haye special events, like fathering fairs, we have contests,
games, networking kinds of programs. We also have a voluntary
child support payroll deduction plan, which is unusual. What that
means is, any person can automatically have child support taken
out of their paycheck and sent to whomever they wish as a type of
fathering program and support program that has also been utilized
to a high degree in our particular company.

I think the most interesting thing that we’ve found with market-
ing programs to men, and especially men that are working in field
type situations, is that these programs are valuable for them. We
do have a family leave policy. Like many other policies, family
leave policies’ experiences across the United States, they are not
highly utilized by men, but we have that program. We have a cor-
porate culture that supports the participation of the father, and
we're looking for alternate ways to help shape our corporate cul-
ture to find whatever combination of family leave, telecommuting,
‘;_)art-time employment, other kinds of delivery systems will work
or us.

In the future, I see that our programs will be multi-ethnic, multi-
cultural, because we are a very diverse community, and we’ll con-
:iinue to have a non-traditional program that will be real successful
or us.

Thank you.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. That is very exciting, and congratula-
tions. It’s nice to hear about blue collars too.

[Prepared statement of Beverly King follows:}
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF BRvERLY KiNG, Direcror or HuMAN Resources, Crry oF
Los AngELEs, DEPARTMENT OF WATER AND POWER, Los ANGERLES, CA

Thank you for the opportunity to present information
about the corporate child care services at Los Angeles Departnent
of water and Power,.

First of all, who (s Los Angeles Department of Water arn.
Power? We are the utility that serves the City of Los Angeles with
power and! water. We are the largest government-owned utility in
the uUnited States, a Department of the City of Los Angeles.

Our 11,700 enployees operate & $3 billion a year utility.
Most of our employees {78%) are men and over half are in the
field- skilled craft jobs.

When then do we have a large child care progran servicing
about }),000 employees each year?

In 1985, LADWP conducted a survey of it's workers which
found that over one million dollars had been lost the preceding
year in lost productive time due to child care. The resulting
child care programs have grown from serving 500 emploYees the firgt
year in programs matched to the surveys identified needs such as
parenting classes, two near-site centers, resource and referral
services, child care counseling and sick care for mildly 111
children to over 20 modules servicing almost 3,000 employees a
year.

Ta understand why our programs are not just large and
multi~faceted but unique, here are a few programs which demonstrate
our appreoach and the results of those programs.

Productivity: our child care programs, on the average,
return $2.50 for every $1.00 invested exclusive of 1and and

construction costs of on-site centers. What that means is that

3
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over $1,000,000 is now recovered annually to our company in direct,
eagily neasured productivity.

For example, the turnover of participants is extremely
low - 2% comparsd to 7% of the average employsee. Abgaenteeisn is
20% lower - more for socme child cara programs, Return from
disability leave is unchenged, but family leave is reduced by one
month from four months family leava average te three months due teo
child care programs. Recruitment is enhanced Primaxily among
professional and technical eaployees espacially in shortage areas
such as engineering whether or not the recruits have children er
{gt. Moral inprovements and stress leval reductions wers reported,
but not measured in these gains in our productivity studies.

¥hat pakes our programs uynigue? Over 40} of our participants
are men! Nany are not office ur professional workers, but are
fieid craft workers. Our fathering program includes eight special
progracs for fathers including such programs as expectant parant
programs for fathers, breast feading coaching proqrams, as well as
special groups for single parents that are fathers and step
parenting from a fathers' prospectiva.

Our newest component for fathers is a besper alert
program which provides a beeper for fathers who are expecting a
child shortly or who have high risk childran such as preemies, or
whose partner has experienced a difficult pregnancy. Currently,
over 60 mwen are part of the beeper program and close to 200 men
have been serviced this year with this progras.

The lactation program or on-site nureing pump program is

another program that has been extremely successful at the
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Departoent of Water and Power. Currently, bressst punps are in 16
sites ss wall as pumps that are available for employees that are
traveling on pepartwent business, and who must be in field
locations away from our normal breast pump site. Breast feeding
coaching programs for men are extremsly pPopular and over 70 men
have participated in the last year.

our productivity study shows that these programs arc
valued by the men who participate, and in a company where it is not
unusual for both partners to work for the Department of water and
Power, a double benefit to the company is gatned.

Breast feeding programs return an employee to the
workplace soconer (one wmonth), and in addition, improve the
absentecia® of a new Rother significantly due to reduced illness on
the part of a child who is breast fed.

Family leave programs are a negotiated right for al}l
employees and employees must be granted an unpaid leave of up to
four months with rights to return to their former position. Family
leaves of up to one year have been optional for both men and women
for over 30 years at the DWP. While men have always had these
leaves, they have utilized them in very low numbers preferring
instead to utilize other options such as flex time to spend
additional time with their children.

Our expactant parents program has baen extensive serving
approximately 200 families & yvear during the current baby boom
vhich DWwP is experiencing.

Part of our child care services staff includes an OB-Cyn

nurse practitioner vho specializes in these programs which has been

ey
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vs .uable for both men and women participants. Over half the
participants in this program are men.

what io next? The special programs that I have discussed
form a base for future utilization of child care programs within
DwP. New gervice programs are aised at adoptive parents,
stepparents, grandparents, and dopest ic partnership families.

Institutionalization of work family programs into the
corporate strategic planning process has occurred and it is
anticipated that further development of these programs will

continpue as an integral part of our corporate structure.
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DWP
Chiid Care Plan

1985 - Assessment of Needs $1,000,000 lost in salaries
and benefits due to
child care issues

«1987 - Pilot Child Care Program 5§ components
2 Near-Site Centers

L 534 users
. 9 - 20% of employees
‘ 198 (Ezvggjgtion ticipants) reduced turnover - 7% to 2%
' participants 20% less absenteeism
increased job productivity
| + 1990 - DWP Child Care 20 program components
Services Program 3 near-site centers

2 on-gite centers
Ny 2,936 participants




DWP Child Care Services
1989 Pilot Program Evaluation

Child Care Plan’'s Effect on Work Operations

e Turncver is 5% lower than the turnover of the DWP workforce
as a whole.

e 140 fewer hours of work per year were missed during the

pilot period than in the year prior to the pilot period -
estimated 20% savings over non-participants.

® Returned to work 1 month earlier - saved 175 months.

® 71% of nursing mothers had less time off than expected.

® Difficulty with concentrating on the job reduced by 53%.

® Degree of difficuity with returnigg to work after birth of
child reduced by 46%. Vs

® Stress reduced by 45%.
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DWP Child Care Services
1989 Pilot Program Evaluation

Child Care Services User Demographic Profile*

HIGHLIGHTS

® 41% of participants are male

e Ethnic backgrounds are almost equally divided among
white, hispanic, black and asian.

e One third are low income - less than $30,000/year

e Most participants are parents of very young children
(under 2 years): 43% have children under 2 years oid;

35% have children ages 6-12.

® 47% are professional - 36% administrative support
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DWP
Child Care Services

i

- 1 K
]' % ® On-site Centers e Lactation Program
! | eReduced-Cost Nuar-Site e Adoption Asaistance

Chitd Care Centors

; ¢ Beeper Program - Family Emergencies
g eChild Care Referral Service

¢ Newslietter - Parents At Work

¢ Parenting Classes/Workshops

',f 'E e Parent Resource Library e Dapendent Care Spending Account
. eParent Support Groups * Parenting Fair

w e Child Care Counselor e Expectant Parent Services

i | o Family Leave Policy Lamaze Classes

|

: infant CPR

| e Fathering Program Baby Sate Home

| Pregnancy Counaeling
« Family Warm Line Pregnancy Workshops
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DWP
Fathering Program

® Birth~Alert Program
Beepers on loan to expecting DWP dade

e Quarterly Dad & Child Activity Program
Children's Museum Reservoir Tour
Sports Events Theatre

*DWP Father Mentorship Program
A peer support program for fathors

¢ "Fatrering in the 90's™: information Sessgions for Today's Dads
Workshops geared towerd promoting fathering in the 90°s,
inciuding topios dealing with stepfathers and eingle fathers

* Broastfeeding Class

Teaches créa how to coach and support their partners for
sucoesstul nuraing

e "Dad’'s Department” Resource Library
Books, Video and audio tap@s addressing fathering lesues

o Paternity Leave Policy
e Voluntary Child Support Deductions
Faocilitates chiid support payments through dicact salary deduction

* Tipa for Dads
Special information in the parenting newsietter




DWP Child Care Services

1990 Utilization - Program Component Breakdown

Chitd Care Counseilng 16.8%

Parent Resource Library 19.3% DWP Sponsored Centers 2.2%

Support Groups 10.8%

Beeper Program .5% Enhanced R&R 1%

¥ Regular R&R 4.8%
Lactation Program 9.7% . ¢
Yy %
3?:'& Referred to EAP 6

voluntary Child Support 3.4%

Parenting Ciasses 17.8%
Expectant Parent Workshops 13.4% ¢ ¢
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Chairwoman SCHROEDER. Qur next witness is no stranger to the
committee, who has been out there working on the Fatherhood
Project for a long time. We thank you for all your hard work.

I was at a Fatherhood class this weekend in Denver, in which
there were 40 fathers, and I asked how many of them knew their
father, and only three hands went up. So, you begin to see some of
the problems we have in the urban core, and I really thank you for
being out there talking about how important fatherhood is, because
I don't think they’d be in this course if they didn’t think it was im-
portant and they wanted to learn to break the cycle.

So, 1 thank you, and I salute you for your work, and yield the
floor.

STATEMENT OF JAMES A. LEVINE, DIRECTOR, THE FATHERHOOD
PROJECT, FAMILIES AND WORK INSTITUTE, NEW YORK, NY

Mr. LeviNne. Thank you, Congresswoman Schroeder, for this op-
portunity to talk at this important and precedent-setting hearing.
I'm especially delighted to be joined today by my 16-year-old son,
Joshua, right here behind me.

I speak as Director of the Fatherhood Project, which is the only
long-term research effort in this country focused specifically on
looking at fatherhood and social change. We have a dual focus.
We've been looking at working fathers in corporate America and,
more recently, at low-income fathers, and father involvement in
Head Start and other early childhood programs, trying to figure
out how to make parent involvement, which is the hallmark of
Head Start, the involvement of dad and not just mom.

Today, I'd like to focus on working fathers in corporate America
and share with you just a couple of our key findings. First, I'd like
to administer, if you don’t mind, a brief test. You've all heard of
the Scholastic Aptitude Test, the SAT, I'd like to challenge you to
take the WAT, the Workforce 2000 Aptitude Test.

Now, usually I administer this in corporate rooms with a slide
show, as part of a seminar or speeches that I do on what I call
“daddy stress.” The layout of this room made it impossible for
members of Congress and the audience to see the slide show simul-
taneously, so I'm going to ask you all to pretend that you are look-
ing at a set of 20 color slides of the workforce in the year 2000, and
tell me what types of workers you see.

Now, typically, when | do this before human resource executives,
fairly sophisticated people throughout the country, I get the follow-
ing sorts of answers after showing a set of slides in which 50 per-
cent of the slides are of men. I hear, 1 see minorities, 1 see women,
I see Blacks, 1 see seniors—that’'s because 1 include a slide of
Arnold Palmer—I see Hispanics, I see working mothers, I see
Asians. Nobody ever mentions fathers, even though 50 percent of
the slides are of men. Working fathers in corporate America are
largely invisible. Think of it this way, we have no category in our
language for working father. Working mother means conflict.
Working father is a redundancy, men work, that's what they are
supposed to do, that's all there is to it. Somebody else is caring for,
worrying about the children.
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Our research shows that’s not so, that the work family conflict
among men is significant, and it's real, albeit invisible, that more
and more fathers today are caught between a new set of expecta-
tions about what it means to be a father and an old set of rules
about yesterday’z workplace.

The level of stress among working fathers has increased sixfold
in the last decade alone. Men are struggling, often silently, with
the conflict between responsibilities at home and responsibilities at
the workplace.

They don’t talk about it much, but I'd like to share with you a
little bit of what 1 see as the “invisible dilemma,”’ some of the strat-
egies and tactics that men use because corporate culture doesn’t
support their responsibilities as fathers.

One is what I call the “avoid the supervisor tactic.’ That's the

y who sneaks out the back door to the parking lot to his car at

00 or 5:00 to run off to da{ care, because he doesn't want to be
seen by his supervisor. It’s the man who leaves ten minutes after
his supervisor, so as not to appear uncommitted, even though he’s
taking home two hours of work that evening.

There's the “another meeting ploy.” 1 can't tell you how sacred
meetings are in corporate America. and how many men have told
me that if they have to get home what they do is they say, “I have
another meeting,” and just don’t say it's another meeting with
their family.

The third strategy is what | call the "super dad strategy,” some-
thing quite familiar to working moms throughout America. This is
the increasing number of guys who are getting up very early, get-
ting to work by 7:00, 8:00 at the latest, staying until 6:00, working
ten or 11 hours a day, rushing home in order to be with their kids
for suppertime or bedtime. These are men who are caught between
often policies that are allegedly supportive of fatherhood and corpo-
rate cultures that are not.

All of these examples are taken, by the way, from rather ‘‘family
friendly’’ companies, but in the most extreme case 1 recently en-
countered, a supervisor at a leading compan that's written up
about all the time for its “‘family friendly,’ policies which had im-
plemented a paternity leave policy, and this manager was saying,
somewhat embarrassingly, how a man had come to him to ask to
take parental leave, and he cautioned him not to do it. He said,
“Bob, even though we’ve got this policy, I think you should use va-
cation days. This is going to set a ba precedent. This is going to
make it look bad for your career.”

The man went ahead and took leave and, in fact, set a precedent
which has now been followed in that company, but even in a com-
pany that has an explicit policy that's been written about all over
the place, we still find this residue of a corporate culture which
works against men taking it.

This is not just a phenomena for middle-class, or managerial-
class dads. We are finding these sorts of issues among blue collar
and lower-income men throughout America.

What can we do about it? Three things, let me say here. One is
to create a Folicy context of support. Support of the federally man-
dated Family and Medical Care Leave would be a step in the right
direction. A ground-breaking research report issued three weeks

34

45-219 ¢ -91 - 2



30

ago by the Families and Work Institute indicates that mandated
leave in four states does not produce significantly higher costs or
disrupt business active, and, in fact, leaves fathers to participate
more in leave.

Second, we must realize that the issue is broader than parental
leave, that the challenge facing us is really to create a flexible
workplace, and the sort of corporate culture that Beverly King was
talking about that sees working fathers and not just working moth-
ers.

Third, and [ think this hearing today is a step in the right direc-
tion, is to make this issue visible, to make fathers at the workplace
visible as an issue of corporate policy and broader social policy.
Why should we do this? Because, unless we put men back into the

"work family equation, we'll perpetuate the current pattern in
which men are handicapped by feeling they can’t risk more in-
volvement in family life, and women are double handicapped, feel-
ing they have to do it all, and being taken less seriously because of
their family responsibilities.

Iet me ask you to pretend that I'm running that slide show
again, showing Workforce 2000. I would hope that after this hear-
ing, anybody looking at Workforce 2000 would see a workforce that
has, yes, minorities, women, Blacks, working mothers, Asians, His-
panics, and working fathers.

Thank you.

Chairwoman ScHrROEDER. Thank you very much. We really appre-
ciate that.

{Prepared statement of James A. Levine tollows:]

A
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PREPARED STATEMENT OF JAMES A. LEving, DirecTOR, TiE FATHERHOOD PROJECT.
FAMILES AND WORK INSTITUTE, NEW Yorg, NY

The lavisible Dilemma:
Workiog Fathen in Corporate America

Thank you, Chairwoman Schroeder, for inviting me to testify at this
important and precedent-setting hearing.

1speak as Director of The Fatherbood Project at the Families and
Work Institute in New York Ciry, a national non-profit reseasch and
planning organization dedicated to finding ways to meet the changing needs
of America’s families and the continuing need for productivity in an
increasingly competitive global economy.

The Fatherhood Project is the 0oly longterm rescarch effort in this
country focused specifically on fatherhood and social change. For over ten
years, thanks to the support of some of the nation’s leadiog foundations, we
have been eaamining the future of fatherhood and ways to support men's
iovolvement in childrearing. We operate a ational clearinghouse on all
aspects of fatherhood, have sponsored a series of Fatherhood Forums in
major American cities, and have published Fatherhood U.S.A.: The
Firs:t National Guide to Programs, Services, and Resources for and
abour Farhers.

Our current work includes an jnvestigation of “Mep and the
Work/Family Dilemma® in corporate America and, at the other end of the
economic spectrum, g study of low-income fathers. 1o particular we are
looking at "Father lovolvement in Head Start and Other Barly Childhood
Programs,” trying to identify successful models and strategies for insuring
that "parent involvement,” the halimark of Head Start, means dads as well
s ntoms.

In the five minutes allotted to me today, I will focus on fathers and

the workplace, bricfly summarizing some of our key findings.
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First, let me ask you to take a brief test, what * call the WAT. You've
all heard of the SAT, I'm sure, the Scholastic Aptitude Test. The WAT is
the Workforce 2000 Aptitude Test. These days you can hardly attend »
business conference or read & business magszine without picking up
concern about our significantly changing demographics. Well, the WAT is
designed to test how attuned you saally are to the workforce of the future.

I usually administer the WAT in corporate scttings with a set of slides
as part of the specches and seminars I give o what | call DaddyStressTM,.
This setting would not allow members of Congress as well as the sudience to
see the slides, so 1 am going to ask you all to pretend that you have just seen
20 color slides (5 points for each correct answer!) of Americs's future
workforce.

What did you see? What different types of workers will we
increasingly have in our offices and factories?

When [ do this exercise in corporate settings. with audiences
including people in importast human resource planning positions, §
typically get the following answers: "Minorities ... women ... blacks
...seniors (that's because I include a slide of Arnoid Palmer)....working
mothers .... Hispanies .... Asisns . ... minorities ... women.”

Even though 30 percent of the slides portray men, nobody ever
mentions men and, more specifically, nobody gver mentions fathers. The
big story in corporate America these dsys is the diversity of our future
workforce -- how are we are going to prepare for apd assimilate their
different needa? But working fathers are invisible.

Put simply. we do not have & category in our language yet to think
about "working fathers” as a group that could have distinct needs. "Working

mother* means conflict: if a mother is working outside the home. who is
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caring for the children? “Working father”is a redundancy: meo work,
simple as that. Somebody else is cariog for and worrying about the children.

Not so.

Our research shows that fathers are increasingly experiencing
conflicts similar to mothers. Men are caught between today’s different set
of expectations sbout what it meaps to bea father, and yesterday's
workplace -- which assumes that women. and women alone, will or shouid be
caring for the children.

Over the last decade, the oumber of men reporting a sigatticant
conflict between work and family life has increased sixfold, from 12 percent
in 1977 to 72 percent in 1989,

Moteso thap is commonly or publicly realized, men are siruggling
with this issue too. But they often hide it or disguise it or are refuctant to
speak up about it because, in our socicty, men are not supposed tofeel
these sorts of conflicts.

Let me try to make visible to you what I call the “iovisible dilemma,”
the siruggles men fect berween their commitments to family and work. Let
me reveal just afew of the tactics mep use to be with their families because
they don't feel the workplace is father-frienaly.

First, there's the "avoid the supervisor ploy.” That's the man who
parks in the back lot so that at 5:30, when he has to dasi to the day care
center, he won't have to walk in front of his supervisor. And it’s the man
who leaves fifieen minutes after his boss 50 as not t¢ appesar uncommitted --
even though he is still taking two hours of pasperwork home.

Second, there's the "another meeting ploy." Meetings sre so

important in most companies that the only way some men fee! they can
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break away from work, even a1 & p.m. is by sayiog “I've got another meeting."
As ope mao said 10 me, *I never say that it’s a meeting with my family.”

Third, there's the “supevdad ploy.” Those are the guys who are trying
to give everything they can at work and still get home for their families.
They'll arrrive at 8 ar even 7 a.m. and lesve at § or 6 p.m., putting in 10 or 11
hours with oo lunch, and still they're often crticized for “leaving carly.”

These examples are all takeo from companies that wauld probably be
considered rather “family friendly,’ companies with progressive policies on
the books. But policy is ope thing; baving a corporate culture that enables
men 1o take advantage of thoss policies -- or to even feel comfortable about
their reponsibilities as employees and as parents -- is another.

In case it's not already clear, let me drive home my point with one last
czample reported with some embarrassment by a manager ata very
progressive company. When an expectant father came to make pians for
using the company’s ncw parental leave policy ~ widely praised in the
busioess press -- the manager said: "Bob, let me speak toyou as a friend,
not as & boss. | know you're entitled to parental leave. But take vacation
days instead. K you take a leave, you'll be branded around hese forever as
uncommitted.”

I conld go on at great length with story sfter story about "raen at
work.® One of the startling things about our research is just how many .0en
want (0 talk to us. When we schedule focus groups st compaoies, they often
have to add focus groups; men are delighted that, finally, somebody want to
talk to them, to hear about their difficultios in balancing woik and family.

And it is oot just middie ciass or managerial men. Even if they don’t
boast about it, there are blue colinr workers lsying cable and pipe all over

4
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Americs who need to dash home tofeed and bathe the kids because their
wives are going off to their evening jobs at the 7-11.

What can we do to begin making workplace policy and cufture more
family-friondly for fathers?

First, we can creste a policy context of support. Passage of federally
mandated leave through the Family snd Medical Care Leave Act would be
ope step in the right direction. And, our research suggests that itwould be a
beneiit to fathers. Three weeks ago the Families xnd Work Iostitute
released s groundbreaking pon-partisan study. "Beyond the Parental Leave
Debate," that examined the impact of mandated parental ieave infour
states. Among its findings were that the majority of employers did not incur
substantial costs or disruptions and that more {athers took time off.

Second, we must recognize that family leave is just & beginping. The
broader challenge facing America is how to create & more flexible
workplace, one that will allow us to respond to the needs of mothers and
fathers and. in doing 50, enable us to be more competitive.

Third, we must do exactly what this hearing has been called to do. As
a nation we must reframe our discussion of the workplace of the future and
of family-friendliness so that it includes fatbers. We must make visible
what is now the "invisible dilcmma® of the working father.

Usless we consider the needs of workiog fathers in our human
resource planning we will not truly be ready for the diversity. And unless we
inciude men in the work-family equation, we will perpetuate the current
pattern in which mep are handicapped by feeling they can’t risk more
involvement in family life, and women are denbly bandicapped: feeling they
have to "do it all" and being 1aken less seriously because of their family

responsibilities.

g0



36

Chairwoman Schroedes, members of Congress, pretend that lam
running my slide show again. Take 8 look at those workers who will
comprise Workforce 2000. I trust that this time there is no doubt ia your
mind that i is made up of blacks and women sod Hispanics and senjors and
working mothers and Asians -- sad working fathers.

i
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Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Lynn O'Rourke Hayes, we are very
happy to have you as the author of The Best Jobs in America for
Parents, so we are all wailing to find out what's going on and
where we should go apply. The floor is yours.

STATEMENT OF LYNN O'ROURKE HAYES. CO-AUTHOR, “THE BEST
JGBS IN AMERI“A FOR PARENTS,” CHEVY CHASE, MD

Ms. HavEs. It's a pleasure for me to be here, and I commend the
committee for holding this hearing. I'm only sorry that my three
sons were otherwise engaged this morning, so couldn't bring
them, but I did bring my brother, Michael O'Rourke, who is here,
and he is a working father who took time off this morning to learn
i little bit more about vpportunities that might be out there for

im.

1 am the co-author of The Best Jobs in America for Parents, and
I'm also the veteran of several flexible jobs. I've had the good for-
tune, as my family developed, to work at a director-level job shar-
ing experience, | worked four days as a Vice President, and I cur-
rently work about half time as Assistant to the President of Choice
Hotels International, and mostly at home, and 1 think my personal
experience has led me to have a lot of interesting experiences, and
also be able to share those with many of the fathers who are really
struggling at the workplace.

In recent weeks, the press has been full of reports about how
Americans are really aching for more time with their family, and a
rejection of the materialism of the "80s.

But, meanwhile, it's also been reported that the number one
health problem for women is stress, and the number one cause of
that stress is the act of balancing work and family.

Now, obviously, from the slant of today’s hearing, we know that
this is not only a woman's issue, or only a personal one, or only a
family issue. 'this problem of burnout, high stress, trying too hard
to have it all—to balance the extreme demands of combining
career with children, has become a pressing social issue and most
definitely a business issue.

Well, fortunately, there are a handful of smart{ companies that
are starting to do something about it. While there a few exceptions,
the most overwhelming reason these companies are making these
changes is because it makes good business sense to do it.

What is involved is a slew of benefit programs, some of which we
are hearing about this morning, that are designed to help parents
better balance the home/work equation. And, whiie the range of
programs includes adoption assistance, elder care programs, and
other programs that are also very important, I want to focus this
morning on workplace flexibility.

In the course of the research for The Best Jobs in America for
Parents, which does zero in on flexibility in the workplace, my co-
author and I spoke with hundreds of fathers and mothers who were
struggling with the intellectual, emotional and, in most cases, eco-
nomic issues that surround this issue.

Most of the people we spoke with were not unhappy with their
full-time jobs. It was not the job they had a problem with. In many
cases, they were deeply, deeply unhappy about the amount of time

42



38

ﬂt:fdhad left in their lives for their most precious commeodity, their
children.

A University of Maryland study reports that parents have been
spending, on a , only about 17 hours per week with their chil-
dren, and now that’s not surprising given that nearly 40 percent of
the labor force now consists of two-income households, where no
parent is home to meet the repairman, let alone the children when
they come home from school.

I truly believe that flexibility in the workplace can offer parents
at least partial relief from the overwhelming strain of trying to
balance too much with too few resources.

It's difficult to come up with very much hard data, and that's
largely because things are changing in the workplace so quicklgﬂ.
New programs come about daily, but some estimates are that
percent of all workers have some kind of flexible hours. A recent
Conference Board study indicates that 50 percent of large compa-
nies, and 30 percent of small companies, have flextime in place.
Job sharing and telecommuting, according to this particular study,
seem to be a little l=ss prevalent.

Whether they are officially sanctioned by the human resources
department or are negotiated individually between an er .ployee
and his or her individual manager, we know through ot own re-
search for the book, and by that of other companies lice Johnson
and Johnson, American Express and DuPont, who are leaders in
this field, that flexibility and, perhaps, not child care in the work-
place, ranks high, if not first, on the employees’ wish list.

There are other studies that indicate this as well. A study by
Robert Half International indicated that eight of ten American
men and women would be willing to sacrifice “rapid career
growth” to spend more time with their families. In fact, 75 percent
of the men opted fer a slower career path, where they could set
their own even full-time hours so that they could spend more time
with their families.

A nationwide Washington Post/ABC News poll found that more
than half of the working mothers and 43 percent of the working
gathers had cut back on their hours in order to be with their chil-

ren. .

What are we talking about when we talk about flexibility? We
are talking about things like job sharing, where two people split a
job; compressed wor'. weeks; extended work weeks; flexible sched-
ules; flextime; part-time work; and, what we often refer to in our
book as “shortened hours' or “shortened work weeks.” There seems
to be a stigma attached to the concept of a part-time worker. As a
result, we talk a lot about shortenecf hours, which can mean any-
thing from 15 minutes less in your work day to several hours.
There's also s ered hours, or telecommuting, sometimes called
“flex employees.”’

Significantly, some forms of flexibility offe: relief to the many,
many families who are, in fact, dependent on two incomes, by em-
ploying shortened hours, or telecommuting, or flextime, parents
can keep their careers on track, keep that all-important income
steady, and still carve out more time to be together, because the
extra benefit is this, that even with more time with even one
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parent, that means less time spent in day care and away from one
of their parents.

So, what do the companies that have been progressive, like Steel-
case, Aetna, Salt River Project and U.S. West stand to gain from
providing a flexible workplace? Well, more and more, they are
sterting to get results in this area.

One is something that our previous witness spoke about. The de-
mographic dilemma shows that the labor pool will be diminishins
and companies with the best policies will be able to attract an
then retain the brightest employees. They are seeing that they are
reducing their employee replacement costs. They are definitely
seeing increased productivity. Companies are getting iore loyalty
from these employees who have these flexible opticns. They are ex-

riencing reduced absenteeism. They see reduced turnover.

ey've enjoyed added recruitment power. Companies like IBM,
Proctor and Gamble and Steelcase all reported that their commit-
ment to work/faniily issues has definitely been a strong bargaining
ch’ilp in their recruitment efforts.
hey are also seeing improved morale. Emp)oivees who have a
chance to spend a little more time with their amilies are very
ﬁrateful and return to their job a little bit more ready to put in the
ours that they need to.

It's important to note that few companies have ail these policies
in place. Many have none, and others only have a few. The most
common approach has been to experiment with some of the op-
tions, and then move slowly toward expanding a grarder program.

Two, there are scores of individual arrangements, I know of sev-
eral even here on Capitol Hill, that may allude any formal study,
they don't show up on the official tallies, but they are here and
they are working well.

e important thing for us to note is that change is underway,
and the individuals, and the company leaders, and certainly those
here on the Hill who have bravely taken these first steps, deserve
our gratitude, and, more importantly, our continued encourage-
ment.

In the course of our research, we observed a couple of other
things 1 want to mention briefly. One is that the attitude of indi-
vidual managers, one very important element of the corporate cul-
ture, has everything to do with the success of flexibility in the
workplace. One example we encountered was in a bank where two
departments were doing effectively the same work, and in one case
the manager said that the course of their work did not lend itself
to flexibility, and in another department that was very similar, ’liob
sharers were performing those same functions beautifully. The
only difference was a difference in attitude.

e other thing we noticed was that success is often dependent
on a single individual, who is the champion of that kind of innova-
tion. One person can make a difference in creating a good path for
the people who come along.

And, what about specifically about fathers? It's interesting to me
that fathers, both new and old, are often the gate keepers to flexi-
bility, and with more management men either seeing their daugh-
ters and their sons struggling to balance all of this, or they are
part of a two-career family themselves, it's more possible that we
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will now see them saying yes to flexibility and no to the power
hours of the '80s.

Younger men, too, it seems have a few words to say to their
elders in the workplace, that they, too, are really suffering from
the stresses of working parenthood. And, it appears that the young-
er the man, the more vocal they sometimes become, scaling back
hours and taking a maternity leave, or refusing to travel have his-
torically not been steps on the fast track, but more and more these
men are willing to put their careers, perhaps, somewhat on the
back burner, and the health and happiness of their families and
themselves ahead of their careers, and they are willing to risk the
“wimp factor.”

What we are talking about here is not necessarily providing a
mommy track or a daddy track, but about providing a workplace
that is i;nportantly in support of the American family.

you.
[Prepared statement. of Lynn O'Rourke Hayes follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT or LynN O'Rourks HaYEs, Co-auTHOR, “TnE Best Joss In
AMERIcA POR PARENTS,” CHEVY CrASE, MD

tiood morning Madame Jchairmsn, distinguished sembers of the

committee and Quests.

My name 1S Lvan 0 'Rourke Haves. | am co-author of The Best
Jobs of America for Parents and a veteran of several flexible
ots. Recause | have had the <ood fortune to work for an
tnnovative esployer. (hoice Hotels Interpational, as my family
responsibhilities have evalved, so have mv robs. I have shared a
drrector level o, worked four days a week as & vice president
snd currently serve as  Assrstant to the FPresident of Choice,
worhineg about  halt time ang mostis st home. | am the mother of

three sors.

I oam srateful 1o the commitfee for bringing this pmportant
matier ta  the faretront  oand ! look fopward to vour copplete

frefrnes.

In recent  weeks, the  press has  bheen full  of reports that
AMEricans are mching tor o retarn fo basie values. the siople
f1te. more time with family smd 8 retection of the materialise of

the esghtires.
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Meanwhile. 1t has been reported that the number one health
probliem for women ts stress and the number one cause of that

stress is the act of balancing work and family,

As is evidenced by the slant of today's hearing, we know
that thrs is not only & womsan's 1ssue. Nor is it only a personal

issue. Ur only a family ssue.

This problem of burnout, hikh stress, tryinf toc hard to
have 1t 81l -- to batance the extreme demands of combining a
career with children. has become pressing sacisl 1ssue and most

definitely & business 1Ssue.

ind rather than put their heads n the sand, & handful of

sSRErt compantex are hefinning to do something about 1t.

khile there are a few exceptions, the most overwhe lming
reasan companies are  facriirtating change 1s gieple: 1t makes

good businesSs sense to do 1t.

khat has ervolved is a slew of beneftt programs desifned to
help parents better hatance the homeswork equatron. kWhile the
range of programs ncludes adoption assistance, elder c&are
Prograes, child care subsidies and referral services, today | am

herc to focus on workplace flexibility.
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in the course of the research for [he Best _Jobs In Americs
For Parents, which zerces 1n on flextbibity 1n the workplace., =y
co~authosr and | spoke with hundreds of parents who were
struggling with the intellectual, emot ional and 1n RoSt cases
econamtce 1Ssues that surtound the balance of work and family.
Yost were not unhsppy with the full time jobs they had. They were
simply unhappy., and I1h s BANY CaSEeS, deepiy unhapp¥. abaut the
amount of time left an therr lLives for thetr mosl precious

commodity: thetr children.

U lniverstty  of darviand  study reports  that parents have

-

been Spemiing on average onty about |7 hours per week with therr
chibdron, Fhat ‘s ot sourprising given that neariv 4¢ percent of
the labor force nom  copsists vt twer phcome  bouseholds shere no

prareat 1S home ty  meet the repatrman not (o mention the Kids

cominN tome from schoeot,

f tieeliene That tiesxtbel ity in the workplace oan affer
parents At teast partiaal ferltet from fhe overwhetmng ~trarn of

rrvrna fo bafance too muach with tag few rescurces.

White hard data 18 JJiffroult to came By, largely tecaunse

chanses are  coming about  soe guiekly, one estimate rnefic ates that
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20 percent of workers have flexible hours in some form. A recent
Conference Board study indicates that 30 percent of large
compantes and 30 percent of small! companies have flextime. Jab
sharing and telecommutin®, according to this study, are less

prevalent.

Whether thev are officially sanctioned by the human
resources department or are negotiated individually between an
emplovee and his or her manager, we do know through our own
research snd that of compsnies like Johnson and Jaohnson,
American Express and DuPont, that flexibility in the workplace

ranks bigh, if not first, on the employee wish list.

4 studv bv executive recruiters Robert Half International
was particularly striking. They found that e1ght of ten American
aen and women would be willing to sacrifice "rapid career
growth” to spend more time with their famrlites. In fact 75
percent of the men opted for & slower career path where they
could set the:rr own full-time hours and spend more time with

their families.

1 nattonwide Washington Post/ABC News poll found that asore
than half of the working mothers surveved and 43 percent of the
working fathers had cut back on their hours in order to be with

their chirldren.
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So just what do we mean bv Flexibility”

o Job sharing, where tweo people split the responsibilities af one

Jjob,

o Compressed work weeks, where an emplovee does a full time or 40

hour a week job 1n less than five days.

o Extended work weeks. where. for example, a six-day week 1s

comprised of shorter workdsys.

o Flexible schedules, tatlorind the jobs hours to meet the

specific needs of the i1ndividual.

o Flextime, allowing the emblovee to vary theirr starting and

quitting times while strl]l working & standard day.
o Par. time. & schedule of 10 or fewer hours & veek.

o Shortened hours or shortened work weeks. We found that there
was somewhat of & stigma sttached to the concept of “part-time’,
AS & result we refer throuRhout our book te shortened hours which
may @mean anvthing from [5 minutes less each day to several fewer

hours a week,

DY)
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o rthey are peducing their esployee replascement costs. As the
labor pool shrinks, the cost of replaciog expeprsenced and skilled
emplevees will  rrse. Some analysts place the cost as high as ohe
and & halfl times an emplovee's annual salary. That's 1n addition
to whatever 1nvestaents the company may have made :n that perscon

during their emploveent.,

o Increased productivity, People n less than  fuell time jobs-
partjcularly the groming number of professionals- report that
they are working smarter vather than fonter., With  fewer hours te
Nert the pob dope. there 15 less time spent on casual conversation
Al nobessen! pat ety ptaes, Further, these emplovees report to
warrh fresh and tetrenedd ot wome of thetr presiaus confliots over

balancing home s Nobkh.

Gocampanges are NeftinN more fovalty From therr  emplovees . Mapy
pearent s we PRl pomenrl Pop Jhe tieest o cofs b Aimetson popr barents,
reparted aorenewed senise af jovalty ta the  empforer who provided
£ tleexibhle werna el ron tors them, bt mny seem frhe 4 spall
wlterstion to an eomplaoser s means % lot to u purent jJusgiing
v heddiites, Fery eengmprle, 4 shitt o work  honrs of a4 omere S¢

@rnutes can e liminate the need Por befare Sohool cste,

or Mesfrre e mbsentee tsm. o tors L3 AN 3 KN ~e haod conterences and
aother persansd o uappognteeonts  can he hamfled Jdurisns time off

rathesr than squeesrsed or snuck tn Juring work hours,

\
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¢ Reduced turnover. Many parents on flexible schedules we
1ntervieved, as well as others who participated in other studies

plan to return ta work full-time when the demands of ralising

~children lessens. Meanwhile, many mothers facing the end of

ERIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:

maternity lesve gaid they would not have returned to work had

they not had a reduced scheduie.

o Added reciuit®ent power. Compantes like [BM. Proctor and Gamble
and Steelcase reported ta us that their coamitRent to work and
family 1Ssues s & strong bargaining chip 1n their recruirtment

efforts.

o Improved morafe. hile tt is verv difficult te quant:fy. msany
of the flesible job holders we interviewed reported ar i1ncreased
sense af well beink oh the job and at hose. Approximately 70
percent of those who -participates ‘o a Catalyst study reported

hetter morale after switching to more flexitble arrangements.

1t is impartant to note thar lew compantes have all these
polircres tn place. Many have none. (Others have only & few. The
most common approach among t he lerdrny compantes has heen to

experiment with one -- child care or fltextble hours -- for

— ,")
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example, and to move slowiy tomard expanding the program. Too,
there are scores of i1ndividual arrangepepts that elfude sny formal
study, that do not show up 1 Lhe official tallies. Nevertheless,
the important thing 1s that chande s underway. And those
inddividuals amnd company le’aders who have bravely faken these

frrst steps deserve cur gratitude and contirnued encouragement.

It was our observation that the attitwde of managers, one
element of the corporate culture, had evervihing to do with the
surecess of  flesvibelety th the workplace, [n one jnstance, we
encountered two bank departments performiag  the same function.
e group  sargued that the natiire of their work made 1t stoply
imposstble to employ flextbility. In the other simrlar setting, a
parr of  jobh sharers  performed the same functians beasutfully.

The opntsy Jrfference was aAttrtude.

M ten succens ts ddependent an ~ sinatle sty betual or a
champron of  such rtanovation, At Cheorce Hotels Internationsl, the
wortd's  largest franchise hoelel chata, @y boss  and ompany
president Jerry Petatt has made 1t clear to carporate emplaoyvees
that families Jdo matler, He doesn't hesitate to  leave early te
tahe obhe  of s three Sans tor the <doctor's or to aftend a

sportimd event. He wnas an early advocate of  job sharing wnd has
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repeatedlv created innovative alternatives for parents struggling
to keep all! the balls 1n the arr. His personsl attitude and
example has created s culture conductve to & variety of creative
snd family-friendiy esploy=e Programs throughout the

international companv.

wWhat about fathers’

fnterestingiv, fathers, new and old, are often the
gatekeepers to flexibility. And with aore managcment aen
empathizing with the struggles of thetr sons or daushters or more
tikely, experiencing their own two-career-rhaos, the chances of
them saving “ves” to more flexibrlity and “no” to power hours is

tACreasIng.

tawager men, 1t seeas, have 8 fow words fo sav to therr
elders 1n the workplave. They, toa, need reltef from the stresses
of working parenthood. 4m11t appears, the vounger the man, the
more vocal. khile scatink back hours, tAKInR 8 paternity leave or
refusing to travel have hardlv been viewed as steps on the fast
trsck. more and more Men are putting the health and happiness of
their families and themseives ahead of their careers, They are

willing to risk the 'wimp factor.’
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Shat we are taiking abent here 18 not about providing a
womm:s track or a daddv track. but about praviding a workplace
that ts 1n support of the American familyv. When more ol corporate
America recofntzes that today's workforce 18 rairsing the
workforce of lomo ‘ro., that s happy, tulftlled emplovee 15 also &
product tve ope, that employees with children are parents first
e esnlovees  secont. then we will have created sopething of

whtch we can all be proud.

Thaank vou very puch.
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Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Well, 1 want to thank our panel. I
think it's a very diversified panel, and we really appreciate what
you brought to this whole thing.

Beverly, how did you get the City of Los Angeles to be so progres-
sive? I mean, that’s an amazing gmgram that you've put ther.

Ms. King. ] think the way we did it is by showing the productivi-
ty improvement, the loss due to productivity, losses due to family
care, and then developing programs and measuring the improve-
ments.

We take note when we notice that we've lost $1 million in a pre-
ceding year, and, of course, thos. Zollars are old now, they were
1985 dollars, and we can document very clearly substantial im-
provements, and those improvements are over $1 million.

Basically, we can show about a $2.50 return for every dollar we
put into child care kinds of programs. That's a significant improve-
ment for us, and we like to see those kinds of dollars.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. It's amazing to me that that word
doesn’t get out more, because I think the common wisdom is that
those programs are nice frills, but they don’t pay back. So, I think
that you are saying they do pay back, and you can document it.

Ms. KinG. I'm saying that they do pay back, and the documenta-
tion is not difficult at all.

For example, our turnover is seven percent, but the turnover of
peoyle that participate in those programs is two percent. They
don't leave.

In addition to that, one of the other witnesses mentioned the im-
portance of recruitment, and recruitment, especially in labor short-
age areas, is important whether you are talking about recruiting
engineers or you are talking about skilled craft employees that are
hard to replace as well.

We find that in a tight labor market, where we are recruiting,
that the existence of family care programs is a significant contribu-
tor to their decision to come work for us, whether or not they have
children. And, that is because they realize that they will have chil-
dren, and the chances are they will for the greatest number of the
people, and also it says something about the employer, that it's a
caring employer, and that it's a company that they want to work
for. So, they make a decision for us, and we're pleased with that.

Chairwoman ScHroEPER. Gordon Rothman, obviously, you and
Hannah get along very well. I should take mothering classes from
you, mine were never quite that good that long.

But, CBS, I'm very impressed, you are saying real}ir there was no
pressure, that you really felt that you were perfectly free to take
this, and that you won't be labeled with a “‘wimp image” or what-
ever that Ms. Hayes was talking about. I think that's wonderful, 1
mean, you totally feel free to say that.

Mr. HMAN. I do. I can’t speak for every unit at the organiza-
tion, but I can speak for ours, 1 can speak for the people for whom
I work. I felt that, yes, my absence is going to cause other people to
have to do more work to make up for my absence. It's not free, it's
not easy, but it is something that our organization, CBS This Morn-
ing, has traditionally done. We've had any number of female col-
leagues who have taken maternity leave, and the rest of us hun-
kered down, worked that much harder to take up the slack.

| .
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1 am unaware of anyone who has taken this substantial a pater-
nity leave. Typically, a father will take a couple of weeks when the
child is born. But, 1 have had no indication that my situation is
considered any differently from the situations of the women who
have taken maternity leave.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Well, we think real men take paternity
leave, so we are very pleased that you did that, and I can tell from
the interrelationship, it's more precious than gold. I mean, she has
got a buddy, you are right, and she knows it.

Jim, you are there, and you have your 16-year old who doesn’t sit
on your lap anymore, but I remember when you had the 16-year
old here as a much younger person. You have been a role model for
fathers for an awfully long time, and I now hear pediatricians who
are talking about they can honest to goodness test the difference
between children who have had involvement with their fathers and
those who haven't, that there's a difference in IQs, and a difference
in sense of humor, self-worth, the whole thing. Have you seen any
of those studies?

Mr. LEVINE. Yes. I think you are going to be hearing about that,
actually, in the second panel. There's quite a lot of evidence that I
think Norma Radin and others will be talking about.

What I might emphasize, rather than that, is, what I'm seeing is
the extent to which men are really coming forward and saying,
hey, what about my needs? We found in our research, and also the
seminars, we'd show up to do focus groups, a fascinating thing has
happened, we go to a company expecting to run a group with one
group of ten to 15 men, and the company will say, you know, wt
put the word out, so many men want to be part of this research, or
want to be part of this seminar, want to be talked to. It’s like, this
is the first time anybody has said to them, what are your issues,
what are your needs?

And, again, it's part of this invisible latent phenomena, we don’t
ask, and the men don't talk very easily about these issues, but
given the opportunity, and when the company sanctions it and
says, spend two hours of company time talking to this guy once and
just fird out if you have work/family issues. It's amazing how
many men show up and the extent to which the problems are simi-
lar to the problems of working mothers.

So, we've got, [ think, the big news is that something very real is
going on throughout America from corporate offices to blue collar
workers, and I think it's here to stay, and as a society we better
pay attention and start doing something about it.

Chairwoman ScHrROEDER. Thank you for making it more visible.
That's very helpful.

Ms. Hayes, one of the problems we often hear from part-time
workers, we're beginning to hear from people who thought if they
moved to part time they would have more flexibility, there are
some who have found that their employers really are expecting
them to work full time with part-time pay, and they are saying,
well, because you are not full-time, and you have this flexibility,
you pay a very heavy cost in salary, et cetera. How do we make
sure employers don't abuse this, or don’t abuse parents’ wishes to
have that flexibility?

r
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one of the things that—we did find a little bit
of that, particuiarly, in the early stages of flexible arrangements,
but the 1 can give to both employers and employees is to
have as much of that whenyouputtogetherg:ur
mmltoworkpart you know, put it on paper and have
parties sign it so it’s clear, I will work this number of hours,

mmeinmhisorherdayoﬁ‘it'sthemeasaskingagﬁ-ﬁme

sense to the other person, sometimes that helps.
Ithinkthelmthepmgmmsminphee,thelessoﬁenyou

see that kind of

Chairwoman Scuroxpzr. Okay.

Well, thank you very much. Let me yield time to some of my dis-

co! now.
do you have any questions for the panel?

Beverly, I, too, was interested in the that you are so
dwwlved in, but I think you that for every dollar
in the return was something like $2.20 or $2.50.

Ms. Kinc. $2.50.

Mr. Barezrr. $2.50 was it, thank you.

Ms. King. Yes.

Mr. W.An&lthinktmualso that the retention
rate was go much greater, is that fair? I think you said there was a

seven mnt curnover?

Ms. . We have & seven percent turnover, but with family
care participants it's two percent.

Mr. BaszeeTT. So, the retention is really a factor.

Ms. Kina. Yes, it is.

Mr. BagreTT. In the initial stages, did you find that some of the
males were reluctant to become involved in it? Was there some ret-
icence on the of some of the employees?

Ms. Kinc. Yes. I think that there’s been a lack of role modeis
B e e it parans clases s a5 we bad sdch

n e parent and as we cli-
tional men go thmungams, then we started additional
fathering-type programs. .

Onca people came thro those programs, we developed mis-
si and now out in field yards, actually there nre groups of
fathers that get together forming like a network, so that, they've
developed their own warm lines, and they’ve developed their own
fgﬂw—mp r groups, single-pmetan ntﬁsfl'aqs:g: g:etige. for example,

one we've seen spontaneously er.

Mr. BagreTT. That's in .

Ms. King. It is when you see ropleeominginthatareba-
sically line workers, with their heavy-duty hard hats coming in, sit-
ﬁ.ﬁrat 5:00 a.m. in the morning discussing child care tipe.

It BARR;H'. Yt:.a bee ch talking this

seems to me that we've been pret’y mu i is morning
about intact families.

Ms. King. Yes.
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Mr. BARRETT. Give me a rough breakdown on how your people
would break out. Do you have a lot of dysfunctional families, are
they intact? _

. KinG. We follow the typical United States pattern, that is,
we would be below the State of California in terms of the number
of married couples living together. About a third of our people are
;noi;act families, and I believe in California that percentage is in the

Mr. BARRETT. So, it does pretty well follow.

Ms. King. Yes, it does. )

Mr. BARRETT. Ves, thank you.

Ms. Kinc. In fact, we are serving a number of step-parenting
kinds of situations, we are serving grandparents, extended fami-
lies, where the children have come home and the grandparents are
now takinﬁacare of the grandchild. We have adoptive parent situa-
tions. We have domestic ership family situations. So, we don't
have Ozzie and Harriet kind of situations.

Mr. BargrEeTT. Thank you.

Ms. King. In the same percentages as other states.

Mr. BargerT. And, Lynn, I was particularly interested in your
importance, the importance that you placed on flexibility, which
cal.:lg]ht a familiar ring to me. Is it your experience that people
would prefer to have %ﬁexibility, as opposed to the mandates
ar;igro b{ some today?

. Haves. I think it has been my experience in the course of
the research that everyone’s struggle to balance, they st le in
different ways, and flexibility allows them to solve their problems
in a way that suits them best, rather than a particular set of prede-
termined circumstances.

Mr. Barrerr. Do you see any particular problem between an
urban area covering the subjects at hand, as opposed to a rural
area, where, perhaps, the labor force is not as great, gerhafs, the
technology is not there, do you see an rticular problem? I come
from a very s ly populated part of the country, a rural part of
the country. you elaborate just a bit?

Ms. Havss. I can’t imagine any particular specific problems in
that regard, but, again, that's where flexibility, as the number one
benefit, can, perhaps best serve those circumstances.

Mr. BarreTT. Okay, thank you very much.

Thank you.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Thank you.

Co man Peterson.

Mr. N. Thank you.

Just, I think we are at the right time to talk about this. The
country is going through quite a metamorphous, it seems to me, in
its social structure, and so what we are doing here, and CBS, and
Los Angeles and others, are apparently leading the way in some

areas.
I would be interested to know, when did CBS start their rather
open-door policy there to allow a greater parental leave project?
Mr. RotHMAN. I'm afraid I don’t know the answer to that. I
know that my policy book has been ug on the shelf in my office for
two or three years, and that’s where 1 found this detail. So, appar-
ently, it's not a very new policy.

O
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Mr. PETERSON. Okmbut you are the &ioneer in this regard, as
far as the male, as father leaving the workplace, or you did
s\?tthattheydidtake.fmmtimewtime.atwo-m leave
period, you are taking an extended one beyond that, I presume.

Mr. gmw 1 am not familiar with other CBS fathers who
have taken as extended a leave as I have. I know a number who
have taken two, three, four weeks.

Mr. PerersoN. Okay. Ms. King, in your pm‘ject, did you see an
animosity in the other employees who aren't in this project?
there, because they are in, they are away from some of the
benefits we would have otherwise had, is there a feeling at all
in that regard?

Ms. Kinc. We have not experienced that. I think that one of the
things that’s importunt to note that, in benefits administration, for
example, health insurance, which we're all very familiar with, it's
:ﬁected that only one out of every seven people that are insured

actually utilize the benefits.

So, we have not really experienced kind of a reverse backlash,
that people think,tgg:h. they are getting something I'm not getting.

In fact, I think there has been an opposite reaction, of, boy, I'm
gnd somebody’s taking care of that problem, whether the problem

a man who is missi work,orleavin%workearly, or a woman
that’s missing work, or leaving work early, it makes no difference
if you are a supervisor that’s got an employee that’s got a problem.

t me go back and answer a question that you previously .
how lo the CBS leave policy been in effect? In the case of the
City of Angeles, leaves have been available to men, as well as
women, they are unpaid leaves, for over 30 .

During the 27 years that I have been with the City, I have only
known of two people who have—two men who have taken that
leave, even though that leave is available and is granted, I have
on%‘:nown of two people who have taken that leave.

t leave also provides by right automatic return to the former
position at the former pay grge, and that is a negotiated agree-
ment with the unions that represent our employees.

What that tells me is that, while family leaves are an important
cornerstone of a “family friendly” workplace, that we have to look
for other alternatives, and I concur with one of the previous wit-
nesses that that cornerstone is a flexible work place that provides
other alternatives.

Mr. PeTeRsON. Well, that’s interesting that they haven't, you just
haven't had that many. Do you intend, or would you project that
this is changing, that, perhaps, more fathers will take advantage of
that policy?

Ms. King. I think that more will take advantage of it, but it will
be extremely short term, for the same reason, that family leave,
the length of family leave is declining for women in the workplace
as well, and, that is, you can’t afford it, and our's is without pay.

I think other options, such as a flexible workplace, or a flexible
work schedule, are going to be far more desirable for men and for
women.

Mr. PeETERSON. And, we have to realize we are talking, didn't you
say one third of your participants are single parents, is that true?

Q
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Ms. King. What 1 said was that, only one third of our partici-
pants are in a traditional marriage.

Mr. PeTERSON. That’s even worse.

Ms. KinG. Meaning, an intact family.

Mr. Pererson. Okay, but it aggravates it even worse.

Ms. KinG. Not that they both work, but a traditional family.

Mr. PeTeRson. Right.

I noted, with some humor actually, that you were able to meas-
ure that the stress was reduced ay 45 percent, 1 would suggest, per-
haps, you ought to come to the House and maybe measure some of
that ur here, and we could determine where our stress levels are.
I'm not sure that that's possible.

Chairwoman ScHrOEDER. That's a very good point.

Ms. King. We did find that, but it's also very difficult to meas-
ure, and that was a self-measurement by participants.

Mr. PerErsoN. Ms. Hayes, in your study, and in your research,
did you find that some industries were much more potentially able
to give flex hours, versus—or flexibility in employment, versus and
others, and did you find some that could not, period, give that op-
portunity?

Ms. Havgs. I think it’s easier to categorize it by jobs. The most
flexible industries seemed to be those in which the jobs are more
often independent, journalism, for example, is one where we found
an awful lot of people working at home, or sharing jobs, or working
reduced scheduies.

But, most of the research that we did, and others have done, has
been focused on large companies, and that's where these changes
seem to begin, but I think that there are a lot of small companies,
as well, that are doing it a little bit more informal&y.

But, again, it has everything to do with the individual position,
whether or not it can work. It can work in management situations,
which a lot of people think that it can't, but it’s a situation where,
for it to be the most effective, and to provide the most productivity,
it has tq~—d)srou have to kind of look at each individual job and see
which kinds of ﬂexibilithm suits that particular job.

Mr. PETERSON. Okay. Thank you.

And, Mr. Levine, you've pretty well, 1 think, established the

problem. What's your solution? Where should we go? What's the di-
rection? Is it education? Is it promotion? Is it mandate? Where are
you on this point?
_ Mr. LevinNe. Well, I think it’s a mix of things. The short answer
is, everywhere at once. I think it's not just a matter of the corro-
rate sector, I think it is very much the educational sector. It's
really throughout the life cycle of the family.

If you look at this in a sense from the time that a family is
formed, 1 think we can make strides if we start to—if we have a
medical system that starts to put the father back in the picture,
that's begun to happen, compared to 20 years ago we have a much
higher participation of fathers present at the time of child birth
than we did. The norms have completely changed. Some hospitals
are now offering postpartum courses for fathers, to help fathers,
not just mothers, start off on the right foot. Many men who feel
uncomfortable about hathing or fi ing a baby are getting some
support from the social context, educational programs, social sup-
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Fort programs for fathers to help them deal with the transition to
atherhood, not just at the workplace, but in general,
I think creating a policy context which allows for parental leave
for either mothers or fathers, so that men and women can have a
choice is an important step, but it's really a broad issue that we've
got to address in many, many ways. I think the two keys to it are,
exibility, which has reaily been stressed here, and, second, visibil-
ity and education, really just becoming aware as a society that fam-
include mothers futhers, and to provide the sorts of sup-
port for children in this society where more and more families re-
quire two incomes. We need fo put dad back in the picture. We
need to give him some supgort so that he can be supportive to his
kids, and to mom, so that the whole family can be as well-function-

i Parenso
r. N. All right, thank you very much, and ] thank
Madam Chairlady for doing this hearing. I think it's very apprcpri-

ate.

I really do think we are the Y in the road in our societal views
on this point, and I think you are going to see more and more fa-
thers get involved in this use of the obvious deterioration of
the family, that's been a major point, and pmbabl{. one of the rea-
sons why we are at the point we are, because fathers are kind of
opted out. We need to get them back involved.

Chairwoman SciHroEDER. Congressman Klug.

Mr. Kruc. I went to my 20th high school reunion last weekend,
and discovered that most of the folks in my age group, we’re all 38
now or so, most of all have little kids. I've got a two and six-year
old, and, in fact, as we went around the room it was rare to find
anybody who had a son or a daughter over the age of ten.

muestion is, ] want to follow up on one of the points you had,
Ms. Hayes, about the fact that most of your research at this point
has focused on major corporations, and you find Honeywell, and
3M, and r banks and major insurance companies really lead-
ing the trend in this kind of flexibility in work force. But, are there
small companies out there that you've seen personally, or either of
the other panelists, that you look to as role models that maybe
have 20 or 30 employees that don't have the kind of flexibility that
allows them to trade one worker for another worker if somebody is
gone for a while?

Ms. Haves. I saw lots of, and it's mostly anecdotal, small compa-
nies. It's very logical for small companies. You don't grow in, you
know, one-person increments most often, you can’t afford to add
groups of people, Xou maybe can afford to add the work that a part-
time person would do.

You might need the commitment that a mother who can give
{ou 30 hours a week hapg‘i)ly will give you, but can’t provide 40

ours, that works well for both parties.

I think often times small companies, entrepreneurial people, are
the first to perform these kinds of innovative practices, and I think
small business is doing it in a very widespread way, but it's very
difficuit to find any research on that.

Mr. Krue. Either of the other panelista?

Mr. Leving. Yes, I'd like to just comment. One of the—F'd sup-
port that point, and just add by saying that, what you see among
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large corporations that are moving to create a more flexible work-
place is, the elimination of so many job classifications, that is, the
movement towards high-performance work teams, which allows for
flexibility, really is interchanging job roles. Instead of having 40
job classifications, some companies reduced that down to two
or three job classifications, meaning that workers are sharing more
the types of that they are doing at the workplace.

The model, it really approaches much more that of the small
company within a large company. The point being that we are
using human resources, the tial of people, to do work inter-
changeably much more effectively, which is increasing productivity
on the one hand, and also allowing people to be interchangeable,
and, therefore, create a more flexible workplace.

So, the fact is, small companies have the possibility of creating a
flexible workplace in many cases, and big companies are moving in
that direction.

Mr. KruG. There’s some references—I'm sorry, go ahead.

Ms. Kinc. I was going to say that my experience is that it’s the
medium to large companies that have the real difficulty in adapt-

ing.

gmall companies have personal kinds of experience, and they are
small enough to easily make the change, but the large companies
are the ones that say, oh, we couldn’t do that. We would have to
negotiate that, or we have rules, we couldn’t possibly do that.

nd, what happens, it's a matter of, you have competing values,
;nd the larger the workplace, the more competing values that you
ave.

We have to have more weight assigned to having a “family
friendly” workplace, and once we do that, I think you will find
oltl};er arge corporations saying, you know, I think we could do
that.

Mr. KLu. When you did your research on this, and looked at in-
creasing demands for this kind of flexibility in the workplace, you
mentioned I know, a couple of you indicated in your statements
that it's now become a recruiting tool, that people want companies
that are more like this. But does the demand for this kind of serv-
ice rise with income, or rise with education, or rise if it's more of
an intact family, or less intact family? Does it cut across the board?
Demographically, who wants these services, and who is more likely
to use them?

Ms. Haves. I think that I found that everybody wants them, but
it is an economic issue for a lot of people, and that’s why—and a
lot of people can’t afford to work part time or to cut back, but
that's why I encourage people to look at telecommuting, or look at
flex time, or look at compressed work weeks, because those are
ways you can spend more time with your family, but you still bring
home the full-time pay check. That's a very viable option.

Mr. Leving. I found that among blue collar workers, often be-
cause there's a lot of pressure for more income, fathers often want
more work time, but in order to have more work time they really
need a more flexible and sugggtive employer, somebo&rawho can
provide or help provide affo le child care, say, so t they—
these are often families where the guy is working. you know, eight
or ten hours a day, he’s getting home and his wife is running off to
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the 7 Eleven to do an evening job, and what they are looking for is
the sort of support from somewhere which doesn't exist often
enough in the community ts give them the slack for covering the
child care arrangements between them.

Those are the sorts of arrangements, that's the sort of type of
family supportive care that Beverly King was talking about, that
can make a huge difference, and it's certainly a demand that I see
from blue collar, as well as white collar families.

Ms. King. It is an economic issue, but there are many programs
that can be developed at very, very low cost. It didn’t cost a large
corporation very much, for example, to loan out beepers. It does
not cost A large corporation very much to provide parenting semi-
nars on lunch hours, or before the work shift, even if that's at 5:00
a.m. in the morning before crews go out into the field.

It does not cost very much to provide for automatic payroll de-
ductions for child care, it's just one more blip on the computer.

These kinds of programs, if they are a priority for a corporation,
can be done, and can be done at very low cost and at very, very
high return for a company.

r. KLug. Thanks very much.

Chairwoman ScrroepER. Hannah, a present came for you, it's a
little commercial from the Chair, it's a bibs that says “Future Presi-
dent.”” We designed it, being very presidential up here.

Congressman Santorum.

Mr. SANTORUM. Thank you.

As a new father—I have a daughter who is two months old—1
can tell you I'm experiencing a Jot of what I'm hearing here. I am
txzing to figure out how much time there is in a day to take care of
what I'd like to do back home and be a new Congressman in addi-
tion to a new father. So, it's been a busy year.

I apologize for coming in late, and maybe this was already ad-
dressed, and just if each of you could answer. What do you see, if
any, as the government's role in providing flexibility? it almost
sounds like the government's role is to restrict flexibility. We don’t
do very well at providing flexibility, we seem to say, well, this is
the righy way, or this is the wrong way. What sort of things would
you suﬁest in providing flexibility?

Ms. Haves. Well, I think there are a lot of things that—a lot of
grand things that could be done, but there's one small thing that
each of you could do today, and that is to provide flexibility to your
own staffs.

Mr. SanTtoRrUM. | do that.

Ms. Haves. You do that.

Mr. SANTORUM. ] sure do.

Ms. Haves. Well, great, you are ahead of the game.

I think a lot of people, a lot of companies, individuals, look to
Congress to set an example, and I know of a lot of arrangements
that exist on the Hill, and other parts of government that are pri-
vately and quiet!{ negotiated, but they are sometimes afraid, you
know, to even tell their neighbors or their friends for fear of losing
those arrangements.

And, sometimes, I know I've seen this in my own company, and
certainly in a lot of the people I spoke with, that while there may
not even be formal arrangements put together yet, it's very much a
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creep scenario, where you make one work and use it as an exam-
ple, and it spreads very quickly.

But, congratulations on your own efforts,

Mr. Santorus. Thank you.

Mr. Leving I'd like to say, and this does reiterate a point | made
earlier, there is an opportunity at hand through the Family and
Medical Leave Act. It doesn’t specifically address the issue of flex
time at the workplace, but it indirectly does, because the paint
here is that employers are often reluctant to create a more flexible
workplace because they think it can't be done, because they are
living with images of a workplace of the t, and rigid rules,
which, in fact, new experience suggests don’t hold anymore.

Our recent studies, the Families and Work Institute, on mandat-
ed leave in four states, indicate that there were no major disrup-
tions L r business costs for mandated parental leave, and, in fact, in
the case of fathers, more men were able to take more leave.

So, I think that the government has an opportunity to provide a
context, and if you think of parental leave as one element of an
overall workplace flexibility package, the more experience we have
with employers realizing, hey, you know, it's not so bad, in fact, not
only could we manage it, but I'm breeding greater loyalty and com-
mitment in my employees, that will make it possible or provide an
incentive for more employers to be flexible and say, you know,
there may be other things we can try here as well. Maybe it's not
just around childbirth, the child rearing years go on and on, as you
will soon discover. You will find it’s not just around the birth of
your baby, but taking him or her to pre-sc ool, the school play, the
after-school soccer game, little league, whatever it's going to be,
how do we make it possible for parents to feel that the%r are really
involved with their kids and stilrresponsible employees?

There's a fear among employers, give employees an inch and
they'll take a mile. All the research shows quite the reverse, given
them an inch, they'll give a mile, and we have an opportunity
through federal legislation to make it possible for, or make it a
mandate for employers to help create a context in which employees
will be given the inch, and 1 think both employees and employers
will return the mile.

Ms. KinG. I think in addition to the Family and Medical Leave
Act. support for that, there are other kinds of programs that your
continuing support is important. I'm speaking of Section 125 of the
IRS Code, which would be the Dependent Care Assistance Program,
the other kinds of tax supports through unreimbursed medical, as
{.ou will find no matter how good a medical leave program or medical

ealth insurance program you have, there will always be some costs
that will not be covered.

There are other kinds of programs that you can support witu in-
dustries, people in the areas that you represent. It's very important
to them what rou think. If you support a “family friendly” work-
place, they will know that and will respond to it, and I think what
your position on it is is important.

Mr. SantorumM. What would you suggest? I mean, frankly, the
reason | asked the question is, I'm not one that necessarily thinks
the government needs to do that, that we, as individuals who are
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looked at as leaders in our community, have a role to play in doing
it.

I think what you were just saying, which is trying to institute
some sense of family into the workplace, what would you suggest
as an individual Congressman I can do back home to maybe instill
those t of values into the workplace?

Ma. KinG. For example, in the next newsletter to your constitu-
ents, as you talk about the experience of having a new child in

ur home, that you specifically talk about some of the conflicts of

ancing work and family, and that you know that other people
who are your constituents have that same problem, and that what
you personally have done with your own staff are things that they
can do in their work environment, and that you support that.

Mr. SanTorRUM. Does anybody else have any 8 tions? You
are not excluded from contributing if you'd like. Anything else that
you could suggest that I could do back home?

Ms. Haves. Well, again, just as this hearing is doing today, bring-
ing these issues to the forefront. I mean, particularly in the area of
fatherhood, as we all discussed tod~y, people are afraid to talk
about it. People talk about it one on one, they talk about it in their
kitchens, they talk about it at small parties. but it's not something
that's really out there, that fathers feel comfortable to the extent
that they should to be participants. You know, the sneaking out
the door to go to the baseball game, it's a lot more acceptable to
say you had a flat tire on the way to work, rather that to say you
needed to take your child to the doctor. I mean, to get it out there,
you know, hold hearings in your state, I mean, make sure that

ple understand that being a parent is more important than
ing an employee.

Mr. Leving. 1 think since you want to work with the business
community, working with your local Chambers of Commerce to,
again, make this issue more visible locally, the way this hearing is
trying to make it visible nationally.

I think, my hunch is, you will be surprised at the number of men
coming forward saying, hey, this is our issue too, we want to figuie
out what to do, and you probably will find solutions within your
own community of ways which local employers have found to meet
some of the needs that may be sitting right under your nose,
maybe not exactly the same as the one from Los Angeles Depart-
ment of Water and Power, but local solutions that can then be de-
veloped and made to flourish right in your own backyard.

Mr. RotHMAN. You asked what you personally can do back in
your district, and I'm less inclined to think that the immediate
answer is legislation. I think there is 80 much that we need to do in
changing attitudes. I've heard this “wimp factor’ question, which I
think is so absurd.

The work that I've done in trying to keep her needs satisfied
every day, it's the most exhausting thing I've ever done in my life.
There's nothing wimpy about it.

As a new father——

Nil‘r;?SAmnuu. See the circles under my eyes from staying ur: at
night?

LAY ]
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Mr. LevinNg. Yes, Maybe it's an opportunity for you to show your
constituents that sharing in child care responsibilities is something
that real men do, and real congressmen can do.

Mr. SantoruM. Thank you.

Walsh. -

Mr. Wawsn. Thank you, Madam Chairwoman. .

I have three children of my own, and I've found, given the job
%lha&and l::f:ts:emo;lhenemrmembem, Rxcul);ax;dgoott. will

too, that one y you are going to get to see your
kids when you are working this ;:b is to take them with you wher-
ever you go, and people love to see you with them.

I'll just tell you a brief , I thought of as kind of a watershed
in local politics at home, and that was, when I was first
for Ci il, there was a fellow who was running for Mayor.
We just had our first child, he had seven, and we were sharing
a dais at a Memorial Day celebration, and we were m!kim
our children, and I noted after the conversation that I had
more diapers that day than he had in his entire lifetime as a

parent.

And, I told him I thought he missed something ir. that. He said,
“Yes, I know I missed something all right,” but he just never got
the point, you know, the idea if you give an inch they'll take a
mile, he was concerned that his wife would take a mile and he
would do all the diapers from then on.

But, I think that the world is changing, and whether we man-
date the world to change or we don't, it is changing, and it will
change, and for the better.

The question, I guess, that I have is that, Mr. Levine mentioned
that the blue collar worker feels the pressure to work more, for
more money, because it's always vretty much been the way it's
been. Do you see a trend in the country toward more collective bar-
gaining for parental leave benefits?

One of the problems that I see is, everybody has the same health
insurance. Y(itfu M.Yecﬁlhawmmnmemnofhe&
care, maybe if you are lucky some dental, perhaps, even eyeglass,
but everybody's is the same, husbands and wives are identical. Is
there a trend towards more collective bargaining for parental
leave, or that sort of a familial benefit, as opposed to financial or
health, and, if not, wh&jx;ot?

Mr. Lgving. Well, is beginning—these sorts of family care
benefits are beginning to be included, are ized by unions,
and have been over the last number of years, as the sorts of things
to bring to the negotiating table.

I think there's a growing concern that these are, in fact, the
needs of the broad workforce.

As for the broader point, I'm not sure if I understood your point
about health care, my understanding is that there’s quite a large
number of Americans, in fact, who aren’t insured by any sort of
health care, did you mean that everybody—that we have a cookie
cutter e‘?proach. that it's not tailored to individual needs?

Mr. Waisss. Yes. That's the way—I mean, the companies that do
offer health care tend to offer the same sort of health care that
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every other business offers. So, if you have a spouse that works for
one company, and a spouse that works for another, they have the
same health care. It duplicates, and there’s really no benefit in
both of them having the same benefits.

And, you know, do you see a trend towards changing that,

making 1t more——

Mr. LeviNg. There's a movement towards what have been called
“cafeteria benefit plans,” where employees have more of an option,
80 ‘yon can tailor the plan to your own family needs.

m not expert enough on the extent to which those have been
implemented to really comment on that, though, but it is some-
thing that's increasing.

Mr. WaLsn. Ms. King.

Ms. King. I do not see—I do see a trend on the part of develop-
ing flexible benefit or cafeteria benefit J)lans. but from union
groups that represent, primarily, men, 1 do not see them at the
table, from my own personal experience, demanding family leave
kinds of plans.

1 do see those unions that represent women demanding those
kinds of benefits as a guaranteed part of their overall benefit plan.

I think there is a learning curve that we're in, and that corpo-
rate America has a responsibility to help educate other corpora-
tions, as well as other employee groups.

I think they really do not realize {‘et what their people want, and
maybe we have a responsibility to help jointly educate each other
on what our workers really value, what kinds of trades thct they
are willing to make in terms of the benefit area.

My feeling is that, for men, as well as for women, that family
care programs are a $5.00 value for a .50 cent cost. I think they
have a tremendous value at the table in negotiating for workers.

Mr. Waish. You know, _i's interesting, I have a flexible plan in
my office right now. One of my employees is home, while his wife
is working. He works until 10:00—or, she works until 10:00 or
10:30, she does speech therapy, and then he comes in, and he’s a
terrific employee anyway, but it just makes things so much more
comfortable, and everybody in the office kind of has a feeling that
th:i' are helping to support that new baby in that family, and it
really, not only might help the productivity of that individual
worker, but of all the employees, and it makes for a good feeling in
the office. We have two babies in the office right now.

Thank you.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. Thank you.

Con man Wolf.

Mr. Worr. Thank you very much.

I apolo{ze for having to leave. I was in Appropriations Commit-
tee, and there was a vote. | want to thank all of you for attending.
I've read the preliminary parts of your testimony.

Let me just make a couple comments on some of the thi
you've said. One, 1 think Mr. Rothman is right, it is an attitude
question. You've got to get over the attitude.

I ran for Congress for five years, I lost in '76, I lost in '78, and
won in 1980. I have five children. During that period of time, I lit-
erally spent all m{' time going from subway stop, to bus stop, to
door to door, and literally neglected, if you will, all else for that
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period of time. I gg: electedi and my district is right here, it's right
across the river. So, literally, I'm a councilman. People can, come
in on the way home and on their way in, and I bet a third of this
audience lives in mg district.

I thought it would get better, now that I'm in, I have found out it
is act worse. There are more demands on your time.

Two » Wes Watkins, a Democrat from Oklahoma,
and Dan Coats, Republican, who is now a Senator, me s0
many times to come and see this film called, “Where is Dad?”’ 1
don't know, have any of you seen the film? You who haven't seen
the film would love it. You'd just think it's the greatest film going.

When I saw that film, it really hit me, and in it he quotes from
Harry Chavin’s song, “The Cat's in the Cradle, and the Silver
Spoon, and Little Boy Blue, and the boy in the moon, when are you
coming home dad? Well, I don't know when, you know, but we'll
get ther then, son, and we'll have a good time then.” And, then

e by, “When are you coming home, son?” He “Well,
dad, you know, the job is a hassle, and the kids have the flu, but its
been sure nice talking to you.” The end result is, the guy lost his
kids. It was an attitude problem.

I think, and Ms.l-g?'eesaidthesamething,itisreanyanappor-
tunity for members of Congress to help change the attitudes of the
CEOs and the corporations in their districts.

Had I not seen that film, I don't know what would have hap-
pened. I thank God that I saw that film ten years ago, and if you
want to see a copy of the film, call my office and I will get you a

copy.

gecondly. there is a bad attitude. You go to the law firms in this
city and in New York. They get these young le out of law
school, some wno have just gotten married, husbanz and wives. If
they are not billing hours a week they are not in the business, they
are out, their future is over. The senior partners even brag that
that's the way it is.

I'm finding a lot of these young people are saying, I don’t want to
be in that process. And so, it's a ¢ in the attitude of, not only
those in corporations, but in business, and also in the White House.
I was chagrined to see the statement about six months ago, where
they talkec :hout the hours at the White House, and Roger Porter,
who I think has seven kids. Some nights he never gets home.

Well, the statement “it’s not the quantity of time, it's the quality
of time,” is re= 'y a myth. There is no quality if there is no quanti-
ty. So, it's che ., ing attitudes.

The last thing is, you really need the flexibility. I think you are
right. I want to compliment the Chairwoman here, Ms. Schroeder,
she was really a leader in flexitime. I remember when I was on
the Post Office Committee, and I worked on it, but you were the
one to push the flexitime.

All the arguments that the Reagan Administration gave against
it, it's going to ruin this, and ruin that, and flexitime has worked
so well, because sometimes parents will go in early, so they come
home early, so there's no latch-key child. Or they'll go in late, and
then the other one will go in early, so there's somebody there in
the morning, it's flexibility.
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Since that time, I have put in language regarding flex-i-time in
the federal government, which is far beyond the private sector
where federal employees can telecommute, they can work from
home. We d)\ust ﬂggt a demo project that we're going to be announc-
ing with the for leave sharing and job sharing, and working
from home.

Also, the whole question of child care, on-site child care, whereby
a mom or a dad can just quickly run down to the child care and it's
right there, so you raise the comfort level where a child can say
mﬁmom or my father works in that building right over there.

ut, I think you are right, the flexibility is the greatest, need
and if we ﬁive the employers, the employees, both men and women
the flexibility, we sensitize them. If you do the combination of
changing attitudes and sensitizing them, then I think people are
going to opt out to spend more time with their families.

Every famous person, or almost eve famous person, after they
make it or when they are interviewed they always say, you know, I
wish my mom or dad could see me now. think it’s good that the
socalled “wimp factor” is changing. 1 talk about the family in my
district. I announced publicly ten years ago, I will never go to a po-
litical event on a Sunday as&::g as ] am in political life. Now, for
the first six months I had a time. People said, 1 know you are
serious, but I mean this is just this one special thing. So I've just
made it a firm thing. I put a telephone number in my office, which
every freshman, every member ought to do. The only people who
have that number are my wife and my five kids, because what they
were doing was calling my office and getting my receptionist, who
was t erring them to my secretary, who would then say, your
dad is in a meeting right now, and so it's kind of inhibiting to call.
Secondly, once they would get through, have you ever made a call
and you forget to tell the person something, and you feel kind of
dumb calling back? So now, the phone rings on my desk, if I'm in
there I pick it up no matter what, and the ex riences that I've
had of kids coming home at 3:00 and finding that they've gotten
into the corl;ﬁe that they wanted to and having someone to share
it with. It ly is an attitude.

The last plantation, in some respects, on this issue is the Con-
gress. I think we, perhag. are farther behind. There is great rheto-
ric, I hear members of Congress on both sides of the aisle, and both
sides of the Capitol talking about the family, and many times

ple are not really walking the way that they are talking.
ere's great political rhetoric in it, but if you look in their own
lives, or in their own offices, or whatever, it's really not there.

So, I thank you. I {)art.icularly want to thank Ms. Schroeder for
having this hearing. It's quite interesting, my Appropriations Com-
mittee is packed, and this is almost f empty, and, yet, the
impact of this hearing will live on far beyond what we just finished
in the Appropriations Committee.

Thank you all for testifying, 1 appreciate it very much, and
thank you, Ms. Schroeder.

Chairwoman Scrroeper. Thank you, and you are right, we've
been out there in the vineyard for a long time working on flexibil-
ity. If we could only get the rest to catch up.
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Thank you panel very, very much, we really appreciate your
time and effort this morning, and good luck to Hannah and her
new career.

Mr. RotHMAN. Thank you.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. As presidential trainee.

[Prepared statement of Hon. g‘rank Wolf follows:]

PrePARED STATEMENT oF HoN. Frang R. Woir, A REPRESENTATIVE IN CONGRESS
FroM THE STATE oF VIRGINIA, AND RANKING MiINORITY MEMBER, SELECT COMMIT-
* TER ON CHILDREN, YOUTH, AND FaMiLIEs

I would like to thank Chairwoman Schroeder for holdi.g this hearing on a very
important issue for fathers and families. The most precious commodity for most
families today is time. In April this committee held hearings on how we could make
the tax code more friendly for families by increasing the dependent deduction for
children. We discussed HR 1277, “The Tax Fairness for Families Act of 1991,”
which would raise the dependent deduction for children and ease some of the finan-
cial strains on families. ‘iﬁ: 1277 now has over 200 cosponsors including the Chair-
woman and many members of this committee. Our hearing today, continues this
theme of easinﬁ the family time deficit emﬂ izing the importance of family
time, particularly for fathers, and the need for exibilit{ein the werkplace in order
to provide more time for Moms and Dads to spend with their children.

Wuen YA Coming Home Dap?

“When ya coming home = . . . I don't know when, we'll get er then.
. . ." These lyrics from the Harry Chapin song, “The Cat's in the Cradle,” are oo
often heard in families across the country. Because of the increasing demands of
work and the increasing financial pressures on today's families, Dad too often puts
off to another day the time he should be spending with his children. and sadly, for
one out of four children today born to a single mother, a father is never even in the
picture. For both fathers and mothers, it is important that children come firet and
tiat active and involved parenting by both parents be valued as a vital investment
in the future of our children and our country.

One of this country's most famous Fathers, Bill Cosby, wrote a book several years
ago called Fatherhood. In this book, he humorousb}r‘ set out & warning to today's fa-
thers: “He never must say, ‘Get these kids out of here. I'm trying to watch TV." If
he ever does start say-icr:s this, he is liable to see one of his kids on the six o’clock
news.” With all of the cuitural pressures on today's children, it is more critical than
ever that both parents be actively engaged in the lives of their children. Careers do
not a life make. At the end of our lives, most of us will not mourn over a missed
opportunity for a promotion, but rather a missed family outing, a missed school play
or a mi little league game.

WHAT Parents WANT

A recent T¥me article noted that some social observers have already dubbed the
1990s the “We Decade.” This sentiment has been marked, says T¥me. by Americans
who are “rediscovering the joys of home life, basic values and things that last.”" A
recent article in Fortune magazine pointed out a new twist to the “quality time"
debate: “Quality time used to be the best that working parents could offer their
kids. Now it's what many employees are offering the boss: ‘I'll do my best in fewer
hours. Take it or Jeave it.""

A 1990 Los Angeles Times poll found that 57 percent of all fathers and 55 percent
of all mothers feel quilty about spending too little time with their children. A 198¢
USA Today survey found that parents of young children identify ‘“‘missing big
events in children’s lives” as the thing they dislike most about their current work-
family situation. These sentiments are starting to reverberate throughout society

d we are seeing what one of our witnesses here today, Lynn Hayes, called “a
quiet revolution” in work and family matters with both mathers and fathers turn-
ing back toward home and seeking balance in their work and family situations.

AND THE MOTHERS WILL LEAD US ., . . .

Although today's hearing is focused on the family-friendly workplace for fathers
which is very timely with Father's Day around the corner, it has clearly been moth-
ers whe have been the leaders in this area. Necessity is the mother of invention,
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and for today's mothers, necessity has resulted in new inventions in creative ways
to work while still maintaining a thy family life.

mothers have led this trend because of their desire to spend more time with
their children, particularly preschool children. For example, the Census Bureau sta-
tistics show that even th women are working in increasing numbers, only 52.5
percent of mothers with dren under three are ., and a full on rd of
these are working part-time. Therefore, only 35 percent these mothers are work-
ing ﬁxllgx:e Mo.thej;gwhomtwslow dowix’whﬂemeirchﬂdren mmm
leading way in job sharing, part-time work, flexitime, home-based wor! ong
and sequencing work and family obligations. Thatcher, Sandra Day
O'Connor and Jeane Kirkpstrick are “sequencers” who took time off from employ-
ment when their children were young and later returned to their careers with obvi-
ous great acclaim, Likewise fathers may now want to ex lore some of these family
friendly work options and play a more active role in family life.

Over the past several years, child care has been at the center of family pelitics.
Concerns about the effects of long hours of care on children have been voiced as
well as concerns about the cost of day care that cuts into a family’s 1 have
wwkedhardonpmﬁdhmon-aitedaymoptionstopaﬁntsinboﬁ: govern-
mentandthepﬁvatesectorheeauseon-siteeeneeﬁcanshortenthetimethatpar-
ents are away from their children and allow them to see their children throughout
the day. Now, as we look to the workplace of the future, the next frontier for fami-
lies is policies that focus on flexibility. Flexible work policies not only will decrease
the amount of time that parents are away from their children, but it can also help
in reducing or eliminating child care costs and in effect, increase take home family
wages,

THE FAMILY TRACK

Families are increasingly viewing their work and family choices in an overall pic-
ture that emphasizes healthy family life. While men may want to follow the success-
ful lead of women, who have pioneered flexibility in the workplace, men may opt for
different flexible optiona than will women in bringing balance to the work and
family arena. For example, a Conference Board report shows that men are more
likely to elect “compressed work weeks'’ while women are more represented in job
sharing and time positions. Another option might be that a husband would
choose more flexible hours when his wife returns to work rather than when the
child is an infant if his wife has already chosen to be at home with an infant. Em-
ployees are also seeking more flexible benefit Tr.kages from employers who are
more frequently offering “cafeteria plans” which offer a variety of benefits from
which emp! may choose. “A more fluid, less rigid workforce™ will allow each
family to e choices that fit their particular family needs on a case-by-case basis.

David Blankenhorn of The Institute for American Values has written that “a re-
vived ethos of family life must affect the behavior and priorities of both sexes.”
That is why it is important to include fathers in the debate on fami friendly work
policies. But aa we look to innovative workplace policies we should focus on policies
that give parents more time with their children in preference to policies that simply
free nts to spend more time on the job. In fact in surveys by several companies,
“flexibility” beats out all other “family friendly” policies as the number one choice
for employees. Providing flexibility is a matter of giving nts what they want
and it goes without saying that by providing parents with more time, we will be
providing children with what they want and need. The recent bestaseller, Megatrends
2000, states that “to attract and keep good people, flexibility must become the
watchword of leadership.”

While we witnessed somewhat of a controversy several years ago with the idea of
a “Mommy Track" for working mothers, it appears that many mothers and fathers
want to get off the “fast track " and find 8 more "human track” or “family track’
where both mothers and fathers can have a more appropriate work and family bal-
ance without shortchanging their children. It appears that these families are look-
ing at their career and family concerns in the context of a whole lifetime and life-
style instead of short-term career advancement.

FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AS A FAMILY FRIENDLY EMPLOYER

In serving on both the House Post Office and Civil Service Committee and the
Treasury, Postal Service, and General Government Appropriations Subcommittee,
over the past several iyeam we have passed legislation making the federal govern-
ment & more pro-family employer. A number of members, i.acluding the Chairwom-
an, have promoted flexitime, which allows employees to structure their work week
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in a manner that provides for additional fnmr:ljy time. More recently, we included in
the Treasury bill that allows federal agencies to pay expenses associated
with flexiplace, orm employment. In addition, we earmarked money for
the Office of Personnel Management to establish a computerized system to help em-
ployees enter into jobsharing arrangements, where two employees share one job.
Almost every agency has now established a leave sharing system, so that seriously
ill employees who have exhausted their own annual leave can receive donated leave
from their colleagues. These initiatives have resulted in the government being a
more flexible and responsive employer with regard to family matters.

CONCLUSION

Charles Siegel, an author, social critic, and perhaps most importantly, a father
who worked at home until his child was 7 years old, has written that any serious
attempt to strengthen the family poses a serious challenge to the modern economy
and forces us to reorganize the economy to make it work for the benefit of families,
rather than taking our current approach of reorganizing familes to make them fit
into the 9-t0-5 economy. 1 look forward to today's witnesses shar'ng with us the
iatest on this promising trend in family life.
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— “EARIRS AND BRIRFCASEE: CREATING A
PANILY PRIENDLY WOREPLACRE FOR FATHERRS™

June 11, 1991

WORK FANILY STRESS: AN EQUAL OPPORTUNITY PROBLEN

* A 1989 survey commissioned by the Nassachusetts Mutusl
insurance Company found that Americans believe "parents
RaVING less time to spend with their femiliee™ is the single
most important resascon tor the family's decline :in our

society, ‘Family Time: what Americans Think, Family Research
Council)

* Near'y 30 percent of men (37,2 percant) and 40.9 percent
:f wOoMen say thear 10k interferes with fam:ily l:fe. {(Fortune

nagazine survey of over 300 working parents. February
ed1tion, L9287

* Nearly forty percent of men and sixty percent of women in
*ne last three months nissed at least one day of work due to

timily obligations. (forftune magazine survey of over 300
<orking parents, February edition. 1987)

* A majority -%5.3 percent of men and S8.20 percent of women)
think children of working parents sutfer by not being given
enough attention. (Foriung magazine survey of over 400
=0rKking parents, February edition, 1987)

WRAT FAMILIES WANT

* Yearly eight of ten American men and women would be
«11ling to sacrifice '"rapid career growth" to spend spore
time with their families. In fact, nearly 75 percent of the
men surveyed opted f{or a slower career path where they could

set their own full-time hours and spend more time with their
families. (The Dest Jobs in America for pParents. Susan

Dynerman and Lynn Hayes, 1991)
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* When families are given a choice betwesn two carser paths
-= one with flexible fuil-time work hours and more family
time but slower carser advancament, the other wvith
inflaxible hours but rapid advancament ~-- 78 percent
praferred the family-orisnted track. (1989 Sanford Teller
Comminications survey, "What Aserica Salieves: The Rest of
the Story.” Rsport by the Republican Steff of the Sslect
cCommittee on Children, Youth, and Families)

* Kore than 20 percent of men and 26 percent of woman hava
sought less demanding jobs to get more family tine. (Forgune
nagazine survey of over 400 working parents. February
edition, 1987}

* A recent study found, "2S percent of the nen and 50
percent of the vomen said they had considered seeking
another ssploysr who offersd mors wvork or family
flexibility.® A 1939 etudy found "74 percent of pen said
they would rather have e ‘daddy track' job than e 'fast
track’ job.* (*Splic~Shift Parenting.® Pebrusry issue of
American Demographics Nagazine}

* In surveys by Johnson & Johnson and Du Pont, employees
cited flexibility as the top family-friendly policy
preferred. This prefersnce was over on-site child care or
other child care assistance. (Ihe Best Jobs in America for
parepts. p. 42)

THER QUIET REVOLUTION-
OFF TEE FAST TRACK AND ONTO A “FANILY TRACK"

* More than half (36 parcent) of the working Sothers
surveyed in @ 198% poll and 43 percent of the working
tathers had cut back on their hours in order to be with
thear children. (1989 Washington Post/ABC News Poll)

= Although 52.5% percent of mothers with children under threse
yoars old are working, one-third are working part-tise.
leaving Only 35 parcent of mothers vorking full time.
(Bureau of Labor statistics, Buresu of the Census. 1990)

* Robert Half Internationsl. recruiters in the field of
finance. found that 75 percent of the men they recruited
opted fOr e slower careear path wvhere they could set their
own full-time hours and spend more time with their families.
*All1 of this suggests that the Mommy Track should have been
dubbed the Perent Track.® (The Best Johs in America fof
parents. Susan Dynerman and Lynn Hayves, 19%1)
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* Dawp.t® the fact that more and more conpanies ars offaring
leaves to nev fathers, very few men are taking thes. It is
fairly common for fathera to take & few days off at the time
of the child's birth, but they rarely request this time as &
separate paternity leave. (National Study of Parental
Laaven. Catalyst. in ths Buresau of Nationsl Affairs "Work &
Family®™ report, 1986}

N T
. > ’i . :_.t f J}&

n’;- -
Lource: “Flexible staftfing and Schedul:ing ;n U.5.

Corporations,” by Kathleen Chriatensen, The Conference Soard
Inc.. New York. New York, 1989)

* Women outnumber men in utilizing alternative work
schedules in four ocut of the six altermative wvork
arrangerents. The sost female-intensive arrangemants are
job sharing (almest 90% women) and part-time work (approx.
80%) ., Women represent 60 percent of heome-~based work and
these woBen are often in professional and managerial
positions. Men Predominate in enly compressed work
schedules and phased reti{rement. The Conference Board
reports that "the high proportion of women using family-
responsive flexible work options may, in fact, also raflect
women'’s stage of life at least as nuch as - ,f not more than
- therr gender." (“Flexible staffing and Scheduling in U.S.
corparations.” by Kathleen Christansen, The Conference
Board. 1989)
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Lource: “Flexible statting and Scheduling in V.S,
Corparat:ions,”™ The Conference Board, New Yorkx. New
York, 1989.

in this 198% Conference Poard survey, nine out of ten firms
wrveyed, utilized at least ope of the siX flexible scheduling
irrangements.  Part-time work was the most widely aveilable
irranpgement {offered by 90 percent of firms surveyed). Flexitime
;rograms are the second most popular altarnative scheduling

ption with half of the surveyed firms offering i1t, representing
v three-told increase since 1979. Job sharing and home-based
«0rk are the two arrangements meost likely to be under
consideration by those surveyed and over half of the firms
surveyed anticipate incrcasing their use of all types of flexible
schedules.
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* An extensive study examining the effacts of {lextize oOn
productivity revesled that flaxtise has either a positive er
neutral effect on productivity but does not reeult in any
decrease. In genersl, the consensus in thess is that
flextime increases employee morale at little to no cost to
the firm. ©f those firns offering flextime, 96 percant sre
satiefimd, ("Flexible Steffing and Scheduling in U.S.
Corporations.® Kathlieen Christenssn, The Conference Board,
1989}

* Based on productivity measuras developad in 12 studies
examining flextime, pProductivity increased by » medisn level
of 12 percent. with & range frcom xero to 45 percent. (“An
Overview of Fmployce Beonefits Supportive of Families.® Nancy
Saltford, EBRI, 1990)

loh Sharana
« of the firms that offar job sharing, 91 percent are
satisfimd with performance levels. ("The Flexible Scheduling

and Staffing at U,S. Cerporations.” Kathliesn Christensen.
The Conference Board, 1989)

Homg-based Work

e rorty percent of the individuals who work from home for a
company are men, MOtivations bahbind teleCommuting 1nclude
spending time with family, cost savings, productivity, and
avoadingG tratfic congestion. Nearly 80 percent of
supervisors were satisfied or very satisfied with )ob
performance. !(“The Flexible Scheduling and Staffing at U.S,

Corporations.” Kathieen Christensen. The Conforence Board.
1989)

Pagsslame Work

Nearly 90 percent of supervisors who have requiar part-tine
employees are satisfied or very satisfied with performance.
sine out of ten companics surveyed offer part-tise work.
.Flexibie Statf:ng and Scheduling in U.S. Corporations.
¥stnleen Christensen, The Conference Board., 1989)

WHY FLEIIBILITY?

¢ Rptentjon was repPorted as a motivation for implementing
tlexible wOrk arrangements among 64 percent of human
resources prolessionals and 68 percent said flexible work
arrangements had atfaected retention positively. (“Flexible
work Arrangements: Establithing Options for Managers and
professionals.® catalyst, in & survey of 150 human resource
professionals. 1990}

» Almost two-thirds (65 percent) of employers surveved
reported that employees who utilize tlexible work
arrangements susts:ined higher productivity. (®Flexible work
Arrangenents: EFstablishing Options for Managers and

7Y
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Profemsionals,” Catalyst, in a survey of 150 human resocurce
Professionalis, 1990)

¢ Once firna do implemant a flexible arrangement, they are
not 1ikely to rescind it. Less than ¢ percent of firms
surveysd reported that any one arrangessnt that had been
previously aveilable was no longer in use. (“Flexible
staffing and Scheduling in U.S. Corporations,* Rathleen
cChristensen, New York, New York, 198%)

Satisteciion wiih

Aueentage SN SeeNag
« “u——— .-"ﬁl

b) o L] L] - 0%

LN

“OMe-Steas
=
source: “Flexible Staffing and Scheduling in t'.5.

Corporations,® The Conference Board, New York, New York,
1989)

An overwhelming majority of firms were satisfied with the
yob performance of those utilizang flexible schedules, but
the challenge to American businesses seems to be to learn
how to manage esployees under these schedules. The
Conference Board reports that “agsessments about
di1fficultien 1n direct supervision may be reflections of
inexpereince at best and corporate resmiftance at worst."
‘“Flexible stafling and Scheduling i1n y.S, Corporations,™
The Conference Board, New York, New York, 1989)

¢ Eighty-six percent of 7,500 companies surveyed recently
had plans teo develop some kind of work/family program. (The
Families and Work Institute, The Bast Jobs an America for
Earcnts, Lynn Hayes and Susan Dynerman)
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FLEXIBLE WORK OPTIORS FOR FAMLIES

FLEXTINE

An employee can vary their starting and
quitting times and/or lunch breaks while still
vworking a standard 8. hour day.

Refors to a standard workday with a fixed
schedule that falls outside the norm-i.e., &
7 a.m. to 4 p.m. workday that is in effect
every day.

FLEXIDLE SCHEDULE
A schedule that is tailored to the individual
needs of an employee. For example, owrking
shorter hours on certain days, or coming and
going as thet please.
COMPRESSED WORE WERK

An employee does a full-time job or forty hour
work week in less than five days.

PART-TINE HOURS
An employee who works thiry or fewer hours a
week either on a set schedule or f{lexible
schedule.
JOB~-8HARING
A form of part-time work; allows tow people to
share the duties of one full-time position.
TELECOMMUTING OR WORK~FRON-HOME

An arrangement where the employee spends all
or part of working hours at home. Equipment
such as computers, modems, and telephones are

used to communicate with the offic, depending
on what type of communication is needed.

34
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Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Let me call the next distinguished
panel up to the ium. First, we have Norma Radin, who is a Pro-
fessor of Social Work at the University of Michigan in Ann Arbor.
Then, we have Mryiam Miedzian, who is the author of Boys Will
Be Boys: Breaking the Link Between Masculinity and Violence,
from New York. And, we have William Mattox, Jr., who is the Di-
rector of Policy Analysis from the Family Research Council in
Washington, D.C.

I want to thank all of them for being here this morning. We ap-
preciate your taking time in your busy schedules—oh, I'm sorry,
first of all, let me apologize to Norma, it’s Radin, is it Ladin, okay,
I'm going to get it right yet if I hang in there, my Western accent,
sorry about that, but, again, we thank you all for being here, and,
Norma, let's start with you. The floor is yours, and go for it.

STATEMENT OF NORMA RADIN, PH.D., PROFESSOR, OF SOCIAL
WORK, THE UNIVERSITY OF MICHIGAN. ANN ARBOR, MI

Ms. Rapin. I've been studying father influence on children for 20
years, and I'm really grateful to the committee for inviting me to
testify about what some of the findings have been.

I'd like to start with discussing major results of an 1l-year
foltl:w-up study that we have just completed of primary caregiving
fathers.

In 1988, we interviewed the teenagers whose parents had partici-
pated in a study we had conducted in 1977, when the children were
three to five years of age, and then again in 1971, when the chil-
dren were seven to nine, and at both times we assessed the amount
of father involvement in child care in these two-parent families.

At the time of the initial study, in one-third of the families the
father was the primary caregiver, in one-third the mother was, and
one-third was intermediate.

We were interested in learning whether the teenagers’ attitudes
and expectations toward their future employment and child care
arrangements would be reflective of the amount of father involve-
ment they had experienced as children.

We predicted that those with more father involvement would
have a less sex-role stereotyped set of expectations concerning their
future lives than adolescents who had had less father participation,
and, indeed, that was what we found.

For example, the children of men who had taken a large role in
child rearing were more likely than children reared in traditional
families to approve an arrangement where both parents worked
when the children were young, and both shared child rearing.

The findings, in general, suggested that a ‘an.ily arrangement of
greater paternal participation does have a long-term impact on the
gender-relevant attitudes of the children in the family.

And, in my view, the resulting more flexible perspective, particu-
larly regarding child care, is far more adaptive to contemporary
conditions.

I'd like now to summarize very briefiy what my own 20 years of
research and that of many others have revealed about father influ-
ence on children. Two areas of child functioning have been shown
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to be particularly sensitive to father influence. One is cognitive de-
velopment, and the second is social competence.

In the case of cognitive development, the evidence is very robust
that the more father participation and the more nurturing the fa-
ther'’s behavior, the higher the level of intellectual functioning of
sons.

The evidence is more ambiguous about daughters, except in the
case of mathematics, and here the findings have been very consist-
ent that father presence is related to mathematical skills in both
boys and girls.

The reason for the relationship isn’t really clear, and there are
really just speculations about it, but some theorists have suggested
that father's greater interest in the world of objects, and maybe
greater physicality with the children, may foster youngsters’ un-
derstanding of spacial relations, which is related to certain aspects
of mathematics.

In the area of social competence, there is strong evidence that in-
dicates the more father involvement, especially in the case of sons,
and the more nurturant that involvement, the better the child’s
social functioning.

For example, greater paternal involvement is predictive of more
comfort with strangers in the case of infants, better problem solv-
ing in the case of toddlers, better peer relations in preschool chil-
dren, and more mature independent behavior in boys six to 11.

Most persuasive is the recent 26-year follow-up study, indicating
that one of the best predictors of empathy in 31-year old individ-
uals who were in the study, both male and female, was the amount
of paternal involvement in their care when they were pre-
schoolers. And, all of these findings are in keeping with theories
about socialization processes.

The data have shown that there are many determinants of fa-
thers sharing childrearing, some demographic, for example, wheth-
er the wives are working or not; some psychological, for example,
did they feel that their own fathers were not sufficiently involved
in their rearing; and some are contextual. But, it's certain that
among the most powerful contextual factors are conditions in the
workplace that facilitate paternal involvement, such as has been

i here, for example flexible work schedules, part-time op-
tions and paternity leave, I hope the committee will see fit to sup-
port, in whatever way it can, employment practices that encourage
men to become active participants in rearing the children. Not only
will the children benefit, which has been the focus of my own re-
search, but both the mothers and the fathers as well.

Thank you.

Chairwoman ScHroEDER. Thank you very much.

[Prepared statement of Norma Radin follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT oF NorMa Ranin, Pr.D.,, PrRoFessor oF SociaL. WoRk, THE
Untvererey oF Micnican, ANN Arsor, Ml

1 would like to thank the Select Cospittee on Children and vouth, espectially
the Charrperson, Congresssoman Pat Schroeder, ¢or an/1ting e to testafy todey.
it 1s Doth a qrest honor and a pleasure to discuss ay thoughts on éather
snvolvement in childrearing, & topic ! have heen investigating €or the past 20
years.

{ would 11xe to f0cus on resei~Ch €1Nn01NQE COncerning the i1nélusnce oOf
$0LNEFS On Chlldren s developernt starting with the resuits sy owd ti-year
¢ollow-up ot the children whose tathers were prisdrily cargqivers when the
youngs: /rs wery preschooiers in 1977 all ot the tamilies 80 two parents
111008, Radin, & Rilegro, 199° . At that ti1ae, both mother and ¢éather were
irterviewed at feng.h abhoot the ¢amily & Childrearing arrangesents and the
Chrldren were administered a battery 0f tests tRadin, 1981 B2), Thie group o¢

tamilies was gatched with twn Comparable gro.ss 24 tamiites with a2 cmald 3-8

yRATR OF AQ®, ON@ Group 1n wWHICHh the LhRr was the prisary CareQiver, and a
secrad it whicr the arrangese~t was srmeciate Detween g her prisary
Cs*eQiver ano SO NEr prissry Caregl ! do not ret@r to this as an equally

Shared erri0endnt decause the 43thers merd® Only assumin® about 41% 0F the
thr'3cery aClOraiIng to the er1timates Ot DOth parents.

in the oroup where % @ BDtREr was the prisary careQiver, the father hag
respoucibiivey cor the child approvimately 22% v the time and the sothers, 78%,

IR1s S1Quee 18 1n teec ~° wilh subDBequent research anvedtigetions oé traditional
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tamilared where it has Deen found that fathers spend 20-2%% as such tiee a8
sothers ¢o in caring for children «Lemd, 1967), fn the group 1n which ¢ethers
played the méjor role. sothers and fathers average estisate mas that the
tather was responsible ¢0r childrearing S7% 06 the time, While thas #rgure may
not sppesr ctosparabie to the 78X responsibilaty primary caregiving esathers
sssume, the resuits Of thas Study and later invest:QatiOnd Ot childrearing @en
in sntact families indicate that the aen «ho care ¢0r chaldren tn twa~parent
tasrlres over 50X o¢ the tiee ore indeed uniQue &nd have & unilue btenedrCial
1@pact on their chilaren,

fn a four~vear toffom~up studv, 47 the 3o samilies 3n the Originat study
were re~interviened 1n 1981 to detersine how atable the childcare arrangesent
had been Radin & coldeitk, 1985:. In order to achseve that goal, the parents
were 40ain asked cetailed questions +i1rst posed 1n 1977 concerning speciréic
2SPECtE ot therr core 10 WhRAF chilg, nOw 7-9 years 0¢ age, The mine camlires
who d)d not participate in the tollom-up were Rither jogt to uws 4, retused to
particapete 1, Or were divorces to:, Finativ, 10 1%y, tne ti-vesr toljow-~up
was conducted Sut this time the children, now sged 1&-ia, as well &8s the parents
ner® 1nterviewed. stnce many O0¢ the tadifies Nad ROvEC ¢rOR the AR AFDOr arep,
the i1ntervieuws were conducted on the phone «nd were tépe recorded with the
tent f109 perm:spIOn. Une ot the QOAIS wak tO ORTErmine tne 1apcit 00 the
ehildren & career 200 tamii, plang 6t the ¢ather partictpstion thev nag
SAPEFIENCLC 4% preschoniers wid «f voung sthool 4ged . Lildren. lhirty two at the
&7 temilres tn the nitial ¢-liow-up took part 1n *his new tnvestigation. [+ the
IS ¢asities fOst tn the studee SOven ;ou:a not be L0oCsted, tiee® mEre now
divorced. and 1 threee éamiies. ertner the sother ar tather retnsed to
participete., We 10 not use L@ tgorty uniess Loth parents «ng the child sQreks
to take pert.

Ul Rd)pr t1nB:0.g wah that Qreater tother portitipatron an rhyidrearing when
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the chitdren nere praschaclers was presgictive ot the agolescents Hholding & less
toaditionsl view of their future employment patterns. For exasple, there wnis
greater appraval of having btoth spouses wmork 4ull tice and share childcare, ang
fess approval of the husbans working tull-tiee with the wmiee not wOrking anc
caring tor the chaldren on a tuli-tame Dasis, in addition, 1t mas 4ound that
qrester father snvolvesent when the children were 7-9% yaars 0f 400 wad
pregi.tive at the sdalescents holding less traditsonal views of thetr ¢uture
childcsre plans. Far example. they were more likely to approve 0+ 40 arrangenent
1n which the parents shared childcare oqually or tnat there was high ¢ather
involvement. Thev were ieas likely o approve Of an arrangesent tn mhich

aother s 1nvOolvessnt waw high and father » iow.

The dieterence 10 Outcoees OF high father participation whan the chilgren
sere 3-S5 and 7-% was explained 1n teres ot tne developmental jevel D¢ the
children ang dréferentral parental Dehavior as cntldren mature. The preschooters
say have been strongly i1ntiuenced by the concrete €ranpies of & siie not tied to
2 % ta S Job and a mOSan 0iING Oté to wort each day. the achooi-eqed ehrldren
fay have had the eental capacity to conceptualize various aspects ot the complex
maternat #nd paternal rcles thevy abserved #ng experienced. It 18 alsu possibie
that direct and 1adirect 1nstruction 10 Densviors reievant to tuture tantly
roles were more prevelant and powerc¢ul t1n families when chyjgren were Ofg enough
to take on femily tasks than they were xhen the children were prescpociers.

In no case w~as a tragitional childcare arrangenent 1n Dast v®ars associated
with non-tragitional values concerning tamily and work srrangesents on the part
04 the adolescents, 218 th N0 Case was & ROre non-trasitional early ChildCare
arrangesent in asscci:ated with eore traditional teen values 1n thoss areas. 1In
view Of the taCt that approsimately 1/2 o¢ the women 1n this cOultry with
preschosl-aged children are currently 1n the mork 4orce. ohR@ cannot as1d the

conclusion that the otéspring o¢ participant cathers ar® sore adaptec to tnesr
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future trves than are therr peers é#rom tne traditional mold of tather as morker
and aother es housekeeper. Ihe overall ¢1n0ings cf the ll-year study Led By
colleagues and | to conclude that nontraditironal parental soc:alization
processes do appear to have an 1mepact aon the children s gender reiated attitudes
although 1t may take a decase to Decome evicent. There had Dee: NO suCh evidence
whet the chitdren had been 3-5,

As to our expianation ot the reasohs tor our e1ndings, we had hvpc ecarzed
that gqreater father involvesent i1n the eariy vear® would eventuate :n less
qender ~Stereotyped attitudes :n adoffscents bhased on theory and 1 @p1rical
research data. for ecemple, sociral learning theory postulates that chmidren
learn their tuture roles troe obs@rving and 1mitating behavior modeted by
parents who are perceived as nurturant and powertul. Also, parents, partiCulariy
tathers, trest bove ond Qirls drcesrentiy, dicterentially resntorcing
sex-appropriate behavior. Thus, sons are usually tsught to be instrusentally
coepetent and daughters are taught the expressive role which encoepasses
atfectrion and 1nterpersonal sensitivity. To the extent that parents do not model
wr Oi14terentially rerntorce Qender—stereotyped beharibrs. their children are
likely to hold less stereotyped views and values.

Parents also i1ntluence children through at Jeset three Dther procosnses and
theredy there are 3t least three other pathways turough shich a partially
role~reversed COupi® can ¢gater non-traditional sex~roies 1n their Gttapring.
One 18 through Oirect teaching, the second 18 throuch 1ndarect teaching, and the
thirg ts though play experiences. Teaching bovs to use toois and Qiris to coo¥
are examples 0f girect teaching. Insirect teaching occurs when girls are
exCluded ¢ros L(ESsons 1N uBing wrenches ANG bOYS are not taught anything about
baking or 1nfért car®, Socialization through play experiences ccCur mhen boys
sre taught to eanipuzate the eavironaent by being presented with large duriding

blocks and Lincoln LOG spis and girls c-e taught that their Place 18 10 the hose
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when thsy are provided primsaraty with toys like baby dolls ang ei1nsature kitchen
1tens. o the extent that nontraditional couples go not Provide gender-role
stereotyped toys, and do not conéin® thear instruction to sterectyped
aCtivitief, their children should de less constricted i1n their views of how
their future roles can be Played.

fn sg@ition, sinCe i1t has been ¢ound tnat nighly participant eathers spend
aore time 10 girect tesching ot thexr chitdren (kadin. 19841, 1t 18 possille
that boys 1n such ¢amilies mill recexve more instruction i1n pertorsing the
nousehold chores their tathers are regularly undertaking and the Qirls will be
#0re erposed to buiriding materials end Diocks because their fathers grew up with
such toys. thus, the LivelihoQd ts stengtheneg that children Of invoived éathers
and Career -Orientes eothers 10 tewo-parent tamilies wifl have & hroader, apre
expansive perspective on their life options and be better adaptated to the 21t
century.

shile fong~term t0llOw~uf tudies Of 1nvOlved tathers are Quite rare as the
investigat:ion Of these men 1s a fecent phenceencn, & considerabie body ot data
concerning Raternal intiuence on children has earrged Based on concurrent
seadures Of participant sen :n two-parent fémilies and therir chilidren, ang on
“short=-term* ¢oflom-up snvestigations. In additiun, there 18 a Qood deai of deta
now avairlable relating paternal benhavior in traditional families to chilgd
outcomes.

I would like tO sumearize these $:n01nQs brietiy Dy oOrganizing the topic
1nto two categories: :1n40rmetion available about the children s cognitive
Sevel OPpasnt and 3néformation about their social cospetence.

Concerning copnitive developsent, there 1s strong evidence that boys
intelivctual seveiopeent 3s enhanced by greater invoivessnt with tathers. fhis
phenoaenan has been dccumented ¢or boys as younQ as five mOnths of age. tor

¢our-year old dOvs, and f0r bovs in the third grade (Radin, 1586), Part ot the

e
-1



explanation is that boys at this age tdentity and try to sodel their fathers,
particularly when the ¢athers are nurturant. The fathers interest in therr
sons acadesic success Ray Siso exert & positive tnéluence,

the in¢luence o¢ fathers or thear daughters cognitive developsent 3s sore
cospiex and asbigucus, There is little evidence that paternal nurturance, per
se. t9 linked to giris intellectual growth, howaver, putharitarian paternal
Sehavior tends to be associated with reduced écadesic comspetence. My own study
of primary Caregiving ¢dthers found that both the sons and daughters of these
aen had greater verbal coepetence. Another study of sen who wers Rajor
caregivers of 1ntants 10 antect ¢amilies tound i1n & two-yesr éollow-up that the
both the bovs and girle were “active, robust, snd thriving® and esost were
tunctioning atove the expected noras on Standardired tests of developaent
tPruett, 1989;. Borever, there 38 strong support for the conclusion that
proficiency in sathepatice 15 related to tsther presence ¢or both daughters and
sons iRadin, 1981a; 19865 although the reason tor this 19 unclesr. One possibdl -
explanation 1s that tathers tend to engage in sore Physical acitivates with
therr chilaren and thas apptars to enhance the children s Cosprenersion of
spatial reiations xhich is relates to sathesatical abilsty,

in the reala of social coepetence, or cospstence in interactions with
others, the (indings parailel thowe 10 the cogritive domsain. There 1s strong
eviderce that grester paternsi involvesent ;s associated with grestsr Comtort
s3th strangers in intants, with better probles-solving Dehaviors in toddliers,
with better pesr relations and a stronger sense of control of lite events tn
preschoolers, and with acre eature. independent behaviors :n boys 6-11 1Radn,
19851. However, there 3s also sose evidence of greater social Cospetence in
Qirls as well. In a notable teenty-sir veoar follow~up study 0¢ #Suits whose
parents had been studied mhen the sublects were 3 years of age. it wes ¢ound

thet ane of the best predictors o+ espathy i1n the Si-year olid 1ndividusls was
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the amount of paternel involveeent in childcare at the time of the 1nitial
tnvestigation iKoestner, Frant, L Neinberger, 1990). The children whose ¢tathers
were “very 1nvolved® 1n their care, ang whose acthers were tolerant of
depsndency were most likely to report Nigh levals ot eepathetic concern at age
35 p.7?13). The authors describe the :influance ot paternal invoiveaent as
“astonishing” and state that this singie disension accounted tor a greater
percentage of the wari1anch i1n empathetic Concern scOr#s than the three strongest
aaternal prediCtors cosbined. koestner et al. 1990 report that these results
¢3t 1n with previous f1ndings that Prosocial behdviors., such as altruise, wers
reisted to sctive 1nveivesent 10 chaid Care by tathers,

In sue, the research evidence strongly leads to the conclusion that greater
inediveaent by s2thers 1n childredring :1n 1ntact ¢asifres ¢t0sters the
developaent ot their children and increases the likelthood that they wmall be
petter adapted to li¢e circuastances 1n the cOMNG Becades. [t 18 Ciear that
there sre aany determinants ot men s taking on and maintaining an active
childrearing role stamab 19873 Rédin, 1988 including Sesographic tactors, such
a8 the wate s wOork status, psychological factors, such as father s ¢eelings
aDout Ris own ¢ather s 1nvoiveaent, and contextual tactors, such as comaun:ty
support ¢or egalitarian Childcare. Mowfver, there 15 no question that the most
powertul contextual eactors are eaployaent poOliCies CONCRrNING 188ufs sSuUCh a8
paternity leave, part-time work, and flexible time acheduling., Faternmity leave,
ot couree, até®cts aen i1n a very narrCw ti1ae periog but there 18 evidence that
its uie predirts the deqree ot subseguent involveaent (Laad, 1987:. | hope this
Comar1ttee wii) spe *1t to support 1n whatever way 1t Can eapiOyeent pract:ces
whicCh are lakely to enclurage agn to De active participant® an their children »
upbranging. [hey need therr tather not just when they ars intants, or toodiers,

ar preschoolers. or school-aged, but throughout thelr entire cntldhood,
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Chairwoman ScHROEDER. And, Myriam, I've known you from
before, it's wonderful to see you at the witness table, so welcome,
and the floor is yours.

STATEMENT OF MYRIAM MIEDZIAN Ph.D., AUTHOR, “BOYS WILL
BE BOYS: BREAKING THE LINK BETWEEN MASCULINITY AND
YIOLENCE,” NEW YORK, NY

Ms. MigpziaN. First [ want to thank the committee for the oppor-
tunity to come and address you. My testimony is based on the four
and a half years of research I did for my book, Boys Will be y
Breaking the Link Between Masculinity and Violence. The book's
fo_cixs is on how we can change the socialization of boys to decrease
violence.

I will begin by summarizing research which indicates that boys
raised with an involved caring, nurturant father in the home are
less likely to be violent than boys deprived of such a father.

I will go on to describe some programs which have been success-
ful in teaching parenting skills to young boys and to fathers, and
imbuing them with a sense of the enormous responsibilities of fa-
therhood.

And, I must start with a caveat. In the social sciences, the con-
cern is with statistically significant trends. It is a fact that many
single mothers do succeed in raising fine, responsible, non-violent
SOns.,

Sociological studies of delinquent boys revealed that a high per-
centage of them come from fatherless families, and have no consist-
ently present male figure who they can identify with and model
themselves on. This often leads to “an almost obsessive concern
with Kroving masculinity.”

In keeping with these findings, between 1960 and 1987, homicide
rates have gone up by 85 percent, and rates of children born to
single mothers have gone up by 350 percent. Divorce rates have
soared during the same time period, leaving many boys without or
with very little nurturant fathering.

Cross-cultural anthropological studies indicate that violent be-
havior is often characteristic of male adolescents and adults in
tribes where fathers are absent or play a small role in their son’s
early rearing.

Analogously to sociologists, anthropologists conclude that hoys
raised by women alone, or mainly by women, lack a primary sense
of masculine identity, and must prove their masculinity by going to
extremes.

A growing psychoanalytic literature analyzes the difficult psy-
chological Frocess through which boys raised by women alone de-
velop a male identity.

In our society, the tendency towards violence on the part of fa-
therless boys is exacerbated by a clture of violence which sur-
rounds boys with extremely violent a 3 often sadistic role models,
whether it be in films, TV, heavy metal, rap, et cetera.

Boys raised with nurturant, caring, highly-involved fathers devel-
oped a primary male identity. They model themselves on their fa-
thers from the youngest age. They do not need to prove that they
are real men by being tough and violent. Their me¢ del of masculini-
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ty includes nurturance, caring an' empathy which they experi-
enced from their fathers.

Nurturant fathering hoo auvther extremel- beneficial side effect.
A mother who raises her children er with a husband, who is
an involved nurturant father, is far less likely to be overwhelmed

the enormous demands of child rearing, and is less likely to
ﬁk ically abuse her children. Physically abused children are more
'.?lytoabusetheirownchildrenandtommmitactsofcriminal
violence.

Over 326,000 Americans have been murdered in the last 15
years. This is more than six times as man as have lost their lives
in combat in the Vietnam War and all s uent US military ac-
tions.

If we want to begin to deal with ou~ domestic nat. ial security
crisis, we must do everything possible to encourage nurturant, re-
sponsible fathering.

I recommend the introduction of mandatory child reann? classes
in our schools, starting at the very latest in fifth grade. I visited
parenting classes at a private school and at several inner-ity ele-
mentary and junior high schools, where many, if not most, children
are fatherless. I was enormously impressed by the level of interest
and enthusiasm demonstrated bf virtually every boy, regardless of
race, ethnicity or social class. 1 came away convinced that most
boys are as‘ciaspable of being interested in children and child rear-

as are girls.
m%nfortunately, our culture discourages this interest in them
from the youngest aﬁtlel
in ¢

When d rearing are mandatory, boys are given per-
mission to express it.
The child rearing I visited centers on a parent bringing

a baby or toddler to class once a month. Students observe the
child’s behavior, interact with the child, and ask questions about
what it is ligekto be a bO%th Stuﬁierll‘ts keep a cha{,tseof the child's
progress and keep wor which ercourage observation, psy-
chological insight and sensitivit?r.

Teachers im:part basic knowledge about child development. Let
me add that the cost of this program, which is run by Education
for Parenting in Philadelphia, is $35.00 per student for initial im-
plementation. I ask you to compare thai cost with the cost of foster
care for abused children, the cost of incarcerating violent crimi-
nals, or the cost of keggoing low-birth weight infants w:ive, which for
just one day costs $4,600.00.

Now, I ohserved e?ually impressive classes in child development
taught to high school juniors and seniors, this was at a much more
sog‘h' icated appropriate level.

ese programs, in teaching child rearing, deter violence in
three ways: one, they encourage nurturant, caring, informed fa-
thering; two, they ctrongly discourage child battering; three, teach-
ers and administrators involved in the programs report a decrease
in teenage pregnancy.

When students fully understand the awesome demands of re-
sgonsible parenting, they decide to put off having children until
the ; are financially and emotionally able to deal with the responsi-

v orwsy
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When teenage pregnancy has already occurred, I recommend the
kind of program developed at a Philadeiptia Hospital. When a
single pregnant teenager comes in, she is asked for the name of the
child’s father. He is then invited to join a pragram for teenage fa-
thers, geared towards providing the boys with basic child care in-
formation s.ud encouraging them to take emotional and financial
responsibility for their offspring.

A survey of the program reveals that 82 percent of the boys, a
vast majority of whom are low-income, African Americans, see
their children regularly, and 76 percent pay some child support.

I have focused here on those programs that I have researched
and been highl{ impressed with. I would like to add that I also
favor responsible measures or incentives, economic and/or social,
to encourage nurturant. responsible fathering, as well as changes
in the workplace of the kind that have been described by the earli-
er panelists.

Thank you.

Chairwoman ScHroeper. Thank you very much. That's positively
fascinating. We are both sitting here thinking about how interest-
ing all that is.

[Prepared statement of Myriam Miedzian follows:]
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PREPARED STATEMENT or MYRiaAM MixpziaN, Pi.D., AutHor, Boys Wit Bx Boyvs:
BREAKING THE Lnn:Bsnu:xnnbummmnnrvANn\hounu:.NsurYbnnJWY

By testimany is bssed on the four and a half yesra of

research I did for my book. Boys ¥ill Be Bove: Breasing Ibw Liok
Sstyeen Hamgulinity And Yiclspos. The book’'s fooue ia on hov ve

osn change the socislizetion of boys to decresase viclence. Ny
ressarch included over 130 intervieve with specialis ¢ end/or
practitioners in relevent esress.

I begin by susmarizing social science research which
indicates that boys raised with an involved. caring, nurturant
father in the home ere less likely to be violent than boye
deprived of such @ fether. I then bdbriefly outline hov the
situstion is aggrevated in our mociety by the kinds of male role
wodel® thet sre presented to boys in the mems medis. I go on to
describe some progrente which have been successful in teaching
parenting skilils to Young boys and teen fathers and imbuing them
vith a sense Of the enormous reaponsibdblities of fatherhood.

I must atart wvith & cevest. Neny mingle mothers succeed in
reising fine, responsible, non-vioclent sons. Nevertheless,
reising & son without & nurturent fether in the home
significently increases the likelihood 0f the boy becoming
viclent. This i® skin to cigarette smoking vhich mignificently

increases ones cheances of developing ceacer despite the fact that
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usny cigsrette smokers live to s ripe old sge. In the sociesl
sgiencew., as in the medicsl sciences. the concern is with
statisticelly significant trends.

Socialogicel studtes aof delinguent bays revesl that s high
percentage of them come fros families In which there ia no
father. In a 1962 article, "Lover Clere Culture as a Generating
Niliev of Gang lwilnquency, * wvhich 1 consioered e clessic iIn the
field, soCiologist wWalter B, Niller pointed Out thet the extrewme
concern with toughness and the frequent violince in lover-clams
culture ~robably originates in the fact that for a mignificent
percentage of these boye there is no consimtently present asle
figure whom they can identify wvith end wmodel themsselves On .
Becesuse Of this they develop en “slmost obsessive....concern with
‘masculinity, ‘* which Niller refers to a8 "hypermesculinity.”® It
t® wvorth noting here that, in keeping with Miller‘'s thesie,
bhetveen 1960 and 1987 hoaicide rates have (an® up by 83 X. During
the same time period the percentage of children born to single
mothere hes gone from 5.3% of all births to 24.3X of all birthe.
In 1987, 62.2X of all births to Africen Americen women were to
single mothere. Accordingly., Africen Americen men are highly over
represented in terma aof being both perpetrators and victime of
viclent crime. Pivorce rates have 8lsc soared during the same
time period adding to the nusber of boys growing up without
nurturent fathering or very little nurturent fathering, since
®sany Aiverced fothers rarely see thetir children., while Niller‘e

- focus wes on loxer clams boys, R0 increasing number of boyr of
all Socisl cleesi® eare Qrowving up with little fathering.

Increases in violence in the last thirty years are not lisited
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to lover class boye.

Cress-cultursl enthropolagical studie® indioste that viclent
behavior is often cherscoteristic ©f male = 3lescents end adults
vhope fothers vere absent or played 8 small role in their son’se
serly rearing. For exsmple snthrapologiste Bestrice Whiting’s end
John Whiting s study of childrep in &ix cultures revesled that
those tribea in which the father was wost loosely connected with
the family and had ileast to do with the resring of children, wvere
the wnost violent. Thess findinge are corroborated by other
stucdies. While sociclogists vwrite about “hypermasculinity,”
snthropologists write about “proteat sasculinity. ® They ere both
talking sbhout the sawme Problew. Boys reised by vomen sione, oOr
meinly by vomen, lack & primary sense of wasculine identity.
Their firet identificstion im with their mothers. Their sale
identity im ® secondery identity . Anthropologicsl atudies Tevetl
that in tribes vhere boys ors reised slmost exclusively by vomen,
boys must often g0 through cruel, €xcruciating initietions rites
in order to rid themselves of their fewmale fdentity and enter the
vorid of sen. In our own society, which is sorely lescking with
respect to nurtursnt fethering, frasternity initiestion rites,
often quite cruel end painful., say serve the same Purpose. In her
book, Fraternitiy Gsng Bapg. enthropologist Pegoy Senday vrites
thet frpternity initistion rites “separste boyes Iros
peychologicel and social bonding to their mothers end forge new
bonds centered sround sen.® Proving ssnhood may even invalve
perticipstion in geng repe. A Un'versity of Florida sdsinistrator

confirme this, when in & Februery 17, 1986 New York Times earticle

. 96
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reporting aon high rates af Qgsng rspe on college campuses. he iw
quoted as stating that ° The wen siwoEt Cennot S8y no, becasuse
1f they do their mesculinity will be in Question.® Analogously.
boye who wish to join gengs in our inner cities must often show
their willingness to rob sand Kkill before being fully scoepted.
Boys mumt reject “fesinine” sttributes such ss empstdy, crying,
aering, feeling® of nurtursnce for the Young. angd prove their
masculinity by <4dhering to vhat I refer to se the valuem of "the
mssculine systique®-- toughness, dowminance, smotional detschwent,
cellousness tovard vonen. e®agerness to seek put danger and to
fight. A Qrowing P¥Yschounslytic literature expleins snd Enslyzes
the di1fficult peychologicel process through vhich boys rsised by
vomen develop s male identity.

Boys raised with nurturant, caring., highly involved fethers
in the home develop s Prissry ssle identity-- they csn wodel
themssrives on their fathers from the younpest asge. They do not
need to prove thst they are real sen by being tough, violent,
obsessed with dominsnce. Their wodel of mesculinity includes
nurtursnce, csring, snd empsthy vhich they experienced from their
fathers. Since they sre® pecure in their masculinity, they do not
heve the need to look dovn st and disparage sverything feminine
in order to esteblish & mesCuline identity.

The importance of psternsl involvesent in deterring violent
behsvior recently received further confirmetion vhen the results
of s tventy-six yesr longitudinal =mtudy of emspathy, cerrisd out
by pmychologist Richsrd Koestner snd collesgues, vere Published.
The resesrchers found Lhat the a&ingle factor wmost highly linked

to empathic concern on the pert of Children was the level of
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paternsl involvesent in chilid cere. Earlier studies indicate thet
empathy im jpvsCsely related to violent behsvior.

Nurtursnt feathering hss ancther extremsely beneficial effect,
It tends to improve the quality of mothering. Let wme first
1l1lustrate thim with en exesple. When I visited 8 parenting cless
for tewnsge mothers in & New York City High School, it soon
becane spparent that virtuslly every girl had been sbandoned by
the fether of her child. (In pur inper cities. impregnsting Qirls
ie often 8 vey tO Prove manhood tc one’s peers. Teking finsncisl
snd emotional responsiblity for these children is not psrt of the
prevalent concept of menhood. !} Their enger and cynicism was
strong. When I samked the @irls 11 they thought these experiences
snd esngry feelings hed sny influence on haw they felt shout their
sons, one girl responded, °"Sose people do trest them wmesn ‘caune
they come out lookin’ like their father.® Neny heads nogded in
sgreesent. In hie resesrch on hyperaggressive Children,
peychologist Brent ¥illock has found that often the emotional end
physicel abuse thst these children experience resultz from hasving
maothers "vho becase overvhelmed end depressed by stressful life
circusstances combined with 8 lsck of emotionsl support( poor
maritesl relationship or none at slil, lsck of extended fomily
etc.}) I went to emphemize hers thet the difficulty of being
single wother, or & mother wvhose husbend perticipstes very littlie
or not st sll in child-resring is not limited to poor or working
clens vomen. It »lso affects many middle snd upper siddle cless
woriking women vho often vork s "second shift® when they get howe.

In The Second Shift, = study of working couples with children,

. 95
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mociologist Arlie HNochschild found that Only one in five =men
were e actively involved in child-care sand houssvork as their
wives. It 41s difficult to sscape the conClustion that in Q.nr
casses thess mothers’ physical end wentml exhsustion, and enger
wvill effect negetively their relstionship to their ochildren,
lesding in sowme cesss to physics]l and/or emotionsl sbuse.

The difficulties end dengers of s mother raising children
with little or no help from the father mre severely aggravetsd
when e child suffers from probleme such es sttention deficit
disorder with hyperactivity. mental retardetion, or severe
learning disebility. Nillions of AmeriCen children, = mejority of
thew boys. sre sfflfcted with these Conditions. Even for
finencislly secure perents vho shere chiid cere, the
difficulties tnvolved in reising boys vho have these problems esre
enormouR. But =mince many of these condition®s are more prevslient
smong the lover socio-economic Classes, these boys sre often
raised by poor, uneducsted, mingle mothers. In a guidebopk for
correctionsl administrators, published by the U.S, Depsrtment of
Justice, Nationel Institute of Correctiona, it im estimsted that
approximately 40X of the U.S. prison populstion suffers from
lIesrning disability, and up to 30 X of crieinal offenders are
wildly mentelly reterded.

Another fector thet seriocusly sggreavstes the sbhsence or leck
of nurturent involvement on the pert of the father is the culture
of violence in which wost Americsn children @row up. In en sge of
advenced technology, Awmeraicen boye ere surrounded by violent
mele role models 1in sll aress of entertainment. Qur culture of

violence encourages visving surder, repe , and essesult as fun.
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Children watch an average of 24 hours of TV » veek. The Nstionsl
Coslition on Television Viclence wstimates that the sversge child
#ill have seen spproxiwmately 26, 000 surders wn TV by ihe sge of
eighteen, This does not include movies Ssen on video or st movie
houses. Over 23S studies have been Cerried out in the lest 40
yeurs on the effects of vieving violence in films end on TV. The
vast majority indicate that vieving violence encoursges violent
behavior. For meny boys without fathers the violent nale heroes
of slasher/ horror films, adventure films (vwhich are reslly non-
stop violence filmm), and TV police shovs snd certoons, are

snoraously influentiml.

If we want to begin to curtsil our scendalous rates of
violence, ve wmust do everything Possible to encoursge nurturant
respansible fathering.

I recommend the introcuction of wmsendateory child-resring
clesses in our schools starting st the lstest in 3th grade.
Educstion for Parenting, s Philadelphis based group, hss
developed an excellent curriculum in this ares. I visited
parenting clesses 8t several inner ocity Philsdelphia elementary
snd junior high schools vhere seny if not most children ere
fatherless, ond st the Germantown Friends School, s private
Gusker school. I wam enormously ispressed Dy the level of
interest and enthusissm demonstrated by virtually every boy in
every class I visited, and came svay Convinced thest most boys sre
just as cepsble of being interested in and involved with chilcaren

snd child-resring s= sre girls. uUnfortunetely our culture
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discOursges this interest from the youngest sge. Vhen classes in
child-rearing are Wandstory, boyYs are given persission to
exprems it. The progrsm centers on s parent, usualiy » mother.
bringing her baby or toddler to clsse once = month. The students
cbserve the child’s behavior, often interact with the child, snd
esik the mother questions sbout wvhat it 1s like to be & perent.
Students keep 8 chart of the child’s progrese snd make
pPrediction® gach month, before the child's visit, ss to vhat the
child vill be eble to do. They also keep wvork books which
sncoursge obervation, peychologicel ineight, end menmitivity.
Teachers impert besic knowledge sbout child development.

At the NHigh School for the Husanities in N.Y.C.. s highly
integreted school both recislly and eocislly . classes in child
development sre tsught to juniors snd ssniors. It i e sequential
COours® that sterts with prenstal cere snd includes topice such as
"The Toddler (Age 1 to 3 Yre.!): Intellectusl anc Langusge
Development, the Need for Parentsl Stimulstion® Here sgain I wvas
highly tmpressed with the Qquality of the curriculum and the
level of intense interest exhibited by male students. Let me
mention thet the Nealth teecher who together vith a child
Peychistrist developed this curriculum did 0 when in the course
of teaching & Neslth cilass in s vocstionsl high school, he
becese sware thet his students had no idea that there was any wey
of disciplining children other then beating them.

The progresa I hesve briefly described strongly discourege
besting children. Boys (end girlse! who asre physicelly sbused
have 8 high rate of sbusing their own children. and ere more

likely to commit actes of crisinal viclence as scdults. These
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programs encourage nurtursnt, csring. informed fathering snd
mothering. Teschers snd sdministrators involved in the programs
also Teport s mignificent decrease in teensge pregnency. When
atudents fully understsnd the 8ve@some demsnds of responeible
parenting, they decide to put off hsving children until they are
financisally end emotionelly sbie to desl with the responsiblity.
The tragedy of Single tesnsge girls giving birth to bsbies =sny
of whom will grov up tp be violent is sverted.

Yhen tesnsge Rregnancy hes aiready ococurred . I recommend
the kind of progras developed st the Nedicel Collmge of
Pennsylivania. s teaching hospital in Philadelphis. When s Young
wvoman comes in Preghent, she is asked for the nswme of the child’s
futher. Ne is then Contacted snd ssked to join s progrem for
teensge fethers gesred towsrd providing the boys with basfic child
cere inforsetion and encoursging them to take smotionsl snd
finmsnciel responsiblity for their nifepring. A survey by Les
Wiilis, who runs the pProgras, revesis that 82x of the boye, #
vest majority of whos ere low income Africen Americens, see
their children regulmrly snd 76X pPay mOowe child support, This
level of involvement and responsibility is extresely high
compared to thst of their peers. One of the msajor hurdies
¥iilis must overcome in order to get the boys involved in
fntho}nnc i= "the stigms of being s nurturer.” They fser being
perceived as effeminete by their pessrs i1f they push s beby
csrriege or hold their baby close. Once the counseling snd peer
support groups st the hoepital help thes get over this fear, meny

of these young mon will say: *I‘ve slvey® vanted to do this but I
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vas sfraig of being celled gay.”*

The fesr expresssd by these boys gets to the gist of a smjor
obstecle to encowrasging loving nurtursnt fathering in boys. Keny
parents are sfraid to encourage treits such ss espsthy.
sensitivity, cering, in their sons becsuse they fesr thet they
will be seask and "effeminete.” Neny perents slso discourage sny
form of rehesrsing fethering in boyw -- such a8 pleying vith
dolls Or bady carriages-- becsuse they fesr that their sons vwill
grow up to be gey if they indulge in such pley. There im en
obvicus sbsurdity here-- only heterosexusl men become fathers,
hold their babies, push their besby cerrisges. How csn rehesrsing
a heterossxuel role lesd s boy to become howmossxusi?

I heve focused here on those progrese that I have
sncountered snd been impressed with in the course of my research,
but I would like to add thet I also favor responsible messures or
incentives, economsic end/or sociel. to encoursg® nur turent
responsible fathering. Chenges 1in the vorkplesce to sccommodete
responsible, cering fethering are slso cleerly indiceted. It 18
beyond my expertise to meke Specific recommsndations in this

aree.

1.3
BEST COPY AVAILABLE
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Chairwoman ScHroeper. Let us move on to our next witness,
William Mattox. We are very happy to have you this morning, and
the floor is yours.

STATEMENT OF WILLIAM R. MATTOX, JR., DIRECTOR OF POLICY
ANALYSIS, FAMILY RESEARCH COUNCIL, WASHINGTON, DC

Mr. Marrox. Thank you, Madam Chairwoman. I want to thank
you for the opportunity to testify this morning, and to commend
you for holdingethis hearing on what I think is one of the most im-
portant, yet often overlooked, issues of our day, which is the need
to build stronger ties between fathers and their children.

I also want to pay tribute to the distinguished Ranking Member,
Mr. Wolf. He doesn’t know this, but a few years ago I was working
here in Congress for another member of Co , & member from
the other party, and, typically, I did not mt t much attention to
"dear colleagues’’ that came across mie coming from Republi-
can members, but one day I remember a “dear colleague’ sent
around by Mr. Wolf and Mr. Coats, urging members to watch this
film that he made reference to a few minutes ago, Where'’s Dad?
And, that really struck me as interesting, and it was then with
great interest that I read an article a few months thereafter about
some of the changes that Mr. Wolf had made in his own work life,
and work environment, and setting up this phone line for his chil-
dren and things of that nature, and even though at the time I had
no children, I must say that it made an impression on me and has
helped influence some of the decisions I've made in my own life in
terms of work and family.

I'd like to offer, if I can, 12 8 tions to business and govern-
ment leaders who are interes in promoting a more “father
friendly” workplace.

The first sugfeetion that 1 would make is this:. be aware of
wolves in “family friendly” cloth'ng. As you know, Madam Chair-
woman, “pro-family” and “pro-child” imagery is often used to sell
ideas, products and policies which are anything but “family friend-
3"." I can think of no emploiee benefit that could be less worthy of

“family friendly’’ label than day care for ill children.

If ever there were a time for wor)l,c obligations to take a back seat
to family responsibilities, it's when a child is sick. Nevertheless,
you'll find ple who will include this among “family friendly”
policies, and 1 think that we need to make a distinction between
those policies that are “business friendly” and those that are
“family friendly.” I think we need to acknowledge up front that

uite often those two things are not at odds with one another, that

ere are many, many policies, especially when you think in terms
gf_ th;; lgng run, that are both “family friendly” and “business
riendly.

But, we should certainly recognize here at the outset that just
because something or someone may want to claim something is
“tpro-familly.” that there are, unfortunately, many “teflon” benefits,
if you will, employee benefits to which the “family friendly’”’ label
cannot stick.

The second point I'd like to make is this: in distinguishing be-
tween various benefits, and determining which ones are, in fact,
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“family friendly,” I think we need to establish as the number one
criteria that the benefit or policy “put children first,” that is, that
it put a paramount consideration on the child’s need for time with
parents, rather than the employer's need for time from the work-

nt.

Methird ing I'd like to suggest is that we recognize that kids
need more than scraps of parental time. A recent study found
that US. xnts today spend roughly 40 percent less time with
their chil than nis a tion ago. Moreover, a recent
study by Armand Nicholi at ﬁ:ﬂnrd. found that U.S. parents
today spend less time in ing with their children than pcrents
in any other country in the world except Great Britain.

ite the serious social problems ronted in America's parent-
ing deficit, many of which have been outlined by some of the other
mlists.theremfominthev.s.todpyﬂmarguethatall chil-
really need from mom and dad is just some strategically-
timed “ﬂ}m.lity” interaction—12 weeks of “bonding” at the begin-
ning of life, some down-on-the-floor-with-the-blocks time together in
the evening after mom and dad unpack their briefcases, that kind
of thing. Obviously, there’s little question that children do need
at::lity interaction with their parents, but I think it's important
t business and rnment policymakers recognize that, as Mr.
Wolf pointed out, children also need quantity of time.

Indeed, Nicholi said that he regards time much like oxygen—
that there’s a minimum amount that’s needed to survive, and that
less than that amount may cause permanent damage.

So, obviously, when we approach this issue, we must recognize
that America’s "family time famine” cannot be solved by feeding
children mere “scraps” of parertal time.

The fourth thing that I'd like to suggest is that we need to urge
fathers to balance working families over the life cycle. In recent
years, families in America have increasingly: [1] had both spouses
employed full time while children are young; and [2] had one or
botg spouses retire before age 65. Taken together, these two trends
have created a peculiar “middle-aged bu?e” in the allocation of
work and family responsibilities over the life cycle.

To alleviate the “task overload” that many mothers face, author
Arlene Cardozo advocates “sequencing’”: that is, dramatically
downshifting or halting one’s career involvement when children
are young and then gradually accelerating one’s career commit-
ments as children mature.

I believe this is a very sensible stra for many mothers, but I
want to emphasize here this morning that I believe many fathers
can benefit too from seeking to do it all, if you will, over the course
of their lifetimes, instead of all at once. I can attest first hand to
the benefits of such life cycle strategies. My father worked for a
number of years as an admissions director for a major universitg, a
job which afforded him considerable time with his family. But,
after his five children had all reached adulthood, he quit his job at

ge 56, got a scholarship to go to law school, and is now fulfilling a
e-long career goal by practicing law.

I believe that this is the kind of life cycle stra that we need
to be encouraging many men to consider, and I think the key to
faciliting that kind of strategy is for employers to give worf:ers
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greater ﬂexibi:'i;y. Fl::ible employmegt j‘:l:;:;lieie:s. lik; flextime,
com work weeks, part-time wor sharing, home-based
empfoyment, performance-based management and parental prefer-
ence policies all give parents significant control over when, where
and how much they work for pay. This, I think, is critical in help-
i% fathers develop the proper work pace at whatever station In
life they ha“f:en to be.

So, I wo ve a strong endorsement to thinking about balanc-
ing work and family, not just as a given point in time, but in terms
of the entire life cycle, and I think i1t would be useful for us to link,
if we can, the need for family time among 20-something and 30-
somethi%“gamnw with the growing early retirement trend among
50- and mething “empty nesters.”

I know there are some early retirees who have bought them-
selves RVs, and are now driving around the country sporting
bum?er stickers thatmabout how they are spending their chil-
dren’s inheritance. I think it would be useful for us to develop an
alternative bumper sticker, Madam Chairman (and I can think of
few people better to do this than yourself, in view of your ability to
come up with quick, clever, catch phrases) that that might say
som to the effect of, “I'm foregoing my early retirement to-
morrow to enrich my children’s lives today.”

Number five, I believe we need to emphasize the importance of
viewiniedad and mom as a unit. Not only should we be concerned
about helping fathers balance work and fameilg' at a particular
point in time, and over the life cycle, but we need to recognize that
whatever dad does, just as whatever mom does, is going to have an
effect on the other spouse. For that reason, I am far more attracted
to those policies that offer flexibility instead of rigidity, because I
believe flexibility helps each family find the best solution for itself.

As it has been pointed out earlier, families decide to balance
work and family in a multiplicity of ways, and I think that we
need to recognize that parents themselves are often far more cre-
ative and innovative and better able to solve these kinds of prob-
lems than are policymakers looking at these issues from a distance.

Number six, I think we should be careful not to assume that
dads in two-earner homes want or need day care. Here I can speak
from personal experience. There is, I think, a perception among
many that most couples that have two incomes lack access to high-
M ty center- care, and, yet, recent research by Barbara

tehead of the Institute for American Values, and reams of poll
data show that quite often what parents in two-income families are
seeking to do is to find a way to maximize the amount of time that
they have with their children.

I believe that this is finally coming to the realization of some of
those in Co I noticed in the current issue of Mother Jones
that Geo iller of California, one of the leading day care advo-
cates in the Conm made this comment: “I spent eight years in
getting the chil bill passed in Congress, and at its genith,
thore was never a child-care movement in the country. There was a
coalition of child ad groups, and a few international unions
that dpnt up hundreds of thousands of dollars, and we created in the
mind of the leadership of Congress that there was a child-care
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movement—but there was nobody riding me. And not one of my
colleagues believed their election turned on it for 8 moment.”

I would hope that business policymakers, in light of Miller’s con-
fession and recent poll data, would be careful that they do not
allow some of the same union leaders and day-care advocates that
have successfully pushed federal legislation through Congress to
push more and more day care on the business community.

The seventh point that I'd like to make is this: I believe that pol-
i favor w and flexible work arrangements over
service-oriented benefits. I believe the best employment policies for
families are generally those which increase the take-home pay of
parents, via fi:her wages, and those which give ts greater
control over when, where and how much th‘e_y work. Such policies
are generally superior to service-based benefits, because they give
parents greater om to make the kinds of decisions that they
think are best for their families. ]

Number eight, we need to be careful that we don’t penalize fami-
lies that care for their own children. I'm concerned that some em-

loyee benefit plans pose equity problems, because they favor fami-
ies that utilize certain employer-provided market services over
other employees who choose not to do so. Accordingly, I believe
that it's important (as the previous panel noted) that we encourage
greater cafeteria benefit plans, so that there can be an opportunity
or nts to select among a menu of options those benefits that
would most help them,

I think we also would be cautious about mandating benefits, and
I would speak particularly here to the issue of parental leave, and
the current pro before Congress to mandate leave.

A recent study by researchers at the University of Connecticut
and at Cornell, found that employers typically do not hire a re-
placement worker to fill in for the women on maternity leave, but
they instead spread the leave-taker’s work load among existing em-

plo .

‘lq:is research, no doubt, helps to explain why studies show the
cost of mandated leave to employers is modest, but it demonstrates
that the “gains” made by some employees via mandated benefits
often impose significant costs in time and money on other workers.

I'm particularly concerned that many fathers, who typically
favor options like flex-time and home-based work over paternity
leave, could be disadvantaged because if a short-handed employer
is needing to have a certain number of employees cover the cen-
tralized workplace during normal business hours, it may hinder his
ability to offer flexible benefits to other employees.

I'm not, in any way, suggesting that parental leave or paternity
leave should not be among the benefits that are offered to employ-
ees, I'm merely suggesting that there's a need for those types of
benefits to be offered within the context of the cafeteria benefits
plan, and, unfortunately, the federal legislation does not do this.

Madam Chairwoman, I know that you and Congressman Wolf
have been quite involved in recent weeks in promoting a pro-child
tax relief, something that I greatly applaud. 1 was quite encouraged
to see a few weeks back that Senator Gore and Congressman
Downey had joined you in E:Opming a plan that was similar in
many ways to the proposal that Congressman Wolf has introduced.
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And, while there are many things to praise in their legislation, I
would note that there is a provision that would repeal the Young
Child Tax Credit, which was created last year to attempt to address
the existing tax bias against parents that care for their own chil-
dren. Thus, Gore and Downey, who are both sponsors of family
leave legislation, are encouraging families to take time off to care
for children but then removing a tax benefit that helps them to do
that. I think we should be concerned about this inconsistenc{\.u!
think Congress should resist effort to repeal the Young Child
Credit.

The ninth suggestion that I would make is that we recognize that
dads and moms are not interchangesble, that by virtue of their
ﬁ?_nder moms and dads each make unique contributions to a child’s

e.

I think we also, number ten, should be talking more about
“good”’ and “bad’’ dads than about “new” and “old” dads, because I
think we must avoid the insinuation that all fathers of previous

erations were delinquent, or that all fathers of this generation
eserve p .

Number eleven may a to be kind of a peculiar suggestion,
but bear with me here. lieve one of the most important things
we need to do is to give mothers at home the respect they are due.

There are a lot of people who have long hoped that a rise in the
two-career family would spur men to take a more active role in fa-
thering. But, several studies, including one by University of Virg:’n-
ia Sociologists Steven Nock and William Paul Kingston show that
fathers in two-income families actually spend less time with their
children than do fathers in traditional breadwinner-homemaker
households.

There are a2 number of possible explanations for this. One re-

review said that the reason for this was that guilt-ridden,
sameshift wives “essentially push their dads out of the way in
their rush to spend time with baby at the end of the day.” I'm cer-
tain that logistical problems do play a role in this. I know from my
own exgerienee. when my wife and I were both working the same
shift, that our time in the evenings was quite often spent doing
things like cooking and cleaning, and all sorts of various household
chores that would not lend themselves to providing quality time for
the children as well.

But, it strikes me that part of the reason for the discrepancy in
paternal time with children may be that many fathers have decid-
ed that if spending time with children is as unfulfilling and imma-
terial as some maternal employment advocates claim, their time
would be better spent elsewhere.

Sa, ironically enough, it seems to me that part of the key to stim-
ulating ter father-child interaction may be extolling tge contri-
bution that mothers at home make as part of an overall effort to
it;crease support for parenting and familial child rearing in gener-
al.

Finally, my twelfth suggestion would be to give fathers more
homework. I believe that special attention should be given by pol-
icymakers to removing impediments to home-based employment,
thereby helping to usher in a 21st Century computer-driven version
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of the old agrarian economy, in which the home is a major center
of economic production for both mothers and fathers.

, home-based employment is not a panacea, but I be-
lieve, and can see from my own experience, that there are many
benefits to home work. Not only are home-based parents more ac-
cessible to their childran throughout the day, but they can often
organize their work schedules around family events, and can model
work roles for their children.

Madam Chairman, again, Jet me commend you for putting this
heaﬂnftogether.andforfoamingattenﬁononthisveryim t
issue. I hope that with your commitiee’s “‘consciousness-rai ' of-
forts will, in the words of the ancient Hebrew Prophet i,
help “turn the hearts of the fathers to their children.”

Thank you very much.

[Prepared statement of William Mattox follows:]

| RN
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PREPARED STATEMENT or WinLiaM R. Matrox, Js., Direcror oF Poricy ANALYSIS,
FamiLy Reszascu Councir, Wasmnaron, DC

MADAME CHAIRWOMAN, I want to thank you and the distinguished
ranking member, MR. WOLF, for giving me the opportunity. fo testify
before your committee today on the need for “family-friendly”
employment policies which make it easier for fathers to take ar
active, hands-on role in raising children.

As you know, reams of social science data confirm what common
sense has always told us: that a father's presence in the home and
his active participation in family life are extremely important to
child well-being. Given this data -- and an abundance of evidence
showing that many children in America today are suffering from
"father absence” -- I believe today's hearing is focused on one of the
most critical, yet often overlooked, issues of our day.

Accordingly, 1 want to commend youn, MADAME CHAIRWOMAN. for
holding this hearing on “father-friendly” employment policies. My
hope is that your committee’s “consciousness-raising” efforts will, in
the words of the ancient Hebrew prophet Malachi, help "turn the
hearis of the fathers to their children.”

I'in
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Suggestions for Policymakers

MADAME CHAIRWOMAN, ! would like 1o offer 12 suggestions for
government and business policymakers interested in fostering a
more “father-friendly” workplace:

1. Beware of wolves in "family-friendly” clothing.

"Pro-family” and "pro-child” imagery is often used to sell ideas.
products, and policies which are anything but “family-friendly.” For
example, no employec benefit could be less worthy of the “family-
friendly" label than day care for ill children. If ever there were a
time for work obligations to take & back seat to family
responsibilities, it is when a child is sick.

Day care for ill children may be “business-friendly” to the extent that
it reduces employee absenteeism, but no amount of clever packaging
{2 Minncsota center is called "Chicken Soup.” a Delaware center,
"Sniffles and Sncezes") can change the fact that these programs place
far greater importance cn fulfilling the needs of the employer than
on fulfitling the needs of employed parents and (in particular) thesr
children.

1 am not suggesting that business and family interests are always at
odds with one another. In the short- and (especially) the long-run,
there are many “win-win™ policics which are both good for familics
and good for employers.

I am merely suggesting that some highly-touted employee benefits
are (to borrow one of one your favorite terms, MADAME
CHAIRWOMAN) “Teflon™ benefits -- benefits to which the “family-
friendly” label cannot stick.

2. Put children first,

How can policymakers separate legitimate “family-friendly” policies
from counterfeits? 1 can think of no better guide than to ask: Does
this policy put children first? Does it give paramount consideration
to a child’s need for the active involvement of hoth parents? Or does
it give paramount consideration to the interests of those interested in
subordinating family to work?
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3. Recognize that kids need more than “scraps" of parental
time.

A recent study found that U.S. parents today spend roughly 40
percent less time with their children than parents a generation ago.
Moreover, a review of cross-cultural research by Armand Nicholi of
Harvard University found that U.S. parents today spend less lime
interacting with their children than parents in any other country in
the world except Great Britain.

Despite the serious social problems rooted in America's parenling
deficit. some forces in the U.S. today argue that all children really
need from Mom and Dad is some strategically-limed “quality”
interaction -- 12 weeks of “bonding” at the beginning of life, some
down-on-the-floor-with-the-blocks time together in the evening
after Mom and Dad unpack their briefcases. that kind of thing. While
there is little question that children need "quality™ interaction with
their parents, policymakers also should be concerned about the
“quantity” of time children spend with Dad and Mom. As Nicholi puts
it:

{Tlime is like oxygen. There's a minimum amount that is
needed to survive. Less than that amount may cause
permanent damage. And I think the same holds true for
a child's time and exposure to both parents.

Clearly, America's family time famine cannot be solved by feeding
children mere “scraps" of parental time -- however high in quality
those scraps might be. Thus, one of the major goals of any “family-
friendly” employment policy must be that it facilitate parent-child
interaction, that it make it easier for parents to spend large
quantities of high quality time with their children.

4. Urge fathers to balance work and family over the tife
cycele,

In recent years, families in America have increasingly: (1) had both
spouses employed full-time while children are young! and (2) had
one of both spouses retire before age 65. Taken together, these two
trends have created a peculiar “middle-aged bulge” in the allocation
of work and family responsibilities over the life cycle.
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To alleviate the “task overload™ many mothers face, author Arlene
Cardozo advocates “sequencing™: that is, dramatically downshifling
or halting one’s carcer involvement when children are young and

then gradually accelerating one’s career commitments as children

mature.

While this is a sensible strategy for many mothers, fathers too can
benefit from seeking to "do it all® over the course of their lifetimes
instead of all at once. Indeed. ! can attest, first-hand, to the benefits
of such life-cycle strategies. My father worked for a number of
years as an admissions director for a major university, a job which
afforded him considerable time for his family. After his five children
all reached adulthood, he quit his job at ace 56, got a scholarship to
go to law school, and is now fulfilling a hte-long career goal by
practicing law.

How can policymakers help other fathers develop simifar life cycle
strategies? The key is providing flexible employment policies -- like
flextime. compressed work weeks, part-time work, job sharing.
home-based employment. performance-based management, and
parental preference policies -- which give parents significant controi
over when, where, and how much they work for pay. Not only do
such flexible employment policies help fathers balance work and
family responsibilities at any given point in time. but they help
family-oriented workers balance work and family responsibilities
over the life cycle by adjusting their work "pace” according to their
particular station in life. For example. men might work at a
“sprinter's” pace Pprior to marriage and childrearing. switch to a
“miler's” pace during peak childrearing years, return to a “sprinter's”
pace as children leave the home, before easing into retircment at a
“marathoner’s™ pace.

It is important 10 note that policymakers should seek to help fathers
make career progress at ecach stage along the way. Just as a college
student who reduces his courseload from one semester to the next
continues to progress (albeit at a slower pace) to graduation. fathers
who downshift from a “sprinter's™ pace to a "miler's” pace should be
able to continue 10 make career progress (albeit at a slower pace).

It is also important to recognize that the two trends cited above are
mutually reinforcing: as more fifty- and sixtysomething “empty
nesters” retire early, more twenty- and thirtysomething couples with
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children must work longer hours to support them through Social
Security and other retirement programs, which in turn leads many
younger workers to burn out and seek carly retirement while they
are still physically vigorous and mentally sharp.

Thus, government policymakers may want to consider linking
proposals designed to alleviate time pressures on families with
young children (such as pro-child tax relief) with policies designed to
encourage a more productive role for fiftysomething and
sixtysomething individuals (such as phased retirement plans and
higher retirement ages).

§. View Dad and Mom as a Unit,

In crafting family-friendly employment policies, business and
government leaders must recognize that fathers and mothers are
interdependent, rather than independent. actors. This means that
the way each spouse organizes time significantly affects how the
other meets work and family responsibilities. It also means that,
given the variety of factors which influence work-and-family
decisions, different families adopt different strategies for balancing
their responsibilities. For example, a family in which one spouse has
significantly higher earning power than the other spouse is more apt
to adopt a traditional breadwinner-homemaker strategy than is a
couple in which both spouses have more equivalent earning power.
Likewise, a household in which both spouses have computer skills is
more likely to have the one or both parents working regularly from
home than is a family in which both spouses lack such skills.

The _fact that different families can, will, and should organize work
and family responsibilities in different ways argues strongly for
employment policies which are flexible, not rigid. Given the
uniqueness of every situation, decisions about which spouse works
when and where and for how long should be made by families -- not
by central planners interested in socially engineering certain
outcomes.

This does not mean that policymakers should be neutral about which
strategies families adopt. Clearly, policymakers should favor those
strategies which permit families to meet both their income-
producing and childrearing responsibilities over those strategies
which transfer childrearing responsibilities to other institutions.
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6. Don’'t assume dads In two-earner homes want or need
day care.

As it was noted above. families employ a wvariety of strategies to
meet their work and family responsibilities. In many two :arner
families today, spouses stagger their work schedules to maximize the
amount of time that at least one parent is home to care for children.
The most common "tag-team”™ or “split-shift™ arrangement is one
where the father works a standard day-shift and the mother works
part-time in the evenings of on weekends.

While some policymakers and day care advocates argue that most
“tag-team” couples that care for their own children do so because
they lack access to “high-quality” center-based day care, field
interviews by social historian Barbara Dufoe Whitehead of the
Institute for American Values suggest otherwise. "Most parents
believe the safest and best child care is provided by a parent or close
relative,” Whilchead reporis. A number of recent surveys support
her case (see attached fact sheets on poll data), as does a 1989
University of Michigan study which found that most employed
mothers opt for care by fathers or other family members out of
preference rather than necessity.

The fact that families prefer parental care of children over
institutional day care helps to explain why parents never marched in
the streets for the day care bill passed last year by Congress. As Rep.
George Miller (D-CA) acknowledges in the current issue of Mother

Jongcs magazine:

I spent cight years in getting the child-care bill passed in
Congress, and at its zenith, there was never ~ child-care
movement in the country. There was a coalition of child-
advocacy groups. and a few large international unions that

put up hundreds of thousands of dollars, and we created in the
mind of the leadership of Congress that there was a child-care
movement -- but there was nobody riding me. And not one of
my colleacues believed their election turned on it for a
momenit.

Miller's confession -- along with all of the research data on paremal
preferences -- should give pause to business leaders being lobbied
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for more on-site day care by the same union leaders and day care
advocates that pushed federal legislation through Congress.

7. Favor wages and flexible work arrangements over
service-oriented benefits.

The friendliest of all “family-friendly” government economic policies
are those which increase the take-home pay of parents by reducing
the extraordinary tax burden that families with children bear. The
beauty of such tax-based policies, particularly when contrasted
against various government services, is that they give parents
greater economic sutonomy. They give parents the economic
freedom to choose for themselves how to blance work and family.

Similarly, the best employment policies for families are generally
those which increase the take-home pay of parents via higher wages
and those which give parents greater control over when, where. and
how much they work. Such policies are generally superior to
service-oriented benefits because they give parents greater economic
autonomy. While there are exceptions to this gencral rule -- paid
vacation is one, some would argue health insurance is another --
there is reason to be wary of employee benefits which significantly
increase the corporation’s influence over critical family functions.
like childrearing.

8. Don't penalize families that care for their own children.

Some employee benefit plans pose serious equity problems. For
example, suppose two workers doing the same job are cach offered a
compensation package which includes cerain benefits (such as job-
guaranteed paid parental leave and corporate day care) which are
utilized by one employee, but are of no interest to the other. Unless
the latter employee is able to opt for higher wages or other desired
benefits of comparable value (for example, dental insurance or more
paid vacation days), he or she will be penalized for adopting a work-
family strategy that secks to avoid use of market services designed
to replace family functions. He or she will essentially receive
unequal compensation for egqual work.

This scenario underscores the need for cafeteria benefit plans which
give workers an opportunity to select from a menu of options those
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benefits they would most like 10 have. In addition, this scenario
suggests government-mandated employee benefits could pose
potential equity problems. For example, a recent study conducted by
rescarchers at the University of Connecticut and Cornell University
found that employers typically do not hire a replacement worker to
fill in for women on maternity leave, preferring instead to spread the
leave-taker's work load among existing employees. This research
helps explain why studies show the cost of mandated leave to
employers is modest, and it demonstrates that the "gains” made by
some employees via mandated benefits often impose significant costs
- in lost time and money -- on other workers.

Indeed, there is reason to believe a government-mandated parental
leave policy would crowd out “family-friendly” employment options
-- like flextime and homework -- which are popular with employed
fathers. Given a short-handed employer's need 1o have a certain
number of workers available to cover the centralized workplace
during normal business hours, it seems likely that an inadvertent
effect of mandated leave would be 10 deny some fathers the
opportunity to work flexibie hours or from home -- not to mention
the fact that picking up the slack for other employees could force
some Dads to work overtime, depriving them of time with their
families. Accordingly. far from being a "father-friendly” policy,
federally -mandated parental leave could actually reduce the amount
of time fathers spend with their children.

Of course, biases against parental time with children are hardly
unprecedented. For years. the federal tax code has discriminated
against parental childrearing (whether by Mom at home, a tag-team
couple, or some other arrangement) by linking certain tax benefits to
day care expenses. Last year, Congress took a very modest step
towards leveling the playing field by creating the Young Child Tax
Credit, a tax benefit available to alt taxpayers who do not claim the
day care tax credit.

Apparently, this modest effort was too much for some Members of
Congress to stomach. A bill introduced (ironically enough) the week
of Mother's Day by Sen. Albert Gore (D-TN) and Rep. Thomas Downey
{D-NY) would eliminate the Young Child Tax Credit, thereby
exacerbating the tax code's bias against parental childrearing. What
1s especrally ironic about this attempi to “turn back the clock” to the
days when the tax code did not recognize parental childrearing is
this: Gore and Downey are both cosponsors of the Family and Medical
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Leave Act. Thus, their tax bill would increase tax discrimination
against the very people parental leave legislation is supposed to help
- new mothers who want 1o take time off from employment to care
for their children.

9. Recognize that Dads and Moms are not interchangeable.

The equity problems associated with government-mandated parental
leave demonstrate the folly of ignoring significant -- and appropriate
-- gender differences. While there is reason to be wary of efforts to
erect overly restrictive gender roles, there is also reason to be wary
of efforts to suggest that mothers and fathers are interchangeable co-
parents.

The r1ruth. of course, is that mothers and fathers -- by virtue of their
gender -- each make unique contributions to a child's life. This is
why both maternal and paternal time with children is so important,
and why policies should be flexible enough to permit fathers and
mothers to adopt different strategies for meeting work and family
responsibilities.

10. Talk more about good and bad dads than new and old
dads.

There is a lot of talk these days about the “new” father -- talk that,
quite honestly, leaves me uncasy. While I would almost surely
qualify as a "new” father -- 1 have attended the births of both of my
children, taken patemnity leave, changed dirty diapers, served as the
primary caretaker of my children when my wife works for pay, and
negotiated an arrangement with my employer which allows me to
work two days a week from home -- I am bothered by the fact that
the "new” father seems to only score points for assuming non-
traditional responsibilities. He is never lauded for getting out of bed
in the middle of the night to check out a strange noise, squashing
those huge cockroaches no one cise wants io touch, building his son a
trechouse in the backyard, or for busting his fail at work so that he
and his family can one day afford 1o move out of the trailer park.

Moreover, I am bothered by the fact that the "new” father is largely

a repudiation of the “old” father. There is a certain irony in this, for
the father of the 1950s -- at least the mythological father depicted
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on those much-maligned TV sitcoms -- was hardly delinquent when
it came to family matters. As David Blankenhorn and Barbara
Whitehead of the Institute for American Values point out:

As much as our culture in the 1950s worshipped Mom in the
kitchen, it celebrated Dad in the den . . . Television viewers
seldom saw the father of "Father Knows Best” at work. We
never knew what Ozzie Nelson or Ward Cleaver did for a
living. For these television dads, the pathway to the good life
ran, not through e office, but straight to the backyard with
the kids.

Whether or not Fifties sitcoms accurately depicted reality, it is clear
that at least some fathers from that generation were highly involved
in family matters. just as some “new” fathers are deeply committed
to their families today. Likewise, some fathers in both generations

clearly failed to strike a good balance between work and family.

Thus, rather than drawing a distinction between "new™ and “old”
fathers, it seems more appropriate to distinguish between “good™ and
“bad” dads. Indeed, given the dramatic increase in the number of
fatherless families since the 1950s, it is clear that many of the “new”
dads are actually more delinquent than most of the “old” dads.

11. Give mothers at home the respect they are due.

Some “new” father advocates have long hoped that the rise in the
number of two-career households would spur men to take a more
active role in fathering. But several studies, including one by
University of Virginia sociologists Steven Nock and William Paul
Kingston, show that fathers in two-income families actually spend
less time with their children than fathers in traditional breadwinner-
homemaker houscholds.

One research review suggests that the reason for this discrepancy is
guilt-ridden. same-shift wives “essentially push the dads out of the
way in their rush to spend time with baby at the end of the day.”

While logistics are no doubt part of the problem. prevailing cultural
attitudes towards childrearing and childrearers also are sure to be a
contributing factor. Indeed. it may be that fathers in some two-

carner houscholds have decided that if spending time with children
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is as unfulfilling and immaterial as some maternal employment
advocates claim, their time would be better spent elsewhere.

Thus, ironically enough. part of the key to stimulating greater father-
child interaction may be extoliing, at long last, the imporant
contribution mothers at home make,

12. Give Fathers More Homework

Finally, poiicymakers should give special aftention lo removing
impedimen:s to home-based employment, thereby helping to usher
in a 21st Century compuier-driven version of the old agrarian
economy in which th= home is a major center of economic production
for both motiirs and (athers. Indeed, from a family time
perspective, the pre-industrial agrarian family model was superior to
the 1950s-style breadwinner-homemaker family model since it
facilitated greater fatner-child interaction and allowed mothers to
make a more significanl economic contribution without abdicating
childrearing responsibilities.

Home-based employment is cerfainly pot a panacca. Obviously.
many jobs (police officer, pilot, waitress, to name a few) could never
be moved home. Moreover, many jobs that can be done at home
(especially those requiring significant mental concentration) are less
compatible with simultaneous child care than most agrarian-era
occupations.,

Still, there are many benefits to homework: parents are accessible
throughout the day, can organize their work schedules around family
events, and can model various work roles for their children.
Moreover, home-based employment is not just good family policy. It
is also good energy policy since it reduces gasoline consumption, good
environmental policy since it reduces automobile pollution, good
foreign policy because it reduces our dependence on foreign oil, good
budget policy because it reduces the necd for roads and bridges to
accomodate fush-hour commuters, and good public safety policy
since it reduces daytime home burglaries.

For all of these reasons, policymakers should seek to make home-
based employment 3 major part of any effort to create a more
“father-friendly” workplace.
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FAMILY TIME: WHAT PARENTS WANT

Despite growing economic and cultural pressures, most
farmities 1n Amenca today would like 1o devole fess parental
time to paid employment and more parental time to
childrearing activities.

* A 1989 Comell University study found that two-thirds of
all mothers employed full-time would like to,work fewer
hours so that they can devote more time to their families.

* A 1990 Los Angeles Times poll found that 57 percent of ali
fathers and 3$ percent of all mothers feel guilty about

spending too little time with their children.

* Ina 1989 New York Times poil. B3 percent of employed
mothers and 72 percent of employed fathers say they are tom

between the demands of their jobs and the desire to spend
more time with their families.

* A 1990 Roper poll for Virginia Slims found that only 1§
percent of all women believe a three month matemity leave is
sufficient. Fully half want to be home at least until children
are 2 - 3 years of age, and 39 percent want to be home at least
until their children begin attending school.

* A 1988 USA Today survey found that parents of young
children identify “missing big events in children’s lives™ as the
thing they dislike most about their cusrent day care situation.

* This same UISA Today survey found that 73 percent of alt
two-parent families would have one parent stay home full-time
with children “if money were not an issue.”

* A 1989 Washington Post/ABC News poll on child care

issues found that 8 of 10 parents believe it is best for young
children to be cared for by parents at home,

* A 1989 University of Michigan study found that most

employed mothers opting for care by family members did so
vut of preference rather than necessity.

INFT°2:04
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FAMILY TIME: WHAT AMERICANS WANT

Since 1968, the amount of time parents spend with their
children has declined 30 percent, according to data collected at
the Umversity of Maryland. Thic -irop in parem-child
interaction has generated muck: public concem:

* A 1989 survey commissioned by the Massachusetts Mutual
Insurance Company found that Americans believe “parents
having less time to spend with their families” is the single most
important reason for the family’s decluie in our society.

* A 1990 Times-Mirvor poll found that 73 percent of the
American public believes "too many children are being raised
in 3 day care,” up from 68 percent in 1987.

* A 1989 Gallup poll for Newsweek magazine found that by a
5 - 2 margin, Americans believe it is berter for families to
make economic sacrifices so that chitdren can be cared for by
a parent at home than to maximize family income to improve
their economic standing.

¢ A 1989 Lou Harris poll found that 82 percent of the
American public believes care by parents and other famly
members is supenJr to care by non-relatives.

* In a 1990 Gallup poll for the Los Angeles Times, 73
percent of the American public believes children fare best
when they have a mother who is not employed outside the
home.

* When respondents to the Massachusents Mutual survey were
asked to identify "extremely effective” ways to strengther the
family. the most common response was families “spending
more time together.”

INFG®2:81



FAMILY
RESEARCH
CoLNCIL

Gy L Rawey
frevgent

Thirtesti % 8
Selte 300

201 390 2100
PAR (302 193 213¢

118

FAMILY TIME: WHAT CHILDREN WANT

American children are starving today -- starving from a
lack of parental time. artention and affection. In fact, parents
loday spend 40 percent less time with their children than did
parents in 196S.

Not surprisingly, Americans believe “parents having
less time 1o spend with their families” is the single most
important reason for the family's decline in our society
according to a 1989 survey commissioned by the
Massachusetts Mutual Insurance Company.

Such concems are well-founded. Research by social
scientists John DeFrain and Nick Stinnett identifies “spending
lots of time together” as one of the seven keys to strong family
life.

Parents are not the only ones concemed about the
decline in parent-child interaction. Children, too, would like
10 see the work and family pendulum swing back in the
direction of home.

When 1,500 schoolchildren were asked, “What do you
think makes a happy family?,” De Frain and Stinnett report
that children "did not list money, cars, fine homes, or
televisions.” Instead, the answer most frequently offered was

"doing things together.”

Moreover, a 1990 special edition of Time magazine on
the “twentysomething™ generation found that 63 percent of the
18-29 year olds polled hope to spend more time with their
children than their parents spent with them.

As Ellen Galinsky of the New York-based Families and
Work Instituie explains. “These young people have scen their
parents come home from work wiped out and not have time
for them, and they are saying they don't want to live that
way."”
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Chairwoman ScsorpRR. Thank you very much, and I guess
wmﬂdonlyamendittosayalm.'givefamersathomethensp_ect
mdu:iwbeeausewahavent done that either, and I think
your points about brush contact with children don’t do it, you cer-
tainly need a lot more than brush contact.
guess my bumper sticker would be, “Life’s not a dress rehears-
"and there’s too many people who think when you are young it
dress ’tis ways going to be there
b

B

your family is al
to find out that the family isn alwazugombethemif
don’t take out time at the beginning and build those roots that
desperately need. . .
want to announce, first of all, that the record will remain open
two more weeks, so that who has things they would like
add to the record, we would be more than happy to put it in. We
think this is very important, and we would like to get this record
around to many employers, and many people who are struggling
Thet::‘,klwmx}l%mc' ask N and M I parti
wo ike to orma iam, in icu-
lar, 1 was so haunted by this fatherhooxm-cl;;s m vigited, of
these 40 young men, three of whom knew who their fathers were.
The idea of having to go to a class to learn how to be a father was,
first of all, fairlyamoundingmmmeonewhogimw up in a middle-
class, in & more Norman Rockwell type family I guess, but the very
interesting thing was in talking to the instructor, he said the most
successful thing they did were trips to the zoo with the fathers, be-
eausethentheyknewwhattotalkabout. The hardest thing is,
they kept wanting to know, what do fathers talk about with chil-
ch'eni and at the zoo you could talk about the elephants, or you
L ehad, in your book, as I read it, about th ting
was tou , in your , 88 it, ut the parenti
classes, and what you are saying is, it's if they are required every-
t.habOdYt i%‘?es, and then it’s permissible for everyone to talk about it, is
_Ms. MigpziAN. Yes, exactly. I think what I'm saying is a little
like—not a little, a lot like what Mr. Rothman was saying earlier,
and several other mnel members, that we really n a basic
in attitude, that the idea of the father being really involved
with his children, taking a paternity leave, is just very, very far
Ang.m::' . ﬁn?m?nmm?@fswmm mak
ving paren c or and gir elp e
it mainstream. The reason I recommend that they be started by
fifth grade at the latest is because of pregnancy, since they seem to
serve as a pregnancy deterrent, and since girls are ﬁttmg preg-
nant today as early as age 12, fifth grade seems to the right
place. There are other pedagogical reasons, but this kind of
program legitimizes boys’ interest in fathering, and later men’s in-
terest in fathering, so I think it's a stepping stone in the kind of
direction that was mentioned by a number of people here, in terms
of legitimizing paternal invelvement, major paternal involvement.
Ms. Rapin. I would like to add a comment to that, I wouldn't
write off all the fathers who didn’t have these parenting classes, I
think what is needed is some enco ment to fathers to talk to
their kids about what interests them. If it's sports, that's okay, you
can talk about sports with boys and girls, or you can have some
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kind of dicussion about a modified version of what the men are in-
terested in. Even if you are watching television and can talk about
that; if you are interested in fixing cars, or whatever the activity
ha to be, kids can be involved in it.

tly I've also been doing research on grandfathers, and have
talked to a grandfather who said that now for the first time he has
time to spend with his children. I think one of the important issues
that’s been brought up here, is that work has been given the high-
:‘fg'iority d the chﬂdmamears, and it's only when men

the age of bl-ish and 60-ish h feel they can do it right
and can take the time to spend with their children.
thers find time to talk with children, there’s
I think the impor-
take the time to talk to your kids
about what you are interested in, both bomtanq girls.

Chairwoman Scuroepzr. I think you hit a hot button. We
always have said that there's yet to be a man who has died in
America saying they wish they had spent more time at the office,
a:nlilthem'sbeen many saying they wish they had spent more time
at home.

I know I constantly find around here members who are so
excited to be grandparents, and I think that's all over the country—
that’s why I think these hearings are so important, there is just
something about, no matter how many times you've had fatherhood
hearings, or how much we preach, there’s an incredible number in
corporate America that don't get it, that still think the way to go
forward is that you work every night except Christmas Eve, you
know, and you work 14 hour days and on weekends and everything
else, and that's the way to do it.

So, I think while we are all sitting here in agreement, it almost
sounds too easy, as we sit here all ing, and the reality of the
world out there is that it's really qmite 31‘3’? erent, there aren’t very
many Los Angeles’, and there aren't very many Merck foundations,
and there aren’t many of those kind of corporations. Is that what
you find in your research too?

Ms. Rapiv. Well, the thing that comes to mind is something I
have personally found in my research. There seems to be a cost in
terms of employment when men or women put a lot of time into
chil .Inthestudyofthmprimaryearegiﬁ%menin
intact fi es, when we asked, what do they see as advantages
and disad mma, the advan were almost uniformly in terms
of the wonde relationship have with their children, and
“m &"“&‘5“ o ber the

e disadvantages, 7 remember there was a musician
who said he doesn’t have time to rehearse as much as he used to.
There was a professor who said he isn’t turning out as many
?apers a8 he had been doing before. I think we have to acce£ the

act that a balance is needed, that umnotﬁingtobe le to

produce the kinds of things you could produce when you are work-

ing 60-hours a week, turning out the same products, and that’s

okay, because, as you say, time—you are not going to regret later

on not spending more time at the office, but you are going to

ahe time that you missed taking care of, and watching your chil-
ren grow.
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I think we've got to accept the need for balance, and that life
isn't mad'e up of how many publications you have, and how high a

you've reached on the corporate r.
gﬂmmmm Mr. Mattox, point is.we
dommﬁmeshiﬁing,domoreoftheso-hourweeﬂpaperwriﬁng

Mr. MaTTox. Yes. When a business person hears that there’s
going to be a cost paid, or for that matter when government policy-
makers hear that there’s going to be a cost in productivity among
that middle-aged group of -oriented workers, 56e NO WAy
to make up for that loss. I'm suggesting that it would b better for
the economy, if more work were shifted,
and we made the stage in life of, say, 56 to age 70, a stage in life

productive than is often the case currently.

I'm notwﬁesﬁngthat the le in that strata work 60-

t since the is clear early retirement,

I think we need to be challenging w. or not that’s the best

to orgnnim&n;:ities over the life cycle.

irwoman OEDER. Mr. Mattox, I guess I'd have to take

issue a bit with you on family medical leave, in that it is not man-

dated that people take it. I think want to be very clear, it's just

mandated if they want it, that they cen take it, and I think
it’s very easy to work into a cefeteria plan in that form.

And, I do think it's important, I don’t think anybody is trying to
say that if you have those 12 weeks you can then check out and go
back to work and meet the child again when they graduate from
college. But, I do think that early foundation—

Mr. MatTox. Absolutely.

Chairwoman ScuroEDER [continuing]. And that feeling comforta-
ble with a newborn is a very important right that people should
have, am:, tgbvioualy, they can negotiate it up and down any way

want to.

, it's only saying that that’s one option people can have, but
they don’t have toylt:ie it.
) . MaTTOX. A8s you point out, we definitely need to be encourag-
ing parents to take time off after the birth of a child. I would only
question whether or not 12 weeks is really going to do it.

Chairwoman ScHroEper. Well, 1 atarwg with more, it got wa-
tered down to that.

Mr. MaTrox. I hope that yorr'll take a look at the proposal that
Confrmnan Stenholm has introduced here in the House, that
would provide as much as six years of time off for workers after
the birth of a child.

Chairwoman SCHROEDER. As you know, though, there’s no—
there's no requirement the company takes them k, it just says
it would be nice if they would r six years, and it would be nice.

Mr. Matrox. Well, there’s a tradeoff, obviously, that an employer
hasto:pakebetweenbeingabletoguamnteeajoband being able
to provide the kind of time that parents might like, and I think
that the Stenholm proposal attempts to say, for those that value
time at home with children more than job security, here’s an
option that we think ought to be provided.

Chairwoman Scrroeper. Yes, and for those who could afford to
take six years out.

E
E
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Mr. Matrox. Yes, whi nlyundmtheimpomnceoﬁhe
taxmliefmeasumthatha been introduced here.
ChairwomanScmmIagree think there’s just no one solu-
tion. ] think we’ve got a fight on all fronts, and I some of the
have pointed that out, that it's—while we all may be in
agreement, there’s an awful lot of that aren’t in agreement,
mmwmtanawﬁdlotoﬂhong t changing to do to really take
on
I am going to yield to Congressman Wolf, and I a if I
leave for a bit, we are theBreastCancerm.at
noon outside, and that has also something I've been
onlongarthanlevereamtoadmit.&,lhavetobeouttherstn
launch that, and 1 thank very much the panel for being here, be-
causelpmbablywm’tbeabletobeheretothankyonattheend

Mr. Worr. Well,thankyou Ihavenoo?nesnons 1 want to thank
all of you. Doctor, 'dhketogetacop¥ yourbook,l’veaskedmy
stafftog‘etaeopy,l’dlovetoreadl think you've all made very,

ve
‘ﬁere are diﬂ'arenees for different families, dxﬂ‘erent oppmch
but I think the ultimate is, when you reach the

you want to know that didevermmgyoupomblycouldh
theChmrwomanaaidmm not being a dress rehears-

al, you cannot get them on a shelf, and say
aﬁerlgetthmhmel’ncome{ukﬁtenyoucome back they are
notgm:ftobeontheshelf they'll be somewhere else.
I don't plan on voting for him, but I've
admxred Senator Tsongas, when he gave up a safe seat in

the te. That's not aaymi“ much for him being a Democratic
Senator from Massach t he made the comment that “He
neverheardanyoneon theirdeathbedsay.‘lw:sh!hadegent
more time with my business,’””’ and I think everyone in this
ness, or any business, whatever you are in, you always say, golly, if
I had only spent more time with my family.

Isaythateve day. Ican'tgoback Fortunately, I saw this film,
I can't rewrite hmtory but I was fortunate enoug 'to be able to do
some early enough to make a difference, and, hopefully,
the;’re will be a lot of changes of :tftgtudes.

ut, agam, thank you so muc r your testimony.
Scrmoxnn. Thank you.

c"m Thank you, Madam Chairwoman.

Iea.nendomeahtﬂeofwhatFrankhas ust said, because during
the orientation back in late 1982, right r I was elected to my
first term, Frank spo ketomoomingfreshmenahouthowevery
Sunday should be set aside strictl g family, the need to spend
more time with your children, and not letting the job absorb you
the way it, unfortunately, does up here. He certainly has lived hxs
words, and ! commend for it.

I commend you, Madam Chairwoman. I came here directly from
the airport, and I apolog for be late, but you've shown a real
caring on this issue. I thatlwouldhketoeompli
ment you on a balanced dgroup of panelists. Unfortunately, one of
the things that I've found since I’ve been up here is almost closed
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minds among the people in the chair, where they, basically, have a

i point of view and stack the witnesses to support that
point of view. However you seem to be very interested in getting
all viewpoints, and I certainly compliment you for that. Hopefully,
we all can work together and do what n to be done insofar as
government involvement in these issues.

Thank you very much.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. I guess I'd have to thank Jim Schroe-
der, who was on TV this morning as one of the Mr. Moms, but he
lived through all of that too, and I don't think he'd trade a minute
of it. ] mean, we really did run a tag team operation, which I think
is what you are talking about. Both of us to wear both hats a
lot, but, you know, it all worked, and that's—I think it's very im-
portant to talk about those role models, and we are in a society
where you show up with children and people say, what's that, and
you say it's a child, and they act like, you know, you've just done
80 ing terrible, you've worn a bathing suit to church, and
that's y the attitude we are working on.

So, thank you all very, very much.

Congresswoman Horn, did you have any questions?

Ms. Hoan. No.

Chairwoman ScHROEDER. Okay. She came in to bail me out for
the Breast Cancer thing, so I thank you very much. I know you've
been very interested in it, too. We had late planes, and people get-
ting in this morning. Well, with that, I think we'll then adjourn
the hearing, and I thank you all very, very much.

{Whereupon, at 11:52 a.m., the committee was adjourned.}
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PreraRED STATEMENT or HoN. BarBARA-Rosx COLLING, A REPRESENTATIVE IN
Conaoress From THR STATE OF MicHIGAN

Good morning. Im?adtbﬂmmhvbgthhburhgmmﬂnghmﬂy
friendly workplaces athers. | think this is very important since we live at a
when the structure of the family is constantly evolving. Today more fathers
are single parents, more fathers are sharing of their children after divorce,

E

A “family friendly” workplace is one where a parent isn’t made to feel guilty if
he or she has to call home to check on a sick child or call home to make sure a child
hunrriwd safely from school, If a child is ill, the parent’s first consideration must

be the well-being of the child, not what the reaction of the employer will be is he is
1ate or absent from work.

1 think emplxrs will find that if employees are free to care for their children

ir work product is better and the environment in the workplace is
more positive and productive in general.

PrEpaasD Starement oF Hon. Scorr Krug, A RepreseNTATIVE IN ConcrEss From
THE STATE OF WISCONBIN

lwould like to thank Chairwoman Schroeder for calling this hearing addressing
issues many of us have been examining for quite some time. In talking to families

with working parents, and from experience, there is a definite need to pro-
vide more opportunities for wor parents to spend more time with their children.
Studies nhowingﬂ nts are ing to sacrifice “rapid career growth” to spend

mvmﬁmewithuwrfamﬂimundemthefmthnthavingﬂmfamﬂy life is
of primary purpose and should not be sacrificed for a carcer track. Many efforts are
being made the private sector, without any federal prodding or mandates, to
keep the family strong while giving parents the opportunity to continue their ca-
reers.

In my Congressional District we have several companies that have broken new
ground with programs to help families. One of these companies, the Promegn Corpo-
ration, is bui a §1 million, 16,000square-foot child care facility.

The center will be licensed for up to 160 children from infant to school age. En-
rollment will be open to the public for full-day and half-day care. Children of Pro-
mega employees and other companies in the surrounding business park will be
given priority. 1 am submitting a newspaper articlefortherecordabomthts facility.

Competition for qwm oyees has grown quite intense.

These employees ding flexibility to preserve quality of family life. Em-
ployers like Promega are leading the way in deve] lopingwa to meet this im t
demand which benefita the parents, the employers, and moat importantly—the
American Family.
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Pasrazsn Sratsueny or HoN. Dave Camp, o ReraesentaTive v Conorxss Fom
THE STATE OF

;mmmm&mmmmm&?ﬁmgﬂmﬁt

these [ ] mmdhm-

wzmmmwmnwmﬁnmhmhw fo’;-m“nwm

to assist American families.

hH& m.mmwmwmm&mxm.mﬁ.m

income tax deduction for children. afnmﬂh!:nznnddhndshipmdthh
The ?:ﬁyﬁmuu problem facing American families. Parents,

on a
updm nn&eir

]

much time at the office. wbewiththeirpnmnh.upednléyd
formative yesms, so that they grow up to be healthy and productive citizens.
mmmgmuchhgmm an e home based
ness for families to to work at home.
I em hopeful that the today's hesring will result in more
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PREPARED STATEMENY OF THE ASSOCIATION OF PazeTimz Prorzssionacrs,
Fatia Cauren, VA

The Association of Part-Time Professionals (APTP) subaits
this statement in support of its position on the use of flexible
work arrangesents as a means to achieving a healthy balance
batween work and personal responsibilities. The Association of
Part-Time Professionals is a nmaticnal, nonprofit organization
dedicated to promoting the advantages of flexible work cptioas,
advocating equitable compensation and benefits for part-time
ewploysss, and providing information to employsrs and individuals
on current employment trends and practices as they relate to
alternative vork schedules. BEstablished in 1978, APTP has worked
extensively with both employees and employers to help bring
flexible work options to the workplace.

Clearly, there is & growing demand among employees for
greater flexibility in work schedules. With the growing number of
two-carser couples, and the increased sharing of responsibilities
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for children and aging parants, employees nesd options to help
than balance their professional and personal lives. Although
vomen clesrly continue to make up the majority of those
regquesting workplacs options, mors men and rstirees are looking
for ways to reduce their work schedules in order to acceamodate
fanily responsibilities and other personal interests.

The need to creats family-friendly work shvironments is not
axclusive to largs companies. APIF has seen a significant
increase in the number of ssaller as well as largear amploysrs who
are creating Cfamily-friendly policies to allov employses more
tine avay from the vorkplace for important personal
responsibilities. Indeed, flexible work arrangaments are just as
important for small to mid-sizs companies as they are for large
corporations. Also, recent dramatic changas in the econoay have
prompted an increasing number of employers to consider flexible
work schedules as a visble alternative to downsieing their
workforce. Plexible work options often enable employers to a:id
costly layoffs which are disruptive and stresssful, and at the
sane time, allow employers to retain trained and experienced
employees.

The move tovard developing formalized company-wide policies
for alternative work arranqgements is progressing at a slow but
apparent pace. Quite often, it is within those companies vhere
part-time and job-sharing arrangsmants have vorked successfully
on an ad hoc basis that more formalized policies are being
offered to a wider number of employees.
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Tha success of a flexible work options program, be it part
tise, job sharing, flexitime or telecomsuting, is a
responsibility which sust be shared by both the amployer and the
anployse. Employess, managsrs, supervisors and co-workers all '
play a vital role in ensuring this succsss. Regardless of whether
it is company policy or an individualised arrangement, the
employss must feel confident that his work srrangesment je both an
acceptable and accepted practice. Without the support of
managament, too many employees will be reluctant to take
advantage of vorkplace policies that permit schedule changes.
That is why is so important for amployers to establish wvritten
policiss that smployses can rely on to help them in their need to
balance work and family responsibilities. Ideslly, these policies
will provide clear guidelines for sscuring alternative work
arrangements, job reinstatsment protection, guaranteed bensfits.
and fair and adequate compensation.

where flexible work arrangements are available, it is
traditionally the female in a two-career family who opts to
reduce hsr schedule in order to help accommodate family needs.
This is because, even in these modern times, our society
continues to operate under the assumption that the day-to-dsy
care and nurturing of children is the women’s responsibility.
Another important factor is that man still bring in moxe income
than women, 80 their salary is oftentimes more critical to the
family’s tinancial state. As long ae there is disparity between

the salaries of men and women, we will continue to have mores
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wvoman than man taking advantage of altermative wWork arrangsasants
in those workplaces vhare thay are available.

APTP has sean flexible work arrangsaents vork in a number of
vays. For example, two APTP sembers in the mid-west are petroleun
geologists currently working part time for the Fedsral
Government. In order to balance family and carsers, they have
arranged complimentary schedules so that one parent is homs with
the children while the other is at the offica. They fesl that
most couples could make similar arrangamants if they choss to do
sc and planned for it sufficiently in advance. Clearly, however,
these types of arrangssants would be more popular if companies
implemented family-friendly policies permitting alternative work
schadules for all saployess.

Clearly, the move toward greater flexibility in work
schedules involves changes which vill bhecoms a persansnt part of
the vorkplace. The family has taken on nev importance in American
society and achieving a balance between family and work pressents
a challenge to both the individual and to business.
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PrErPARED StaTeMENT Or Ricuarp J. SaLzs, CRanrorp, NJ

THE DADDYTRACK: ONE PATHER'S DECISION. REACTIONS AND EXPERIENCES

1 extend to the Committes my appreciation for accepting sy written
testimony on this important issue.

Ny name 18 Richard J. Salls. and until Januvary 19, 1990. at 33 years of
age. 1 had led & sxemplary tweive yYear career in corporate finance.
mostly within the New Jerssy pharmeceutical industry. [ progressed
from ateff to supervisory to management responsidilities in a highly
competitive industry.

On that day. my 1ife changsd, | enacted a difficult but highly
revarding decisson: | wvoluntarily resigned my $35,000 position as
Nanager, Technical Operations Finance with CIBA-GEIGY Corp.. &
worldwide Pharmaceuticels giant. Ny Plans were to assume the fulltioe
parenting responsibility of my then three year old son. Richard., Jr.
(R. J.)., and oy second son, Nichael. dorn thirteen days earlier on
January 8. 1990. I would be on the “Daddytrack” for 2-3 years. Ny
wife WOUld continue to work as an Accounting Manager at another New
Jersey concern. supporting our family.

What we decided. and what we delieve wholeheartedly. is that our young
children at this point in their lives needed a parent home more than
they needed dus’ .o~ames. ARG 80 wo were willing to cut our family
income by 60% 2o have n* home with them.

Why me? Every sarent. | believe, given the choice. would desire to be
home for some perict ar the primary caregiver to their children., For
my femily, our dectsion filled a need for each of us. For our two
boys. R.J. would be able to leave daycars and be home with his father.
fres to develop a relation with his new bady brother (which hs would
not be able to do in daycare). and also home to develop ties with the
neighbdorhood especially the children there with whom he would later be
attending school. And Michael would have the chance to spPend his very
first period of life with a fulltime daddy. I. having enioyed
continued career Progression but frustrated with the lack of time it
allowed for me to spend with oy firstborn. longed for a time when [
could be the father to oy son that [ envisioned. When working. |
usually saw R.J. only 1% minutes to one hour daily. due to my 50-90
hour worl.weeks. and sometimes Saturdays and Sundays. My wife. though
also working fulltime herself. saw her career suffer as she was usually
the parent keeping more regular hours in order to make the trips te
daycare. stay home with R.J. when he was 1l}. etc. With Michasi's
birth on Jeanuary 6. 1990, we decided to make a change to more basic
values.

Ny realization was that, at age 33, having progressed well :n oy career
thus far, I still had 30 to 35 Years more in which to accomplish my
corporate asprirations. But. 1 had only this brief peried to enioy and
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impACt uUpOn WY young sons, to play 8 major role in their sarly yeara.

1 was. and am, & company Man. cammitted to corporate goals and values.
To add & nots of credidbility to this testioony. I have included my
current resume which indicates my rescord of sccoxplishments. including
the fact that I have sarned promotions within one ysar of joining each
of my previous two major pharmaceutical company smployers. I vasn't
the vietis of any corporste restructuring or downsizing. { vos a top
notch contributoer. In fact, in Decemder 1989. ons month before I began
Yy voluntary childcare sabbatical. I had ths honor of receiving a
Divisional Dpecial Award for my superior contributions at CIBA-GEIGY.

The only ieaves that 1 have seen in My carser wers either maternity
lesves of usually three months or other disedility leaves. as was the
case at CIBA-GEIGY. I had only heard that there was a poseidility of
up to a one year leave. provided one could ebtain several senior vice
president approvale. snd such action was nevar witnessed by anyone with
the company at the time. There was no unpeid extended parentsl leave
policy., at least none was ever noted., Furthermore. the thought of a
person desiring a long term leave conjured perceptions of deing foolish
and uncoamitted. The thought of a FATHER desiring to have that time
with his children was thought of as career suicide. totally against
corporate culture and epirit.

Reslizing that ! sought & committment te my children on the two-three
year horisen. | felt that ! shouldn't expect the company to alter or
sdopt policies to suit my needs. This was the corbPorste spirit
ingrained ip me.

CIBA~GEIGY did have several Family Friendly Policies. such as Dependent
Care Funds. subsidiged day care arrangements and various lunchtime
informetive classes. The overriding aspect of these programs. however,
was that they were designed to make it sasier for a parent to leave his
kide with someons else. The programe 4id little to ellow & parent to
Ds able to spend more time with them. Thers were attexpts at flex-tioe
within my departoent. but ths policy sas restrictive snough to hinder
what it was meant to eccomplish.

In @y view, only a small Portion of what are termed Family Friendly
Policies sctually allow the most important bensfit - for a parent to
spend more time with his children. And, it is these policiesn that
either receive implementation last. or even though instituted. hsve a
corporate culture in place sc stacked sgajnst it that the policy ie
unused. Any one or combination of those policies. such as compressed
workweeks. extended leaves. flexibdle scheduling. etc. thst would have
allowed me to be a parent to a meaningful degree would have kePt me
contriduting at CIBA-ORIGY.

Speaking on the axistence of Pressures in the workplace. 1 can verify
thesr strength. In today's business climate, psce and competitiveness.
the pressure is there te produce. the scorecards are there on who's
here st what time and what tine they leave. on the what have you done
for me lately ettitude. I don't dimagree with the szphasis on results.
a® that has Deen my formula for success for over twelve years. however
when it comes to family needs conflicting with that attitude. it is the
family that loses.
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1 actually spent daye before resigning to concoct a reason fo: leaving
CIBA-GEIGY OTHER THAN for the make of my children. It's simply not a
valid resson. Committed emplovees. the script reads. do not ssek time
off. and it 1s a weakness and unthinkable for a8 father to desire it. A
coamon dragoing point st the offices in which 1've been a contributor
hap Deen how long it‘s Deen since you've had dinner with your family or
have seen your kids.

I went that route wholeheartedly for twelve years. Not until { had a
fanily did | realixe that there was a whole other side to life. Our
children are our future. and ! had gone the first three years of our
firetborn's 1ife in 13 minute to one hour clips. [ dreamed of the day
I'd attain @& director's position with a salary sufficient to have oy
wife consider the option of being home with our children. As the story
untolded. we have kide now. Waiting three to five ysars for that
director's position. if it wasn‘t elipminated. would mean my children
would be older and in school. the opPortunity to help shape their early
Yyears wuld be lost forsver.

The tise between my resignation from fulltime duties and oy actual
departurs {about two wesks) was @ period of mixed emotions for me, I
wan treated Dy my superiors and coworkers in varied fashion ~ as a
“hero”. whe recognized the true priorities in life. as a fool for
throwing eway a shining career. committing career suicide and as an
object of "oddity" -~ after all. no one would dare do this.

ind that's the thought that | corried with me. [ had the unsavory feesr
that [ hed committed & crime. & career suicide.

Before leaving my smployer. | made every attempt. in several areas of
Finance as well as other areas of the company to maintain sons form of
professional ties in soms form of schedule other than traditional
fulltine arrangement®s. | reasoned and argued that surely it was more
expansive to lose the contributions and training of a valued $55,000
finance manager skilled in the affairs of the company than it was to
keep m¢ on board contributing in some capacity - part time. on a
project basim. sven on demand.

I went on a camrpaign with oy management- advocating the benefits of and
how I could continue to serve the company in an almost fulltime non
traditional capacity such as with a combination of telecommuting and
scheduled office and Plant visits as well as other flexidle methods. |
noted that when viewing an entire career. two yvsars of reduced capacity ®
in order to be a parent was not an odd request or unusual. it was a

part of life.

The reeronses that [ received went along the lines of 1if the
accomxmodation wos made for me. the fear was that fathers in all areas
would seek the sane arrangement. and then where yould the company be?
Ny management even passed on my offer to leave the issue of any
compensation in this flexible arrangement up to them. And so [,
prapoted within eleven months of joining CIBA-GEIGY. receiving a
Special Award from our President one month Prior. found mymelf
unsuccessful for the first time in my carser. [ couldn't convince my
superiore. Peolle who knew and recognized the degres of my abilities,
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that it was possidlie to still be of service to the conpany in a more
flexidie format.

And so | Degan my Daddytrack experience. It's been almost eighteen
months now. and I don't hesitate to note that it has besn the most
rewarding period of my 1ifs. I don‘t have for now the salary. the
prestige of & corporate position. a staff. But 1 measure Wself by
slightly different standards now. The relationshi{P that l‘ve formed
with both of my sons and my appreciation of the parenting .
responsidility I previously thought was deyond me. We're “buddies” -
we share, we chat, we take walks to the park, Plant sseds and play
games. And we learn. yes we lesrn together. 1 learn ss much from oy
Doys as they learn from me. I'm not replacing mommy, ‘s piving my
Doys a father's touch, different Dut squally as important.

] eimply cannot put into words ths importance and value that I feel
this time togethsr with them has meant to each of us. When I left work
eighteen months age. my older sen R.J. probadly wondered who this guy
was staying home with him now. The Dest way [ can summerize the
experiences is that now. R.J. can scrape his knee plaring kickball and
run to me as often a8 he‘ll run to his mom. The same goee for our
newdbern. Nichael. Now 1 1/2 vears old. just degining to sound cut
words. I've known for a long time what I mean te him just by his aniles
and hugs. HNis memories. end [ truly bslieve he will remsmber. of his
first monthe of life will include a daddy that has deen there sharing
with Mim. loving him,

I've been fortunate to attract varied media attention recentiy, Press.
television and radio. In al' of these events. | have advocated a
sinmple theme: a career novw is up to fifty years in length. It‘s no
sign of weakness. it‘'s not turning your back on Corporate America to
siaply recognize your family needs texvorarily over the corperate needs
and De a parent for awhile. to Play a role in ths future of us all. our
children. 1 advocate family friendly policies. especially those that
allow for greater time with our children.

My hope is that someday soon it will cesse to be an “oddity" if a
father. though committed to corporste values. choses to place family -
values higher in the order if only for awhile. Ny hops is that
Corporate America realizes that their futures as well are at stake. as
children today are the workers. the “raw moterials” of American
business tomorros. It is in the very Ddest interest of Anerican
corporations to realize that a working parent who wishes to be s parent
£irst for a brief Part of an entire career is GOOD. Our children need
to be reared with thoir parents’ values, their parents’' morals. Almost
all of our competitors in the increasingly global market realize thie
fact already.

So here ! am eighteen months inte & rlanned two year childcare
sabbatical. I1°ve just recently begun to make contacts in the
pharmaceutical industry again. in hopes of returning to work over the
next eix-nine months as opportunity dictates. How has the Daddytrack
affected my career? Not conclusive., Put [ can relate to you two
stories.

I contacted my Previous emplioyer. with whom | was promoted and received

112

Q

RIC

Aruitoxt provided by Eic:



138

from the president of my division a Special hward, to advise that |
would De pisased and eager to resume contributions as a fulltime
ewpioyes. That was in early Narch. It's now late June, and [ haven't
recefived any resrciee. | haven’t sven received an acknowledgement that
they received mr letter. And these are the peorle in Pinance who know
firethand my ability — they promoted me and nominated me for a Special

1 aleo anawered an sdvertissmsnt for a Financs Nanager at another major
New Jersey pharmsceutical company. Their requirements matched
perfectly the dackground, abilities. accomplishments and industry
experience noted on my resums. Prior to taking my Daddytrack
sabdetical. 1 would have been snatched up quickly by this company. But
now, [ wvaited one month for a replY. Nothing. 1 wrote another letter
requesting the status of my candidacy. Nothing. 1| wrote another
istter asking for their comments on my unigus situation in marketing
myself back into the industry after & childcare saddatical. It wes
only after that letter that | received my "no thank you" forwm letter.
Clearly to me, some corporate attitudss when family is concerned are
severely short-sighted and need to be changed.

So 1 belisve that the road back will msan fighting against perceptions
of being uncammitted,. not serious. “soft“. That's ok. No one tan
hide the accomplishments on =¥ resume. [°'m out to prove that the
Daddytrack has only made me better. more committed and gecure in
myself. When [ go back to the office. 1°1! take something with me from
this most satisfying of experiences. Lessons. Lessons about patience.
Friorities and a better balance.

Another harpy possibility is that 1 may return to work not in Finance.
but in the Work and Family area. Thie eXxperience has taught me that
it's & wonderful thing to be truly a part of your kids' eerly vears.
I1‘d like to have an impect. and [ see the possibilitien here. of
helping corporations realize the densfite and implement the proprame.
of helping warking parents be parente. ! believe in it. I want to help
others see ite many msrits. From my twelve progressive years in large
corporate envirommente. I know it can work and be extremely productive.
! know. Bach day. 1've got the love. the mmiles and the hugs of Richard
Jr. end Nichael to tell me that it'e so.

One more thing. Tha real hero to me is my laving wife Nansie., who
continues to work that [ may have this tioe with our sons. Ry hope ie
that soon ehe may elso have thie wonderful opportunity. She fe our

hero. our celedrity every day. Thank you
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PREFARED STATEMENT Or MicuAm. R. Losxy, mw.mmm
Bmunmummmom.m

mmmmmnmmmmxm:

The Society for Human Resource Nanagement (SHRN} welcomes this
opportunity to submit this statement on vork and family issues.
SHRN is the largest non-profit membership organization in the
country repressnting the concerns of human resource sanagement
professionals. Formerly the American Society for Personnel
Administrators, SHRN reprasents the intsrests of more than 70,000
human resource professionals nationwvide. SHRM Renbars are
responsible for developiry and isplsmenting workplace policies
for more than 5¢ million working Americans. SHRN has & program
dedicated to the identification and anslysis of emerging
vorkplace issues. We would like to share vith you some of the

findings of this program relative to the work and family debate.

The workplace is currently populated by three different
generations of Amaricans. The so-called Silent Generation (born
roughly 1930-1943), the Baby Boomers (born 1946-1964) and the
Baby Bust, or Twentysomething, Genaration (born 1965-1976). Each
generation is very different than the one which preceded it--
different experiences, different values and different
expectations about the world of work. Consequently, each
generation has a different set of work and family needs. Any
husan resource practitioner can tell you that successfully
integrating work and family, from both the employer's and the
employee's perspective, is not a one-size-fits-all problem. The

solutions are rarely as simple as providing day care referrals,
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on-mite child care or even job-protected leave. It is important
to both parties that the arrangsment be tailoxed to the
individual situation.

Silent Generation workers are typically more interssted in family
benefits which allow them to take care of spouses or elderly
parents. lLong-term cars insurance, for exampla, -or slder care
referrals allow smployees who live some distancs from their
relatives to make sure their nseds are met. As the work forge
ages, it is likely theme morts of benefits will become more
common. Companies like IEN have bean pioneers in providing
slder care banefits. Smaller companies like Stride-Rite have
alsa vorked to mest the nesds of their work forces by developing
intergenarational day care bensfits which comdbine cars for
children and clder adults in a siaqla setting. {Incidentally,
Stride-Rite has found that intergensrational day care boosts the
intellectual stimulation of the children and the older adults.)

Badby Boomers, which nov comprise 55% of the work force, are
rapidly moving into their “sandwich gensration® years vhere they
will be sandwiched bstwssn the caregiving needs of both their
children and their elderly parsnts. It should be noted that
"child care®™ no longer refers to just the care of infante and
toddlers. Concern about latch-key children has inspired more
cospanies to start offering child care for school-age children.
Nany companies have worked within their local communities to
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encoursgs schoole to open earlier, atay cpen later and offer
special programs for school-ags children with working parents.
3N Company f{n Ninneapolis, for example, has dsveloped a program
with the local YNCA and the Scisnce Nussum of Ninnesota to
provide summer programs for employees with school-age children.

In the last fev ysars, the Baby Boomers have movad toward a
greater emphasis on family values. During such of the 'g0s, thay
vorked long and hard building their careers. The restructurings
of the last reveral ysars, though, shoved them that if you rely
on work to provide your self-fulfillment, lesing your jeb can
mean losing your sense of self. Instead of being "In Search of
Excellence,® many Baby Boomers ars now *in search of meaning.®
This search for meaning has led, more often than not, back to
the family. Divorce rates are down, and birth rates are at their
highest levels in 26 years.

One of the more interesting aspects of this shift toward family
valuer has been the attitudes of men. For many years, work and
family concerns have besn primarily vieved as a'"woman's issue.®
That is clearly no longer the case. Nore and more often men are
turning down promotions or expressing an interest in leaving the
work force for a period of time to care for their families,
creating the so~called Daddy Track. A study done two ysars ago
of managers leaving their positions at Fortune 8500 companies

revealed men vere three times more likely than women to cite
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children ae a reason for leaving their jobs. Feter Lynch, the
former head of Fidelity Investments*' Nagellan Nutual Fund, was
the most succeasful sutual fund manager in the country before he
left two ysars ago to spend mors time with his family. His
comments upon leaving sesm to sum up the situation: “Chilaren are
a8 grsat jinvestment. They beat the hell out of stocks.”
Companies ars needing to respond to this challenge by encouraging
fathers to take advantage of paternity leave policies. One of
the obstacles bhoth employera and employses face. though, (s
society's attitudes about the role of men in the home and the
workplace, Changing these attitudes will not happen overnight.

If anyon® is going to force a change in America's attitudes about
men, it might be the Twentysomsthing Generation. Just as the
Baby Boowmers succeeded in changing socisty's sxpactations of
wvomen, the Twentysomething GCeneration may succesd in changing
raciety's expectations of men. According teo a survey conducted
for Time Magasine last year, a full 48% of the men aged 18 to 24
polled expressed an interest in aetaying home with their
children.

The first generation to bear the full brunt of divorce, the
Twentysosething-ers tend to ba commitment-shy but believe
strongly in the primacy of family, including the primacy of
family over work. The Twentysomething generation's aexperience
with nen-traditional families iz alseo creating a redefinition of
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*family.® According to the Department of Labor, fever than four
percent of Amsrican houssholds nov fall into the tvo parents/two
kids/only dad vorks category. Today's work end fasily policies
are now designed to meet the neads of dual-caresr couples,
single-parent familjies, no-parent families and domestic
partners. Nontefiore Hospital in the Bronx, for exasmple,
rscently became the largest private sector smploysr to offer the
gay partners of its employeas the same banefits spousss of
exployess traditionally have received. Ewployers are finding the
worid is not the same Place it was 40 years ago when the modern
American vorkplace emerged froa the crucible of World War II.

Successful integration of work and family is a complex problem,
and companies across the United States are engaged in some
exciting, progresaive sxperiments in meeting the needs of their
work forces. In 1988, SHRN conducted ons of the first wide-
scale surveys of corporate work and family policies, ®*:n -loyers
and Child Care: The Human Resource Professional's viev.®* An
axecutive summary is attached for your use. ¥e belisve the
tindings of this survey will be useful to this Committee am you
deliberate the issue. Specifically, the survey found that the
primary reason esployers had not implemented various work and
family programs was because they had not yet considered thes,
Consequently, in the last three years, SHRN has focused many of
its own educational efforts toward work and family concerns, and
ve continue to support Programs and legislative provisions which

.
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encourage Vvoluntary business participation in work-family
igsuss. GHEN assisted the Department of lLabor, for example, in
test piloting the Department‘'s Work and Family Clearinghouse. To
date, the Clearinghouse has provided information on family-
friendly programs and policies to more than 4000 employers

nationwide.

Companiss which are not working to meet the work-family needs of
their employses are finding themsslves at a competitive
disadvantage when trying to attract and retain qualified staff.
Their competitive disadvantage will only vorsen over the next 10
years as the shortage of gualified entry-level workers takes its
toll. Ironically, thas proposed mandated family leave legislation
may well stifle scme of the creative attempts companies are
naking to mest the needs of their employees vhile at the same
time doing nothing for the small business owners who are not yet
able to provide family-friendly benefits.

For this reason, SHRM continues to oppose mandated benefits,
including mandatory family leavs. Through a variety of
publications and educational programs, we encourage our msmbers
to develop & family-friendly workplace in their own
organizations, and we applaud those employers across the country
wvhich have already done so. Thank you for alloving us to submit
this statement for the record.
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